THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS (the "Trust")

HUNTINGTON DIVIDEND CAPTURE FUND HUNTINGTON GLOBAL SELECT MARKETS FUND HUNTINGTON REAL STRATEGIES FUND HUNTINGTON SITUS FUND HUNTINGTON BALANCED ALLOCATION FUND (each a "Fund" and together the "Funds")

February 10, 2016

The information in this Supplement amends certain information contained in the currently effective Prospectus, Summary Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") for the Funds, each dated April 30, 2015.

Changes to the Names of the Funds and the Trust:

Effective February 12, 2016, the Funds will be renamed as follows:

Name Prior to February 12, 2016	Name Effective February 12, 2016
Huntington Dividend Capture Fund	Rational Dividend Capture Fund
Huntington Global Select Markets Fund	Rational Risk Managed Emerging Markets Fund
Huntington Real Strategies Fund	Rational Real Strategies Fund
Huntington Situs Fund	Rational Defensive Growth Fund
Huntington Balanced Allocation Fund	Rational Strategic Allocation Fund

In addition, effective February 22, 2016, the Trust will be renamed the Mutual Fund and Variable Insurance Trust.

Accordingly, all references to the Funds and the Trust in the Prospectus, Summary Prospectus and SAI are replaced with the new names on the effective dates above.

Huntington Global Select Markets Fund (To be renamed "Rational Risk Managed Emerging Markets Fund") - *ONLY*

Effective February 12, 2016, the following sentence replaces the third sentence in first paragraph under the "Fund Summary – Principal Investment Strategy" section of the Fund's

Prospectus and Summary Prospectus and the "Principal Investment Strategies and Related Risks – Investment Strategy":

"Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in equity securities of issuers and currencies that are organized, have a majority of their assets, or generate the majority of their operating income in emerging markets."

* * * * *

You should read this Supplement in conjunction with the Prospectus, Summary Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information, each dated April 30, 2015, which provide information that you should know about the Funds before investing. These documents are available upon request and without charge by calling the Funds toll-free at 1-800-253-0412 or by writing to 2960 N. Meridian Street, Suite 300, Indianapolis, IN 46208.

Please retain this Supplement for future reference.

THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS (the "Trust") HUNTINGTON DIVIDEND CAPTURE FUND HUNTINGTON GLOBAL SELECT MARKETS FUND HUNTINGTON REAL STRATEGIES FUND HUNTINGTON SITUS FUND HUNTINGTON BALANCED ALLOCATION FUND (each a "Fund" and together the "Funds")

SUPPLEMENT DATED JANUARY 13, 2016, TO THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS' STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ("SAI") DATED APRIL 30, 2015, AS AMENDED

Effective November 20, 2015, Huntington Money Market Fund was liquidated and is no longer available for purchase or exchange.

Effective December 4, 2015, Huntington U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund was reorganized into another fund and is no longer available for purchase or exchange.

Effective December 31, 2015, Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc. (the "Advisor") was acquired by Rational Capital LLC. The Advisor, renamed Rational Advisors, Inc., is no longer a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Huntington National Bank and is no longer affiliated with Huntington Bancshares, Incorporated. All references to such affiliations are deleted.

Effective December 31, 2015, Huntington Asset Services, Inc. and Unified Financial Securities, Inc. were acquired by Ultimus Fund Solutions, LLC in separate transactions, which included statutory conversions of these entities to Delaware limited liability companies. Huntington Asset Services, LLC (renamed Ultimus Asset Services, LLC) and Unified Financial Securities, LLC are no longer wholly-owned by Huntington Bancshares, Incorporated and are no longer affiliated with the Advisor. All references to such affiliations are deleted. All references to Huntington Asset Services, Inc. and Unified Financial Securities, Inc. are hereby replaced with references to Ultimus Asset Services, LLC and Unified Financial Securities, ILC, respectively.

EFFECTIVE ON OR ABOUT MARCH 15, 2016, THE FOLLOWING REPLACES THE NON-FUNDAMENTAL POLICIES RELATING TO RULE 35D-1 REQUIREMENTS OF THE FUNDS:

The following is a non-fundamental policy of the Dividend Capture Fund:

• Under normal circumstances, the Fund invests at least 80% of its assets in dividend-paying stocks, including preferred stocks and real estate investment trusts ("REITs").

EFFECTIVE ON OR ABOUT MARCH 15, 2016, THE FOLLOWING NON-FUNDAMENTAL POLICY SET FORTH UNDER THE SECTION TITLED "INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS" IS DELETED IN ITS ENTIRETY

Situs Fund

• under normal circumstances, the Situs Fund will invest at least 80% of the value of its "Assets" (net assets plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) in equity securities.

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016, THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE SECTION TITLED "WHO MANAGES AND PROVIDES SERVICES TO THE FUNDS" IS REPLACED IN ITS ENTIRETY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

WHO MANAGES AND PROVIDES SERVICES TO THE FUNDS

Trustees and Officers

The following tables provide information about Board of Trustees and the senior officers of the Trust. Each of the Trustees is deemed to be an Independent Trustee of the Trust. Each Trustee oversees all portfolios of the Trust and serves for an indefinite term (subject to mandatory retirement provisions). Information about each Trustee is provided below and includes each person's: name, address, age (as of the date of the Funds' most recent fiscal year end), present position(s) held with the Trust, principal occupations for the past five years and total compensation received as a Trustee for the most recent fiscal year. Please note that the information consolidates and includes historical information from their service as Trustee or Officer of the Original Trusts. Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each person listed below is c/o The Huntington Funds, 2960 N. Meridian Street, Suite 300, Indianapolis, IN 46208. Unless otherwise noted, each officer is elected annually by the Board. Each Trustee and officer also serves in the same capacity for Huntington Strategy Shares, another open-end investment company whose series are managed by the Advisor. Collectively, The Huntington Funds and Huntington Strategy Shares comprise the "Fund Complex" which is comprised of 9 separate series.

As of December 31, 2015, the Trustees and Officers as a group owned less than 1% of the shares of each Fund.

Independent Trustees Background

Name, Address and <u>Age</u> Tobias Caldwell 48 36 North New York Avenue, Huntington, NY 11743	Position with the Trust Chairman of the Board and Trustee	Term of Office and Length of Time <u>Served*</u> Since January 2016	Principal Occupation(s) During Past 5 Years Managing member, Bear Properties, LLC (2006 - present) (real estate firm); Managing member, PTL Real Estate, LLC (2000 – present) (real estate/investment firm); Managing member, Genovese Family Enterprises, LLC (1999 – present) (real estate firm).	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen by <u>Trustee</u> 9	Other Directorships Held by Trustee Lead independent trustee and Chair of Audit Committee, Mutual Fund Series Trust, 45 funds (2006-present).
Stephen P. Lachenauer 48 36 North New York Avenue, Huntington, NY 11743	Trustee	Since January 2016	Attorney, private practice.	9	Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares (January 2016 – present); Trustee, TCG Financial Series Trusts I-X, 10 funds (2015- present).
Donald McIntosh 47 36 North New York Avenue, Huntington, NY 11743	Trustee	Since January 2016	Credit risk review analyst, Santander Holdings USA (May 2015 – present); Governance analyst, Santander Bank (2011 – April 2015).	9	Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares (January 2016– present); Trustee, TCG Financial Series Trusts I-X, 10 funds (2015- present).

* The term of office of each Trustee is indefinite.

Officers*

Name Age Positions Held with Trust Address Date Service Began with The Huntington Funds

Lisa K. Householder

Age: 50 PRESIDENT and CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215 Began Serving: December 2015 Principal Occupation(s) and Previous Position(s)

Principal Occupation(s): Vice President, Relationship Management, Ultimus Asset Services, LLC (formerly, Huntington Asset Services, Inc.) ("Ultimus") (2015 to present); President and Chief Executive Officer, Huntington Strategy Shares (December 2015 to present). **Previous Position(s):** Senior Vice President, Client Executive, Citi Fund Services (2007 to 2014). Name Age Positions Held with Trust Address Date Service Began with The Huntington Funds Martin R. Dean Age: 52 ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING OFFICER AND CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215 Began Serving: July 2013

Bryan W. Ashmus Age: 42 TREASURER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215 Began Serving: November 2013

Tiffany R. Franklin Age: 40 SECRETARY 2960 N. Meridian Street, Suite 300 Indianapolis, IN 46208 Began Serving: December 2015

Jennifer A. Bailey Age: 47 ASSISTANT SECRETARY 36 N. New York Avenue Huntington, NY 11743 Began Serving: December 2015

* Officers do not receive any compensation from the Trust.

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Audit Committee. The Board has an Audit Committee. Effective January 1, 2016, the Audit Committee is comprised of each of the Trustees. The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist the full Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to the shareholders and the investment community relating to fund accounting, reporting practices and the quality and integrity of the financial reports. To satisfy these responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviews with the independent auditors, the audit plan and results and recommendations

Principal Occupation(s) and Previous Position(s)

Principal Occupation(s): Senior Vice President and Compliance Group Manager, Ultimus Asset Services, LLC (formerly, Huntington Asset Services, Inc.) ("Ultimus") (July 2013 to present); Anti-Money Laundering Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, Huntington Strategy Shares (July 2013 to present).

Previous Position(s): Director and Fund Accounting and Fund Administration Product Manager, Citi (2008 to June 2013)

Principal Occupation(s): Vice President, Financial Administration, Ultimus Asset Services, LLC (formerly, Huntington Asset Services, Inc.) ("Ultimus") (September 2013 to present); Principal Financial Officer and Treasurer, Valued Advisers Trust (December 2013 to present); Treasurer, Huntington Strategy Shares (November 2013 to present). **Previous Position(s):** Vice President, Fund Administration, Citi Fund Services, Ohio, Inc. (May 2005 to September 2013).

Principal Occupation(s): Paralegal, Ultimus Asset Services, LLC (formerly, Huntington Asset Services, Inc.) ("Ultimus") (April 2012 to present); Secretary, Huntington Strategy Shares (December 2015 to present); Secretary, Capitol Series Trust (December 2015 to present).

Previous Position(s): Assistant Secretary, The Huntington Funds, (November 2012 to December 2015); Assistant Secretary, Huntington Strategy Shares (November 2012 to December 2015); Assistant Secretary, Capitol Series Trust (September 2013 to December 2015); Florida Registered Paralegal, Anton Legal Group (February 2007 to June 2011).

Principal Occupation: Director of Legal Services, MFund Services LLC (2012 to present). **Previous Position(s):** Attorney, Weiss & Associates (December 2008 to June 2010). following independent audits, reviews the performance of the independent auditors and recommends engagement or discharge of the auditors to the full Board, reviews the independence of the independent auditors, reviews the adequacy of the Funds' internal controls and prepares and submits Committee meeting minutes and supporting documentation to the full Board. The Audit Committee met 3 times during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

Compensation of the Board of Trustees

The Independent Trustees are paid a quarterly retainer, and receive compensation for each committee meeting, telephonic Board meeting, and special in-person Board meeting attended. Officers receive no compensation from the Trust. The Trust reimburses each of the Independent Trustees for travel and other expenses incurred in connection with attendance at such meetings. The Trust has no retirement or pension plans.

Each Trustee commenced serving on the Board of Trustees of the Trust effective January 1, 2016. Therefore, the Trustees did not receive compensation from the Trust during the year ended December 31, 2015.

TRUSTEES OWNERSHIP OF SHARES IN A FUND AND IN THE FUND COMPLEX AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

Name of Trustee	Dollar Range of Shares Owned in the Funds	Dollar Range of Shares Owned in the Fund Complex*
Tobias Caldwell	None	None
Stephen Lachenauer	None	None
Donald McIntosh	None	None

* The Fund Complex consists of 7 series of The Huntington Funds and 2 series of Huntington Strategy Shares.

Qualifications and Experience of the Trustees

The following provides an overview of the considerations that led the Board to conclude that each individual serving as a Trustee of the Trust should so serve. Generally, no one factor was decisive in the original selection of an individual to join the Board. Among the factors the Board considered when concluding that an individual should serve on the Board were the following: (1) the individual's business and professional experience and accomplishments; (2) the individual's prior experience serving on the boards of public companies, and other complex enterprises and organizations; and (3) how the individual's skills, experience, and attributes would contribute to an appropriate mix of relevant skills and experience on the Board.

In respect of each current Trustee, the individual's substantial professional accomplishments and prior experience, including, in some cases, in fields related to the operations of the Trust, were a significant factor in the determination that the individual should serve as a Trustee of the Trust.

In addition to the information set forth above, the following sets forth additional information about the qualifications and experience of each of the Trustees that lead to the conclusion that each Trustee should serve as Trustee of the Trust.

Tobias Caldwell

Mr. Caldwell is the manager of a real estate investment firm. Mr. Caldwell has served on the board of a mutual

fund complex for over nine years, including as chair of the audit committee for many years. His experience in the real estate and investment industries would provide the Board with an additional perspective and understanding of investment strategies used by advisors to the funds.

Stephen Lachenauer

Mr. Lachenauer has been a sole practitioner attorney for over six years, providing advice and counsel to small businesses and individuals on business and financial matters. Mr. Lachenauer's previous experience at law firms and as an attorney at a large investment bank would provide the Board with knowledge of financial and investment regulatory matters.

Donald McIntosh

Mr. McIntosh is a credit risk review analyst for a large international financial services company, and he has many years of credit analysis and loan servicing experience. Mr. McIntosh's experience in evaluating companies' financial condition would provide the Board with knowledge about investment strategies used by the advisors of the funds.

Board Structure

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management and operations of the Trust. The Board consists of three Independent Trustees. The Chairperson of the Trust, Tobias Caldwell, is an Independent Trustee.

The Board has one standing Committee, the Audit Committee. Effective December 31, 2015, the Audit Committee is comprised of each of the Trustees. Through the Audit Committee, the Independent Trustees consider and address important matters involving the Trust, including those presenting conflicts or potential conflicts of interest for Trust management. The Board holds four regular meetings each year to consider and address matters involving the Funds. The Board also may hold special meetings to address matters arising between regular meetings. In addition, the Independent Trustees regularly meet outside the presence of management and are advised by independent legal counsel. These meetings may take place in-person or by telephone.

The Board reviews its structure regularly and believes that its leadership structure, including having a super-majority of Independent Trustees, coupled with an Independent Chairperson, is appropriate and in the best interests of the Trust, given its specific characteristics. The Board of Trustees also believes its leadership structure facilitates the orderly and efficient flow of information to the Independent Trustees from Trust management.

When considering potential nominees to fill vacancies on the Board, and as part of its annual self-evaluation, the Board reviews the mix of skills and other relevant experiences of the Trustees.

Board Oversight of Risk

An integral part of the Board's overall responsibility for overseeing the management and operations of the Trust is the Board's oversight of the risk management of the Trust's investment programs and business affairs. The Funds are subject to a number of risks, such as investment risk, valuation risk, risk of operational failure or lack of business continuity, and legal, compliance and regulatory risk. The Funds, the Advisor, and other service providers to the Trust have implemented various processes, procedures, and controls to identify risks to the Funds, to lessen the probability of their occurrence, and to mitigate any adverse effect should they occur. Different processes, procedures, and controls are employed with respect to different types of risks.

The Board exercises oversight of the risk management process through the Audit Committee and through oversight by the Board itself. The Board holds four regular meetings each year to consider and address matters involving the Funds. The Board also may hold special meetings to address matters arising between regular meetings. In addition, the Independent Trustees regularly meet outside the presence of management and are advised by independent legal counsel. These meetings may take place in person or by telephone.

In addition to adopting, and periodically reviewing, policies and procedures designed to address risks to the Funds, the Board requires management of the Advisor and the Trust, including the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO"), to report to the Board and the Audit Committee of the Board on a variety of matters, including matters relating to risk management, at regular and special meetings. The Board and the Audit Committee receive regular reports from the Trust's independent public accountants on internal control and financial reporting matters. On at

least a quarterly basis, the Independent Trustees meet with the Trust's CCO, including outside the presence of management, to discuss issues related to compliance. Furthermore, the Board receives a quarterly report from the Trust's CCO regarding the operation of the compliance policies and procedures of the Trust and its primary service providers. The Board monitors the Funds' investment policies and procedures as well as valuation of the Funds' securities. The Board also receives quarterly reports from the Advisor on the investments and securities trading of the Funds, including their investment performance and asset weightings compared to appropriate benchmarks, as well as reports regarding the valuation of the Funds' securities. The Board also receives reports from the Trust's primary service providers regarding their operations as they relate to the Funds.

Investment Advisor

Rational Advisors, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Rational Capital LLC, has been retained by the Trust under Management Agreements to act as the investment advisor to the Funds, subject to the authority of the Board of Trustees. The Advisor (formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of Huntington National Bank and known as Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc.) was organized under the laws of Ohio in 2001. The Advisor was acquired by Rational Capital LLC on December 31, 2015. The Advisor oversees the day-to-day investment decisions for the Funds and continuously reviews, supervises and administers the Funds' investment programs. The address of the Advisor is 36 North New York Avenue, Huntington, NY 11743.

The Management Agreements provide that the Advisor will provide each Fund with investment advice and supervision and will continuously furnish an investment program for the Fund consistent with the investment objectives and policies of the Fund. The Advisor is responsible for the payment of the salaries and expenses of all of its personnel, office rent and the expenses of providing investment advisory and related clerical expenses.

Under the terms of the Management Agreements, the Advisor manages the investment of the assets of the each Fund in conformity with the investment objectives and policies of the Fund. It is the responsibility of the Advisor to make investment decisions for the Fund and to provide continuous supervision of the investment portfolio of the Fund.

For its services under the Management Agreement, the Advisor is paid a monthly management fee at the annual rates noted in the table below, based upon the average daily net assets of each Fund. The Advisor pays expenses incurred by it in connection with acting as advisor, other than costs (including taxes and brokerage commissions, borrowing costs, costs of investing in underlying funds and extraordinary expenses, if any) of securities purchased for the Fund and other expenses paid by the Fund as detailed in the Management Agreement. The Advisor pays for all employees, office space and facilities required by it to provide services under the Management Agreement, except for specific items of expense referred to below.

Fund	Percentage of Average Daily Net Assets		
	Rate for the First \$500 Million	Rate for the Next \$500 Million	Rate for Excess Over \$1 Billion
Huntington Dividend Capture Fund	0.75%	0.70%	0.65%
Huntington Global Select Markets Fund	1.00%	0.95%	0.90%
Huntington Real Strategies Fund	0.75%	0.70%	0.65%
Huntington Situs Fund	0.75%	0.70%	0.65%
Fund	Percenta	age of Average Daily N	Net Assets
Huntington Balanced Allocation			
Fund			0.10%

Except for the expenses described above that have been assumed by the Advisor, all expenses incurred in administration of a Fund will be charged to the Fund, including investment management fees; fees and expenses of the Board of Trustees; interest charges; taxes; brokerage commissions; expenses of valuing assets; expenses of continuing registration and qualification of the Fund and the shares under federal and state law; share issuance

expenses; fees and disbursements of independent accountants and legal counsel; fees and expenses of custodians, including subcustodians and securities depositories, transfer agents and shareholder account servicing organizations; expenses of preparing, printing and mailing prospectuses, reports, proxies, notices and statements sent to shareholders; expenses of shareholder meetings; costs of investing in underlying funds; and insurance premiums. Each Fund is also liable for nonrecurring expenses, including litigation to which it may from time to time be a party. Expenses incurred for the operation of the Portfolio, including the expenses of communications with its shareholders, are paid by the Fund.

The Advisor has contractually agreed to waive all or a portion of its investment advisory fee (based on average daily net assets) and/or reimburse certain operating expenses of each Fund to the extent necessary in order to limit each Fund's total annual fund operating expenses (after the fee waivers and/or expense reimbursements, and exclusive of acquired fund fees and expenses, brokerage costs, interest, taxes and dividends, and extraordinary expenses) to not more than the levels set forth in the table below (based on the average daily net assets of each Fund) through April 30, 2017. These Agreements shall terminate automatically upon the termination of the Management Agreement. The Adviser may elect in its discretion to terminate the Agreement for any period following the term period of the Agreement, but no such termination shall affect the obligation (including the amount of the obligation) of the Fund to repay amounts of waived fees or reimbursed expenses with respect to periods prior to such termination.

Fund Huntington Dividend Capture Fund	Expense Limitation 1.25%, 1.75% and 1.00% of the average daily net assets of Class A Shares, Class C Shares and Institutional Shares, respectively of the Fund
Huntington Global Select Markets Fund	1.50% and 1.25% of the average daily net assets of Class A Shares and Institutional Shares, respectively, of the Fund
Huntington Real Strategies Fund	1.25% and 1.00% of the average daily net assets of Class A Shares and Institutional Shares, respectively, of the Fund
Huntington Situs Fund	1.25%, 1.75% and 1.00% of the average daily net assets of Class A Shares, Class C Shares and Institutional Shares, respectively, of the Fund
Huntington Balanced Allocation Fund	0.70% of the average daily net assets of Class A Shares of the Fund

The Management Agreement with the Funds continues in effect for an initial two year term and then from year to year as long as its continuation is approved at least annually by the Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Trustees who are not "interested persons," or by the shareholders of the Funds. The Management Agreement may be terminated at any time upon 60 days' written notice by a Fund or by a majority vote of the outstanding shares or 90 days' written notice by the Advisor and will terminate automatically upon assignment.

The Management Agreement provides that the Advisor shall not be liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss suffered by the Trust in connection with the performance of its duties, except a loss resulting from a breach of fiduciary duty with respect to the receipt of compensation for services or a loss resulting from willful misfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence on the part of the Advisor in the performance of its duties, or from reckless disregard of its duties and obligations thereunder.

From time to time, the Advisor may use a portion of its reasonable resources and profits to pay for certain administrative services provided by financial institutions for Shares of the Funds.

The Sub-Advisor

The Cambridge Strategy (Asset Management) Limited ("Cambridge"), an investment advisory firm founded in 2003, has been retained to act as the "Sub-Advisor" to the Huntington Global Select Markets Fund under a Sub-Advisory Agreement with the Advisor. Cambridge is located at 7th Floor, Berger House, 36-38 Berkeley Square, London, W1J 5AE, United Kingdom, and 654 Madison Avenue, 16th Floor, New York, New York 10065. Cambridge is registered as an investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, and is an independent asset management firm. Mr. Edward D. Baker, Executive Chairman of Cambridge, David R. Thompson, Chief Investment Officer of Cambridge, Mr. Peter J. Henricks, Chief Executive Officer of Cambridge, and Mr. Lee Heung are control persons of Cambridge, due to each person's ownership of more than 25% of Cambridge.

As compensation for the sub-advisory services it provides to the Huntington Global Select Markets Fund, the Advisor will pay Cambridge 50% of the net advisory fees earned by the Advisor from the Fund. The fee paid to the Sub-Advisor by the Advisor will be paid from the Advisor's management fee and is not an additional cost to the Fund. The Sub-Advisory Agreement is effective for an initial two year period and continues in effect for successive twelve-month periods, provided that the Board of Trustees annually approves it for continuance.

Portfolio Manager Information

David Miller and Michael Schoonover are Portfolio Managers of the Funds and are jointly and primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the portfolios of the Dividend Capture Fund, Real Strategies Fund, Situs Fund and Balanced Allocation Fund.

Mike Newton, Edward Baker, Samuel Kwong, Mathias Wikberg and Walid Khalfallah are the Portfolio Managers for the Global Select Markets Fund and are jointly and primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund's portfolio.

Unless otherwise noted, the following information about the Funds' portfolio managers is provided as of December 31, 2015 and no "Other Account" described below has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of that account.

Dividend Capture Fund

Other Accounts Managed By David Miller	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	8 funds/\$447 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0
Other Accounts Managed By Michael Schoonover Registered Investment Companies	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets 14 funds/\$303 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0

Global Select Markets Fund

Other Accounts Managed By Mike Newton	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	0/\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	2/\$30 Million

Other Accounts Managed ByEdward Baker	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	0/\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	2/\$30 Million

Other Accounts Managed By Samuel Kwong	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	0/\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	2/\$30 Million

Other Accounts Managed	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/
By Mathias Wikberg	Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	0/\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	2/\$30 Million

Other Accounts Managed By Walid Khalfallah	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	0/\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	2/\$30 Million

Real Strategies Fund

Other Accounts Managed By David Miller	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	8 funds/\$447 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0

Other Accounts Managed	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/
By Michael Schoonover	Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	14 funds/\$303 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0

Situs Fund

Other Accounts Managed By David Miller	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	8 funds/\$447 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0
Other Accounts Managed By Michael Scheeneyer	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/

By Michael Schoonover	Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	14 funds/\$303 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0

Balanced Allocation Fund

Other Accounts Managed By David Miller	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets
Registered Investment Companies	8 funds/\$447 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0
Other Accounts Managed By Michael Schoonover	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/ Total Assets

By Michael Schoonover	I otal Assets
Registered Investment Companies	14 funds/\$303 million
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0/\$0
Other Accounts	0/\$0

Compensation

Mr. Miller's compensation from the Advisor is based on a percentage of the overall profits of the Advisor. He is also entitled to a portion of the proceeds if the Advisor sells all or a portion of the Advisor's business. Mr. Schoonover's compensation from the Advisor is a fixed base salary and a discretionary bonus based on performance and the profitability of the Funds that he serves as a portfolio manager. They also participate in a pension plan.

Messrs. Newton, Baker, Kwong, Wikberg and Khalfallah's compensation from Cambridge is a fixed base salary and an annual discretionary bonus based on the profits of Cambridge.

Advisor Conflicts of Interest

As a general matter, certain actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise in connection with a portfolio manager's management of the Funds' investments, on the one hand, and the investments of other accounts for which the portfolio manager is responsible, on the other. For example, the management of multiple accounts may result in a portfolio manager devoting unequal time and attention to the management of each account. Although the Advisor does not track the time a portfolio manager spends on a single portfolio, the Advisor does periodically assess whether a portfolio manager has adequate time and resources to effectively manage all of the accounts for which he or she is responsible. It is also possible that the various accounts managed could have different investment strategies that, at times, might conflict with one another. Alternatively, to the extent that the same investment opportunities might be desirable for more than one account, possible conflicts could arise in determining how to allocate them.

The Funds may invest in affiliated funds advised by the Advisor. The Advisor is subject to conflicts of interest in allocating a Fund's assets among the affiliated funds. An affiliate of the Advisor will receive revenue when the Advisor selects an affiliated fund rather than an unaffiliated fund for inclusion in a Fund. This conflict may provide an incentive for the Advisor to invest Fund assets in affiliated funds that perform less well than unaffiliated funds. The Advisor may have an incentive to allocate the Fund's assets to those affiliated funds for which the net advisory fees payable to the Advisor are higher than the fees payable by other affiliated funds.

Other potential conflicts might include conflicts created by specific portfolio manager compensation arrangements, and conflicts relating to selection of brokers or dealers to execute Fund portfolio trades and/or specific uses of commissions from Fund portfolio trades (for example, research, or "soft dollars").

The Advisor has adopted and implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, which it believes address the conflicts associated with managing multiple accounts for multiple clients. In addition, the Advisor monitors a variety of areas, including compliance with account investment guidelines and compliance with the Advisor's Code of Ethics. Finally, the Advisor has structured the portfolio managers' compensation in a manner, and the Funds have adopted policies and procedures, reasonably designed to safeguard the Funds from being negatively affected as a result of any such potential conflicts.

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016, THE SECTIONS TITLED "DISTRIBUTOR", "ADMINISTRATION SERVICES" AND "TRANSFER AGENT AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT" IN THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ARE REPLACED WITH THE FOLLOWING:

Distributor

Unified Financial Securities, LLC ("Distributor") is the Funds' Distributor. The Distributor offers Shares on a continuous, best-efforts basis and markets the Shares to insurance companies. The Distributor and its affiliates may pay out of their assets other amounts (including items of material value) to investment professionals for marketing and servicing Shares. From time to time, the Distributor may pay out of its reasonable profits and other resources (including those of its affiliates) advertising, marketing and other expenses for the benefit of the Funds.

Administration Services

Ultimus Asset Services, LLC ("Ultimus") provides administration, financial administration and accounting services at rates agreed upon from time to time with the Trust.

Transfer Agent and Dividend Disbursing Agent

Ultimus also serves as the transfer agent and dividend disbursing agent for the Trust.

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016, THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS ADDED TO THE SECTION CONTAINED IN THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TITLED "SERVICE PROVIDERS":

Management and Legal Administration Services

MFund Services LLC ("MFund") provides the Funds with various management and administrative services. For these services, the Funds pay MFund \$5,000 annually and an annual asset-based fee in accordance with the schedule set forth below applied at the Fund family level (i.e., all the Funds in the Trust advised by Rational Advisors LLC):

0.10% of net assets up to \$50 million; 0.07% of net assets from \$50 million to \$100 million; 0.05% of net assets from \$100 million to \$250 million; 0.04% of net assets from \$250 million to \$500 million; 0.03% of net assets from \$500 million to \$1 billion; 0.02% of net assets from \$1 billion

In addition, the Funds reimburse MFund for any reasonable out- of- pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties under the Management Services Agreement. Jerry Szilagyi is the controlling member of MFund Services, the controlling member of the Advisor and its parent company.

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016, THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS ADDED TO THE SECTION CONTAINED IN THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TITLED "VOTING PROXIES ON FUND PORTFOLIO SECURITIES":

Sub-Advisor's Policies (With respect to Huntington Global Select Markets Fund)

The Sub-Advisor will vote proxies on behalf of the Fund in the best interest of the shareholders of the Fund. The Sub-Advisor's Chief Compliance Officer is in charge of voting all client proxies, corporate reorganizations, and other corporate actions on behalf of the Fund (collectively referred to as "proxies" for this policy). The Sub-Advisor's Chief Compliance Officer is responsible for ensuring all records are retained per the requirements set forth under the Advisers Act.

The Sub-Advisor has engaged a third party proxy voting service to receive and review proxy voting statements, provide information and research, make proxy voting recommendations, and handle the administrative functions associated with the voting of proxies. The proxy voting guidelines are provided to the proxy voting service to assure the Sub-Advisor's intent with regard to voting proxies in the best interest of clients is observed in the execution of the proxy voting services provided. The Sub-Advisor will generally vote proxies in accordance with these recommendations, but reserves the right to exercise its own judgment on a case-by-case basis. If the Sub-Advisor determines that voting a particular proxy would create a material conflict of interest between the Sub-Advisor's interest or the interests of any of its affiliated parties and the client's best interests, the Sub-Advisor will vote such proxy based upon the recommendations of the third party proxy voting service. The Sub-Advisor's Chief Compliance Officer is ultimately responsible for ensuring that all proxies received by the Sub-Advisor are voted in a timely manner and in a manner consistent with the Sub-Advisor's determination of the client's best interests. Although many proxy proposals may be voted in accordance with the guidelines established in the Sub-Advisor's Proxy Voting Policies, some proposals require special consideration which may dictate an exception to the policies and procedures.

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016, THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE SECTION TITLED "CODE OF ETHICS" IS REPLACED IN ITS ENTIRETY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

CODE OF ETHICS

Each of the Trust, the Advisor, the Sub-Advisor and the Distributor maintains a Code of Ethics which permits the Trustees and certain employees to invest in securities for their own accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by a Fund, subject to certain preclearance and blackout provisions that minimize potential conflicts of interest. Although they do permit these persons to trade in securities, including those in which a Fund may invest, they also contain significant safeguards designed to protect the Trust and its shareholders from abuses in this area, such as requirements to obtain prior approval for, and to report, particular transactions. As of the date of this SAI, copies of these Codes of Ethics have been filed with the SEC as exhibits to the Trust's Registration Statement.

THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS (the "Trust")

HUNTINGTON DIVIDEND CAPTURE FUND HUNTINGTON GLOBAL SELECT MARKETS FUND HUNTINGTON REAL STRATEGIES FUND HUNTINGTON SITUS FUND HUNTINGTON BALANCED ALLOCATION FUND (each a "Fund" and together the "Funds")

SUPPLEMENT DATED OCTOBER 30, 2015, TO THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS' PROSPECTUS AND STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION DATED APRIL 30, 2015, AS AMENDED

On September 3, 2015, The Huntington National Bank, the sole shareholder of Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc. (the "Advisor"), the Funds' investment advisor, entered into an agreement to sell the Advisor to Rational Capital LLC (the "Transaction"). Under the Investment Company Act of 1940, the closing of the Transaction (the "Closing") will cause the Trust's current investment advisory agreement with the Advisor to terminate. In connection with the Transaction, the Trust's Board of Trustees has approved the following:

- a new investment advisory agreement with the Advisor (to be renamed Rational Advisors, Inc.) with respect to each Fund;
- a Subadvisory Agreement between the Advisor and The Cambridge Strategy (Asset Management) Limited ("Cambridge") with respect to the Huntington Global Select Markets Fund;
- nominees to replace certain of the current Trustees on the Board of Trustees of the Trust; and
- a proposal to permit the Advisor, as the investment advisor to the Funds, to hire and replace subadvisors or to modify subadvisory agreements with respect to any Fund without shareholder approval.

Each of these items will be submitted to the shareholders of the applicable Funds for their approval at a joint special meeting of shareholders that has been scheduled for December 18, 2015. The Closing is subject to certain shareholder approvals and other conditions to closing, and is currently expected to occur on December 31, 2015.

Effective upon Closing, it is expected that the contractual limitation imposed by the Advisor on each Fund's total annual fund operating expenses (exclusive of acquired fund fees and expenses, brokerage costs, interest, taxes and dividends, and extraordinary expenses) will be revised as follows:

			Fund Operating er Fee Waivers Reimbursements
Fund	Share Class	Pre-Closing	Post-Closing
Huntington Balanced Allocation Fund	Class A Shares	0.70%	0.70%
Huntington Dividend Capture Fund	Class A Shares	1.13%	1.25%
•	Class C Shares	1.63%	1.75%
	Institutional Shares	0.88%	1.00%
Huntington Global Select Markets Fund	Class A Shares	1.12%	1.50%
-	Institutional Shares	0.87%	1.25%
Huntington Real Strategies Fund	Class A Shares	1.29%	1.25%
	Institutional Shares	1.04%	1.00%
Huntington Situs Fund	Class A Shares	1.28%	1.25%
-	Class C Shares	1.78%	1.75%
	Institutional Shares	1.03%	1.00%

Additionally, it is expected that the Advisor will have new management after the Closing. In connection with the anticipated change in management, it is expected that the Funds' portfolio managers primarily responsible for overseeing the Funds' investments, effective upon the Closing, will be as follows:

With respect to all Funds except the Huntington Global Select Markets Fund:

David Miller

Senior Portfolio Manager. Service with the Funds since 2016.

Co-founder of Catalyst Capital Advisors LLC ("Catalyst"), an affiliate of Rational Capital LLC, in 2006. He is responsible for the day-to-day management of several funds managed by Catalyst and its affiliates. Prior to founding Catalyst, Mr. Miller was the CEO of Investment Catalyst, an investment newsletter he founded in 2005, which worked to identify undervalued stocks with a near term catalyst for appreciation.

Michael Schoonover

Portfolio Manager. Service with the Funds since 2016.

Portfolio manager of Catalyst since November 2013. He is responsible for the day-to-day management of several other funds managed by Catalyst and its affiliates. Mr. Schoonover began his association with Catalyst in 2011 as a research consultant supporting the implementation and back testing of quantitative strategies. In March 2013, he became a senior analyst at Catalyst to provide investment research for several mutual funds. From 2005-2011, he served in various technical and scientific management roles with the Perrigo Company.

With respect to the Huntington Global Select Markets Fund:

Mike Newton

Chief Investment Officer. Service with the Fund since 2016.

Chief Investment Officer for Cambridge's Global Emerging Market Equities program since May 2015. Previously, Mr. Newton was Director of Macro Research and a Senior Macro Portfolio Manager at Caxton Associates LP and Senior Macro Portfolio Manager in the FX Global Trading Group at Citadel LLC.

Edward Baker

Executive Chairman. Service with the Fund since 2016.

Mr. Baker joined Cambridge in 2007 and is responsible for the firm's emerging markets equities strategies and leadership of the firm's research effort.

Samuel Kwong

Senior Portfolio Manager. Service with the Fund since 2016.

Mr. Kwong joined Cambridge in 2009 and is responsible for the firm's Asian Equities portfolios.

Mathias Wikberg

Senior Portfolio Manager. Service with the Fund since 2016.

Senior Portfolio Manager for Cambridge's EMEA and Latin America programs since May 2015. Previously, Mr. Wikberg was Head of Sales & Trading at Visor Capital and, prior to that, Portfolio Manager for Sturgeon Capital/Compass Asset Management, a Frontier Market specialist hedge fund based in Almaty, Kazakhstan and London, UK.

Walid Khalfallah

Senior Portfolio Manager. Service with the Fund since 2016.

Mr. Khalfallah joined Cambridge in 2009 and is jointly responsible for the firm's Emerging Markets Macro Strategy and has primary responsibility for the firm's EMEA equity portfolios.

The foregoing is not a solicitation of any proxy. Once a Proxy Statement regarding the above proposals has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and has become effective, shareholders will receive a copy of the Proxy Statement. You may also obtain a free copy of the Proxy Statement by calling The Huntington Funds at 800-253-0412 or visiting www.huntingtonfunds.com. You should carefully read and consider the Proxy Statement before voting on any proposal. The Proxy Statement also will be available without charge on the SEC's web site (www.sec.gov).

THE HUNTINGTON FUNDS HUNTINGTON MONEY MARKET FUND HUNTINGTON U.S. TREASURY MONEY MARKET FUND

HUNTINGTON DIVIDEND CAPTURE FUND HUNTINGTON GLOBAL SELECT MARKETS FUND HUNTINGTON REAL STRATEGIES FUND HUNTINGTON SITUS FUND

HUNTINGTON BALANCED ALLOCATION FUND

CLASS A SHARES CLASS C SHARES INSTITUTIONAL SHARES INTERFUND SHARES

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This Statement of Additional Information (SAI) contains information which may be of interest to investors in The Huntington Funds (the "Trust" or the "Funds") but which is not included in the applicable Prospectuses for Class A Shares, Class C Shares Institutional Shares, or Interfund Shares. This SAI is not a prospectus and is only authorized for distribution when accompanied or preceded by the Prospectuses dated April 30, 2015, as applicable, for Class A Shares, Class C Shares, Institutional Shares, and Interfund Shares. This SAI should be read together with the applicable Prospectuses. The SAI incorporates by reference the Funds' Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Investors may obtain a free copy of a Prospectus or Annual Report by writing the Funds at The Huntington Funds, P.O. Box 6110, Indianapolis, IN 46206, or by telephoning toll free 800-253-0412. These documents are also available on the Funds' website at www.huntingtonfunds.com. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this SAI have the same meanings as set forth in the Prospectuses.

April 30, 2015

TICKER SYMBOLS

Huntington Money Market Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HFIXX) Huntington Money Market Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HFDXX) Huntington Money Market Fund – Interfund Shares

Huntington U. S. Treasury Money Market Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HUIXX) Huntington U. S. Treasury Money Market Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HTTXX)

Huntington Dividend Capture Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HDCAX) Huntington Dividend Capture Fund – Class C Shares (Ticker HDCEX) Huntington Dividend Capture Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HDCTX)

Huntington Global Select Markets Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HGSAX) Huntington Global Select Markets Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HGSIX)

Huntington Real Strategies Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HRSAX) Huntington Real Strategies Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HRSTX)

Huntington Situs Fund – Class A Shares (Ticker HSUAX) Huntington Situs Fund – Class C Shares (Ticker HSUCX) Huntington Situs Fund – Institutional Shares (Ticker HSUTX)

Huntington Balanced Allocation Fund - Class A Shares (Ticker HBAFX)

Table of Contents

DEFINITIONS	Page 8
HOW ARE THE FUNDS ORGANIZED?	8
SECURITIES IN WHICH THE FUNDS INVEST	9
INVESTMENT PRACTICES	13
Adjustable Rate Notes and Variable and Floating Rate Instruments	13
American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), European Depositary Receipts (EDRs), Continental Depositary Receipts (CDRs) and Global Depositary Receipts (GDRs)	13
Asset-backed Securities (Non-mortgage)	14
Certificates of Deposit	14
Commercial Paper	14
Common Stock	14
Convertible Securities	14
Corporate Debt (Including Bonds, Notes and Debentures)	14
Credit-Enhanced Securities	14
Defensive Investments	15
Demand Notes	15
Derivative Contracts	15
Equity Securities	15
Exchange-Traded Commodity Funds ("ETCFs")	15
Exchange-Traded Funds ("ETFs")/Index-Based Securities and Ultrashort ETFs	15
Fixed Income Securities	16
Foreign Currency Options (also see "Options")	16
Foreign Currency Transactions and Foreign Exchange Contracts	16
Forward Foreign Currency and Foreign Currency Futures Contracts	17
Foreign Government Securities	18
Foreign Securities (including Emerging Markets)	18
Futures Contracts and Options on Futures Contracts	19
Index Futures Contracts and Options on Index Futures Contracts	21
Inflation-Protected Securities	22
Interests in Other Business Organizations	22
Investment Company Securities, including Money Market Mutual Funds	22

Money Market Instruments	Page 23
Commercial Paper, Demand Notes, Variable Amount Demand Notes and Variable Amount Master Demand Notes	23
Bank Obligations	23
Certificates of Deposit and Time Deposits	23 24
Mortgage Dollar Roll Transactions	24
Mortgage-related Securities	24
Mortgage Pass-through Securities	25
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Securities	25
Derivative Mortgage Securities	26
Municipal Securities	26
Non-Investment Grade Securities	27
Obligations of Supranational Entities	27
Options	27
Preferred Stock	29
Real Estate Investment Trusts ("REITs")	29
Repurchase Agreements	29
Restricted and Illiquid Securities	29
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	29
Securities Lending	30
Small Cap/Special Equity Situation Securities	30
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper and Tax-Exempt Securities	30
Time Deposits	32
Treasury Receipts	32
Unit Investment Trusts	32
U.S. Government Securities	32
U.S. Treasury Obligations	33
U.S. Treasury Security Futures Contracts and Options	33
Warrants	33
When-issued and Delayed Delivery Transactions	33
Zero-coupon Securities	33
INVESTMENT RISKS	35
Active Trading Risk	35
4	

	Page
ADR and Domestically Traded Foreign Securities Risk	35
Advisor's Potential Conflict Risk	35
Allocation Risk	35
Asset-Backed Securities Risk	35
Call Risk	35
Class/Sector/Region Focus Risk	35
Commodities-Related Investment Risk	36
Correlation Risk	36
Counterparty Risk	36
Credit Enhancement Risk	36
<u>Credit Risk</u>	36
Derivative and Hybrid Instruments Risk	37
Emerging Markets Risk	37
Equity Securities Risk	37
Exchange-Traded Commodity Funds Risk ("ETCFs")	37
Exchange-Traded Funds/Index-Based Securities Risk	38
Extension Risk	38
Fee Layering Risk	38
Foreign Custodial Services and Related Investment Costs Risk	38
Foreign Investment/Currency Risk	38
Government Intervention and Extreme Volatility Risk	38
Hedging Risk	39
Interest Rate Risk	39
Investment Style Risk	39
Leverage Risk	39
Liquidity Risk	39
Management Risk	40
Manager Risk	40
Market Capitalization Risk	40
Market Risk	40
Money Market Reform Regulatory Risk	40
Mid/Small Cap Stock Risk	40
Mortgage-backed and Asset-backed Securities Risk	40

	Page
Non-Investment Grade Securities Risk	41
Prepayment Risk	41
Recoupment Risk	41
Securities Linked to the Real Estate Market and REIT Risk	41
Security-Specific Risk	42
Small and Medium Sized Company Risk	42
Ultrashort ETFs Risk	42
Unrated Securities Risk	43
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	44
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER	46
WHO MANAGES AND PROVIDES SERVICES TO THE FUNDS?	47
Trustees and Officers	47
Committees of the Board of Trustees	51
Trustee Ownership of Shares in a Fund and In the Huntington Complex	52
Qualifications and Experience of the Trustees	52
Board Structure	53
Board Oversight of Risk	53
Investment Advisor	54
Portfolio Manager Information	55
Advisor Conflicts of Interest	58
VOTING PROXIES ON FUND PORTFOLIO SECURITIES	59
PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION	61
CODE OF ETHICS	65
FRONT-END SALES CHARGE REALLOWANCES	65
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES	66
ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES	66
SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENTS	66
UNDERWRITING COMMISSIONS	67
FEES PAID BY THE FUNDS FOR SERVICES	68
PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES	72
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS	75
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	78
TAXES	80

	Page
DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS	84
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION	85
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	87
INVESTMENT RATINGS	88

DEFINITIONS

For convenience, we will use	the fo	ollowing terms throughout this SAI.
"Advisers Act"	—	Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.
"Advisor"	_	Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc., the Trust's investment advisor.
"Asset Allocation Fund"	_	Balanced Allocation Fund.
"Code"	_	Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
"Distributor"	_	Unified Financial Securities, Inc., the Trust's distributor.
"Equity Funds"	_	Dividend Capture Fund, Global Select Markets Fund, Real Strategies Fund and Situs Fund.
"Funds"	—	Each of the separate investment portfolios covered by this SAI.
"HASI"		Huntington Asset Services, Inc., the Trust's Administrator, Transfer Agent and Dividend Disbursing Agent and Fund Accountant.
"Huntington National Bank"	_	The Huntington National Bank, Custodian of the Funds.
"Independent Trustees"	_	Trustees who are not "interested persons" of the Trust, as defined in the 1940 Act.
"Interested Trustees"	—	Trustees who are "interested persons" of the Trust, as defined in the 1940 Act.
"Money Market Funds"	_	Money Market Fund and U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund.
"1940 Act"	—	The Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
"NRSRO"	—	Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization such as Moody's Investor Service (Moody's) or Standard & Poor's Ratings Services (S&P).
"Prospectus"	—	Each of the separate Prospectuses of the Funds.
"Trust"	_	The Huntington Funds.
"Underlying Funds"		Other portfolios of the Huntington Funds, Huntington Strategy Shares and unaffiliated mutual funds and exchange-traded funds (ETFs) in which the Asset Allocation Fund invests.

HOW ARE THE FUNDS ORGANIZED?

This SAI covers the Trust's retail Funds and each Fund covered by this SAI is a diversified portfolio of the Trust. The Trust was originally two separate Massachusetts business trusts: The Huntington Funds, established on February 10, 1987, and Huntington VA Funds, established on June 30, 1999 (together, the "Original Trusts"). The Original Trusts were reorganized into a single Delaware statutory trust retaining the name of The Huntington Funds on June 23, 2006. The Trust is registered under the 1940 Act as an openend management investment company. The Trust may offer separate series of Shares representing interests in separate portfolios of securities. The Trust operates 9 separate series, or mutual funds, including 7 retail portfolios and 2 variable annuity portfolios, each with its own investment objective and strategy. A separate Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information offer 2 variable annuity portfolios.

Much of the information contained in this SAI expands upon subjects discussed in the Funds' Prospectus. No investment in units of beneficial interest ("Shares") of a Fund should be made without first reading a Fund's Prospectus.

The Board of Trustees ("Trustees") has established four classes of Shares of the Funds. All of the Funds (except the Balanced Allocation Fund) offer Class A Shares and Institutional Shares. Effective December 13, 2013, each of the Funds' Trust Shares were renamed Institutional Shares. Only the Huntington Money Market Fund offers Interfund Shares.

The Balanced Allocation Fund offer Class A Shares only. In addition to Class A Shares and Institutional Shares, the Dividend Capture Fund and Situs Fund offer Class C Shares.

SECURITIES IN WHICH THE FUNDS INVEST

In pursuing its investment strategy, each Fund may invest in the following types of securities for any purpose that is consistent with such Fund's investment goal. As described in the Prospectus, the Huntington Balanced Allocation Fund (also referred to herein as "Asset Allocation Fund") seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing in a combination of Underlying Funds managed by the Advisor, as well as unaffiliated mutual funds and exchange-traded funds ("ETFs"). The types of securities shown for the Asset Allocation Fund in the table represent the investments held by the Underlying Funds. Following is a table that indicates which types of securities are:

P = Principal investment of a Fund;

A = Acceptable (but not principal) investment of a Fund; or

N = Not an acceptable investment of a Fund.

	Money Market Fund	U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund
Fixed Income Securities		
Treasury Receipts	Ν	Ν
U.S. Treasury Obligations	А	Р
U.S. Government Agency Securities	Р	А
Bonds	А	А
Certificates of Deposit	А	Ν
Corporate Debt Securities	А	Ν
Commercial Paper	Р	Ν
Foreign Bonds	Ν	Ν
Demand Notes	А	Ν
Taxable Municipal Securities	А	Ν
Mortgage-backed Securities	Ν	А
Asset Backed Securities (Non-mortgage)	А	А
Zero Coupon Securities	А	А
Bankers' Acceptances	А	Ν
Credit Enhancement	А	Ν
Money Market Instruments	Р	Р
Tax Exempt Securities		
General Obligation Bonds	А	Ν
Revenue Bonds	А	Ν
Tax Exempt Commercial Paper	А	Ν
Tax Increment Financing Bonds	А	Ν
Municipal Notes	А	Ν
Variable Rate Instruments	А	А
Municipal Leases	А	Ν
Special Transactions		
Repurchase Agreements	А	Р
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	А	Ν
Delayed Delivery Transactions	А	А
Securities Lending	А	А
Illiquid Securities	А	А
Restricted Securities	А	А
Time Deposits	А	Ν
When-Issued Securities	А	А

	Money Market Fund	U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund
Investment Company Securities	A	A
Short Sales	Ν	Ν
Unit Investment Trusts	Ν	Ν

	Dividend Capture Fund	Global Select Markets Fund	Real Strategies Fund	Situs Fund
Equity Securities	<u></u>			
Common Stocks	Р	Р	Р	Р
Preferred Stocks	Р	Р	А	А
Real Estate Investment Trusts	Р	Р	Р	А
Warrants	А	А	А	А
Other Business Organizations	Р	А	А	А
Index-Based Securities/ETFs	А	А	Р	А
Ultrashort ETFs	А	А	А	А
ETCFs	Ν	Ν	Р	Ν
Fixed Income Securities				
Treasury Receipts	А	А	А	А
U.S. Treasury Obligations	A	P	A	A
U.S. Government Agency Securities	A	N	A	A
Bonds	A	A	A	A
Certificates of Deposit	А	А	А	А
Corporate Debt Securities	А	Р	А	А
Commercial Paper	А	А	А	А
Demand Notes	А	А	А	А
Mortgage-backed Securities	А	Ν	А	А
Asset Backed Securities (Non-mortgage)	Ν	Ν	А	А
Zero Coupon Securities	А	Р	А	А
Inflation Protected Securities	А	А	А	А
Bankers' Acceptances	А	Р	А	А
Investment Grade Securities	А	Р	А	А
Non-Investment Grade Securities	Ν	А	Ν	Ν
Convertible Securities	А	А	А	А
Money Market Instruments	А	А	А	А
Tax Exempt Securities				
General Obligation Bonds	Ν	Ν	Ν	Ν
Revenue Bonds	Ν	N	Ν	Ν
Tax Exempt Commercial Paper	Ν	Ν	Ν	Ν
Tax Increment Financing Bonds	N	N	Ν	Ν
Municipal Securities	Ν	Ν	Ν	Ν
Variable Rate Instruments	А	Ν	А	А
Foreign Securities				
American Depositary Receipts	А	Р	Р	А
Currency Exchange Transactions	Ν	А	А	А
European Depositary Receipts	N	Р	A	A
Global Depositary Receipts	N	P	A	A
Foreign Bonds	А	Р	А	Ν
Foreign Forward Currency Contracts	А	Р	А	А
Foreign Exchange Contracts	Ν	Р	А	А
Obligations of Supranational Agencies	Ν	Р	А	А

	Dividend <u>Capture Fund</u>	Global Select Markets Fund	Real Strategies Fund	Situs Fund
Derivative Contracts				
Options	А	Р	А	А
Options on equities	А	Р	А	А
Options on debt securities	А	Р	А	А
Options on stock indices	А	Р	А	А
Options on futures	А	Р	А	А
Options on stock index futures	А	Р	А	А
Options on currencies	А	А	А	А
Futures	А	Р	А	А
Interest rate futures	А	Р	А	А
Stock index futures	А	Р	А	А
Foreign currency futures	Ν	Р	А	А
Other commodity futures	Ν	Р	А	Ν
Special Transactions				
Repurchase Agreements	А	А	А	А
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	А	А	А	А
Delayed Delivery Transactions	А	А	А	А
Securities Lending	А	А	А	А
Illiquid Securities	А	А	А	А
Restricted Securities	А	А	А	А
Time Deposits	А	А	А	А
When-Issued Securities	А	А	А	А
Yankee Bonds	А	А	А	А
Investment Company Securities	А	Р	А	А
Short Sales	Ν	Ν	Ν	Ν
Unit Investment Trusts	А	Ν	А	А

	Balanced Allocation Fund
Equity Securities	
Common Stocks	А
Preferred Stocks	А
Real Estate Investment Trusts	А
Warrants	А
Other Business Organizations	А
Ultrashort ETFs	А
Index-Based Securities/ETFs	А
ETCFs	А
Fixed Income Securities	
Treasury Receipts	А
U.S. Treasury Obligations	А
U.S. Government Agency Securities	А
Bonds	А
Certificates of Deposit	А
Corporate Debt Securities	А
Commercial Paper	А
Demand Notes	А

	Balanced Allocation Fund
Mortgage-backed Securities	A
Asset Backed Securities (Non-mortgage)	Α
Zero Coupon Securities	А
Bankers' Acceptances	А
Investment Grade Securities	А
Convertible Securities	А
Money Market Instruments	А
Tax Exempt Securities	
General Obligation Bonds	А
Revenue Bonds	А
Tax Exempt Commercial Paper	Α
Tax Increment Financing Bonds	А
Municipal Notes	Α
Variable Rate Instruments	А
Municipal Leases	А
Foreign Securities	
American Depositary Receipts	Α
Currency exchange Transactions	А
European Depositary Receipts	А
Global Depositary Receipts	А
Foreign Bonds	А
Foreign Forward Currency Contracts	А
Foreign Exchange Contracts	А
Obligations of Supranational Agencies	А
Derivative Contracts	
Options	Α
Options on equities	А
Options on debt securities	А
Options on stock indices	А
Options on futures	А
Options on stock index futures	А
Options on currencies	Α
Futures	А
Interest rate futures	A
Stock index futures	А
Foreign Currency Futures	A
Other commodity futures	N
Special Transactions	
Repurchase Agreements	A
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	А
Delayed Delivery Transactions	А
Securities Lending	А
Illiquid Securities	А
Restricted Securities	А
Time Deposits	А
When-Issued Securities	А
Yankee Bonds	А
Investment Company Securities	Р
Short Sales	Ν
Unit Investment Trusts	Α

INVESTMENT PRACTICES

The Prospectus for each Fund discusses the principal investment strategies of the Funds and the underlying Funds. Below you will find more detail about the types of investments and investment practices permitted by each Fund, including the underlying Funds, as noted in the preceding table, including those which are not part of a Fund's and/or underlying Fund's principal investment strategy.

Adjustable Rate Notes and Variable and Floating Rate Instruments

Adjustable rate notes include variable rate notes and floating rate notes. For Money Market Fund purposes, a variable rate note is one whose terms provide for the readjustment of its interest rate on set dates and that, upon such readjustment, can reasonably be expected to have a market value that approximates its amortized cost. The degree to which a variable rate note's market value approximates its amortized cost subsequent to readjustment will depend on the frequency of the readjustment of the note's interest rate and the length of time that must elapse before the next readjustment. A floating rate note is one whose terms provide for the readjustment of its interest rate whenever a specified interest rate changes and that, at any time, can reasonably be expected to have a market value that approximates its amortized cost. Variable or floating rate securities may have provisions that allow them to be tendered back to remarketing agents at par value plus accrued interest. Liquidity for these securities is provided by irrevocable letters of credit and stand-by purchase agreements. The absence of an active secondary market, however, could make it difficult for the Fund to dispose of a variable or floating rate note in the event the issuer of the note defaulted on its payment obligations and the Fund could, as a result or for other reasons, suffer a loss to the extent of the default. Variable or floating rate notes may be secured by bank letters of credit or insured as to payment of principal and interest. A demand instrument with a demand notice period exceeding seven days may be considered illiquid if there is no secondary market for such security. Such security will be subject to a Fund's limitation governing investments in "illiquid" securities, unless such notes are subject to a demand feature that will permit the Fund to receive payment of the principal within seven days of the Fund's demand. See "INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS" found on page 44 below.

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), European Depositary Receipts (EDRs), Continental Depositary Receipts (CDRs) and Global Depositary Receipts (GDRs)

ADRs are securities, typically issued by a U.S. financial institution (a "depositary"), that evidence ownership interests in a security or a pool of securities issued by a foreign issuer and deposited with the depositary. ADRs include American Depositary Shares and New York Shares. EDRs, which are sometimes referred to as CDRs, are securities, typically issued by a non-U.S. financial institution, that evidence ownership interests in a security or a pool of securities issued by either a U.S. or foreign issuer. GDRs are issued globally and evidence a similar ownership arrangement. Generally, ADRs are designed for trading in the U.S. securities markets, EDRs are designed for trading in European securities markets and GDRs are designed for trading in non-U.S. securities markets. ADRs, EDRs, CDRs and GDRs may be available for investment through "sponsored" or "unsponsored" facilities. A sponsored facility is established jointly by the issuer of the security underlying the receipt and a depositary. Holders of an unsponsored depositary receipt generally bear all the costs of the unsponsored facility. The depositary of an unsponsored facility frequently is under no obligation to distribute shareholder communications received from the issuer of the deposited security or to pass through to the holders of the receipts voting rights with respect to the deposited securities.

Asset-backed Securities (Non-mortgage)

Asset-backed securities are instruments secured by company receivables, truck and auto loans, leases, and credit card receivables. Such securities are generally issued as pass-through certificates, which represent undivided fractional ownership interests in the underlying pools of assets. Such securities also may be debt instruments, which are also known as collateralized obligations and are generally issued as the debt of a special purpose entity, such as a trust, organized solely for the purpose of owning such assets and issuing such debt.

The purchase of non-mortgage asset-backed securities raises risk considerations particular to the financing of the instruments underlying such securities. Like mortgages underlying mortgage-backed securities, underlying automobile sales contracts or credit card receivables are subject to substantial prepayment risk, which may reduce the overall return to certificate holders. Nevertheless, principal prepayment rates tend not to vary as much in response to changes in interest rates and the short-term nature of the underlying car loans or other receivables tend to dampen the impact of any change in the prepayment level. Certificate holders may also experience delays in payment on the certificates if the full amounts due on underlying sales contracts or receivables are not realized by the trust because of unanticipated legal or administrative costs of enforcing the contracts or because of depreciation or damage to the collateral (usually automobiles) securing certain contracts, or other factors.

Certificates of Deposit

For a discussion of Certificates of Deposit, please see the "Money Market Instruments" discussion in this section.

Commercial Paper

For a discussion of Commercial Paper, please see the "Money Market Instruments" discussion in this section.

Common Stock

Common stock is a type of equity security which represents an ownership interest in a corporation and the right to a portion of the assets of the corporation in the event of liquidation. This right, however, is subordinate to that of preferred stockholders and any creditors, including holders of debt issued by the corporation. Owners of common stock are generally entitled to vote on important matters. A corporation may pay dividends on common stock.

Convertible Securities

Convertible securities include fixed income securities that may be exchanged or converted into a predetermined number of shares of the issuer's underlying common stock at the option of the holder during a specified period. Convertible securities may take the form of convertible preferred stock, convertible bonds or debentures, units consisting of "usable" bonds and warrants or a combination of the features of several of these securities. The investment characteristics of each convertible security vary widely, which allows convertible securities to be employed for a variety of investment strategies. A Fund will exchange or convert the convertible securities held in its portfolio into shares of the underlying common stock when, in the Advisor's opinion, the investment characteristics of the underlying common shares will assist the Fund in achieving its investment objective. Otherwise the Fund may hold or trade convertible securities.

Corporate Debt (Including Bonds, Notes and Debentures)

Corporate debt includes any obligation of a corporation to repay a borrowed amount at maturity and usually to pay the holder interest at specific intervals. Corporate debt can have a long or short maturity and is often rated by one or more Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations ("NRSROs"). See "INVESTMENT RATINGS" found on page 88 below for a description of these ratings.

In addition, the credit risk of an issuer's debt security may vary based on its priority for repayment. For example, higher ranking (senior) debt securities have a higher priority than lower ranking (subordinated) securities. This means that the issuer might not make payments on subordinated securities while continuing to make payments on senior securities. In addition, in the event of bankruptcy, holders of senior securities may receive amounts otherwise payable to the holders of subordinated securities. Some subordinated securities, such as trust preferred and capital securities notes, also permit the issuer to defer payments under certain circumstances. For example, insurance companies issue securities known as surplus notes that permit the insurance company to defer any payment that would reduce its capital below regulatory requirements.

Credit-Enhanced Securities

Credit-enhanced securities are securities whose credit rating has been enhanced, typically by the existence of a guarantee, letter of credit, insurance or unconditional demand feature. In most cases, the Advisor evaluates the credit quality and ratings of credit-enhanced securities

based upon the financial condition and ratings of the party providing the credit enhancement (the "credit enhancer") rather than the issuer. However, except where prohibited by Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act, credit-enhanced securities will not be treated as having been issued by the credit enhancer for diversification purposes, unless the Fund has invested more than 10% of its assets in securities issued, guaranteed or otherwise credit enhanced by the credit enhancer, in which case the securities will be treated as having been issued both by the issuer and the credit enhancer. The bankruptcy, receivership or default of the credit enhancer will adversely affect the quality and marketability of the underlying security. A default on the underlying security or other event that terminates a demand feature prior to its exercise will adversely affect the liquidity of the underlying security.

The Money Market Funds are subject to the diversification requirements relating to credit-enhanced securities imposed by Rule 2a-7 of the 1940 Act.

Defensive Investments

At times the Advisor may determine that conditions in securities markets may make pursuing a Fund's principal investment strategies inconsistent with the best interests of the Fund's shareholders. At such times, the Advisor may temporarily use alternative strategies, primarily designed to reduce fluctuations in the value of a Fund's assets. In implementing these temporary "defensive" strategies, a Fund may temporarily place all or a portion of its assets in cash, U.S. Government securities, debt securities which the Advisor considers to be of comparable quality to the acceptable investments of the Fund and other investments which the Advisor considers consistent with such strategies.

Demand Notes

For a discussion of Demand Notes, please see the "Money Market Instruments" discussion in this section.

Derivative Contracts

Derivative contracts are financial instruments that require payments based upon changes in the values of designated (or underlying) securities, currencies, commodities, financial indices or other assets. Some derivative contracts (such as futures, forwards and options) require payments relating to a future trade involving the underlying asset. Other derivative contracts (such as swaps) require payments relating to the income or returns from the underlying asset. The other party to a derivative contract is referred to as a counterparty.

Depending upon how a Fund uses derivative contracts and the relationships between the market value of a derivative contract and the underlying asset, derivative contracts may increase or decrease a Fund's exposure to interest rate and currency risks, and may also expose a Fund to liquidity and leverage risks. Over-the-counter ("OTC") contracts also expose a Fund to credit risks in the event that a counterparty defaults on the contract.

Equity Securities

Equity securities include both foreign and domestic common stocks, preferred stocks, securities convertible or exchangeable into common or preferred stocks, and other securities which the Advisor believes have common stock characteristics, such as rights and warrants.

Exchange-Traded Commodity Funds ("ETCFs")

ETCFs invest in commodities, either directly or through derivative contracts and are treated as partnerships or grantor trusts for U.S. tax purposes. ETCFs may invest in a single commodity (such as gold) or manage a pool of derivative contracts that tracks a commodity index (such as the Dow Jones-AIG Commodity Index).

Exchange-Traded Funds ("ETFs")/Index-Based Securities and Ultrashort ETFs

The Funds may invest in ETFs or Index-based Securities and Ultrashort ETFs as an efficient means of carrying out their investment strategies. Index-based securities are often interests in a unit investment trust ("UIT") that may be obtained from the UIT or purchased in the secondary market. ETFs may be structured as a UIT, but may also be structured as an open-end mutual fund. Ultrashort ETFs are exchange-traded funds which are designed to correspond to twice the inverse of the daily performance of an underlying index. Ultrashort ETFs invest in financial instruments (including derivatives) which the advisor to the Ultrashort ETF believes should, in combination, achieve such daily return characteristics. As with index-based securities, ETFs sell their interests directly or the interests may be purchased in a secondary market. ETFs, index-based securities and Ultrashort ETFs are traded on stock exchanges or on the over-the-counter market.

As with traditional mutual funds, ETFs and index-based securities charge asset-based fees, although these fees tend to be relatively low. ETFs and index-based securities do not charge initial sales charges or redemption fees and investors pay only customary brokerage fees to buy and sell the shares.

A UIT will generally issue index-based securities in aggregations of 50,000 known as "Creation Units" in exchange for a "Portfolio Deposit" consisting of (a) a portfolio of securities substantially similar to the component securities (Index Securities) of the applicable index (Index), (b) a cash payment equal to a pro rata portion of the dividends accrued on the UIT's portfolio securities since the last dividend payment by the UIT, net of expenses and liabilities, and (c) a cash payment or credit (Balancing Amount) designed to equalize the NAV of the Index and the NAV of a Portfolio Deposit. ETFs structured as mutual funds also issue large Creation Units in exchange for a basket of securities in a proportion similar to the current holdings of the ETF and/or a cash payment.

ETFs and index-based securities are not individually redeemable, except upon termination of the UIT or ETF. To redeem, the portfolio must accumulate enough index-based securities to reconstitute a Creation Unit (large aggregations of a particular index-based security). The liquidity of small holdings of ETFs and index-based securities, therefore, will depend upon the existence of a secondary market. Upon redemption of a Creation Unit, the portfolio will receive Index Securities and cash identical to the Portfolio Deposit required of an investor wishing to purchase a Creation Unit that day.

Fixed Income Securities

Fixed income securities include corporate debt securities, U.S. Government securities, mortgage-related securities, tax-exempt securities and any other securities which provide a stream of fixed payments to the holder.

Foreign Currency Options (also see "Options")

Options on foreign currencies operate similarly to options on securities, and are traded primarily in the over-the-counter market (so-called "OTC options"), although options on foreign currencies have recently been listed on several exchanges. Options will be purchased or written only when the Advisor believes that a liquid secondary market exists for such options. There can be no assurance that a liquid secondary market will exist for a particular option at any specific time. Options on foreign currencies are affected by all of those factors which influence exchange rates and investments generally.

Purchases and sales of options may be used to increase current return. They are also used in connection with hedging transactions. See "Foreign Currency Transactions." Writing covered call options on currencies may offset some of the costs of hedging against fluctuations in currency exchange rates. For transaction hedging purposes, a Fund may also purchase exchange-listed and OTC put and call options on foreign currency futures contracts and on foreign currencies. A put option on a futures contract gives a Fund the right to assume a short position in the futures contract until expiration of the option. A call option on a futures contract gives a Fund the right to assume a long position in the futures contract until the expiration of the option.

The value of a foreign currency option is dependent upon the value of the foreign currency and the U.S. dollar, and may have no relationship to the investment merits of a foreign security. Because foreign currency transactions occurring in the interbank market involve substantially larger amounts than those that may be involved in the use of foreign currency options, investors may be disadvantaged by having to deal in an odd lot market (generally consisting of transactions of less than \$1 million) for the underlying foreign currencies at prices that are less favorable than for round lots.

There is no systematic reporting of last sale information for foreign currencies and there is no regulatory requirement that quotations available through dealers or other market sources be firm or revised on a timely basis. Available quotation information is generally representative of very large transactions in the interbank market and thus may not reflect relatively smaller transactions (less than \$1 million) where rates may be less favorable. The interbank market in foreign currencies is a global, around-the-clock market. To the extent that the U.S. options markets are closed while the markets for the underlying currencies remain open, significant price and rate movements may take place in the underlying markets that cannot be reflected in the U.S. options markets. Options contracts are generally valued at the mean of the bid and asked price as reported on the highest-volume exchange (in terms of the number of option contracts traded for that issue) on which such options are traded.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Foreign Exchange Contracts

Foreign currency transactions and foreign exchange contracts include purchasing and selling foreign currencies, entering into forward or futures contracts to purchase or sell foreign currencies (see "Forward Foreign Currency and Foreign Currency Futures Contracts"), and purchasing and selling options on foreign currencies (see "Foreign Currency Options"). Foreign currency transactions may be used to hedge against uncertainty in the level of future foreign currency exchange rates and to increase current return.

Purchases and sales of foreign currencies on a spot basis are used to increase current return. They are also used in connection with both "transaction hedging" and "position hedging."

Transaction hedging involves entering into foreign currency transactions with respect to specific receivables or payables generally arising in connection with the purchase or sale of portfolio securities. Transaction hedging is used to "lock in" the U.S. dollar price of a security to be purchased or sold, or the U.S. dollar equivalent of a dividend or interest payment in a foreign currency. The goal is to protect against a possible loss resulting from an adverse change in the relationship between the U.S. dollar and the applicable foreign currency during the period between the date on which the security is purchased or sold or on which the dividend or interest payment is declared, and the date on which such payments are made or received.

Position hedging involves entering into foreign currency transactions either to protect against: (i) a decline in the value of a foreign currency in which a security held or to be sold is denominated; or (ii) an increase in the value of a foreign currency in which a security to be purchased is denominated. In connection with position hedging, a Fund may purchase put or call options on foreign currency and foreign currency futures contracts and buy or sell forward contracts and foreign currency futures contracts.

Neither transaction nor position hedging eliminates fluctuations in the underlying prices of the securities which a Fund owns or intends to purchase or sell. They simply establish a rate of exchange which can be achieved at some future point in time. Additionally, although these techniques tend to minimize the risk of loss due to a decline in the value of the hedged currency, they also tend to limit any potential gain which might result from the increase in the value of such currency.

Hedging transactions are subject to correlation risk due to the fact that the amounts of foreign currency exchange transactions and the value of the portfolio securities involved will not generally be perfectly matched. This is because the future value of such securities in foreign currencies will change as a consequence of market movements in the values of those securities between the dates the currency exchange transactions are entered into and the dates they mature.

Forward Foreign Currency and Foreign Currency Futures Contracts

A forward foreign currency contract involves an obligation to purchase or sell a specific currency at a future date, which may be any fixed number of days from the date of the contract as agreed by the parties, at a price set at the time of the contract. In the case of a cancelable forward contract, the holder has the unilateral right to cancel the contract at maturity by paying a specified fee. The contracts are traded in the interbank market conducted directly between currency traders (usually large commercial banks) and their customers. A forward contract generally has no deposit requirement, and no commissions are charged at any stage for trades.

A foreign currency futures contract is a standardized contract for the future delivery of a specified amount of a foreign currency at a future date at a price set at the time of the contract. Foreign currency futures contracts traded in the United States are designed by and traded on exchanges regulated by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC"), such as the New York Mercantile Exchange.

Forward foreign currency contracts differ from foreign currency futures contracts in certain respects. For example, the maturity date of a forward contract may be any fixed number of days from the date of the contract agreed upon by the parties, rather than a predetermined date in a given month. Forward contracts may be in any amounts agreed upon by the parties rather than predetermined amounts. Also, forward foreign currency contracts are traded directly between currency traders so that no intermediary is required. A forward contract generally requires no margin or other deposit.

At the maturity of a forward or futures contract, a Fund may either accept or make delivery of the currency specified in the contract, or at or prior to maturity enter into a closing transaction involving the purchase or sale of an offsetting contract. Closing transactions with respect to forward contracts are usually effected with the currency trader who is a party to the original forward contract. Closing transactions with respect to futures contracts are effected on a commodities exchange; a clearing corporation associated with the exchange assumes responsibility for closing out such contracts.

Forward foreign currency contracts and foreign currency futures contracts can be used to increase current return. They are also used in connection with both "transaction hedging" and "position hedging." See "Foreign Currency Transactions."

Among the risks of using foreign currency futures contracts is the fact that positions in these contracts (and any related options) may be closed out only on an exchange or board of trade which provides a secondary market. Although it is intended that any Fund using foreign currency futures contracts and related options will only purchase or sell them on exchanges or boards of trade where there appears to be an active secondary market, there is no assurance that a secondary market on an exchange or board of trade will exist for any particular contract or option or at any particular time. In such event, it may not be possible to close a futures or related option position and, in the event of adverse price movements, a Fund would continue to be required to make daily cash payments of variation margin on its futures positions.

In addition, it is impossible to forecast with precision the market value of a security at the expiration or maturity of a forward or futures contract. Accordingly, it may be necessary to purchase additional foreign currency on the spot market (and bear the expense of such purchase) if the market value of the security being hedged is less than the amount of foreign currency a Fund is obligated to deliver and if a decision is made to sell the security and make delivery of the foreign currency. Conversely, it may be necessary to sell on the spot market some of the foreign currency received upon the sale of the hedged portfolio security if the market value of such security exceeds the amount of foreign currency a Fund is obligated to deliver. *Margin payments.* When a Fund purchases or sells a futures contract, it is required to deposit with its custodian an amount of cash or U.S. Treasury bills, or other permissible collateral, up to 5% of the amount of the futures contract. This amount is known as "initial margin." The nature of initial margin is different from that of margin in security transactions in that it does not involve borrowing money to finance transactions. Rather, initial margin is similar to a performance bond or good faith deposit that is returned to a Fund upon termination of the contract, assuming a Fund satisfies its contractual obligation.

Subsequent payments to and from the broker occur on a daily basis in a process known as "marking to market." These payments are called "variation margin," and are made as the value of the underlying futures contract fluctuates. For example, when a Fund sells a futures contract and the price of the underlying currency rises above the delivery price, the Fund's position declines in value. The Fund then pays a broker a variation margin payment equal to the difference between the delivery price of the futures contract and the market price of the currency underlying the futures contract. Conversely, if the price of the underlying currency falls below the delivery price of the contract, the Fund's futures position increases in value. The broker then must make a variation margin payment equal to the difference between the delivery price of the futures contract and the market price of the currency underlying the futures contract and the market price of the currency underlying the futures contract and the market price of the currency underlying the futures contract.

When a Fund terminates a position in a futures contract, a final determination of variation margin is made, additional cash is paid by or to the Fund, and the Fund realizes a loss or gain. Such closing transactions involve additional commission costs.

Foreign Government Securities

Foreign government securities generally consist of fixed income securities supported by national, state or provincial governments or similar political subdivisions. Foreign government securities also include debt obligations of supranational entities, such as international organizations designed or supported by governmental entities to promote economic reconstruction or development, international banking institutions and related government agencies. Examples of these include, but are not limited to, the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (the "World Bank"), the Asian Development Bank, the European Investment Bank and the Inter-American Development Bank.

Foreign government securities also include fixed income securities of quasi-governmental agencies that are either issued by entities owned by a national, state or equivalent government or are obligations of a political unit that are not backed by the national government's full faith and credit.

Foreign Securities (including Emerging Markets)

Foreign securities are those securities which are issued by companies located outside the United States and principally traded in foreign markets. This includes equity and debt securities of foreign entities and obligations of foreign branches of U.S. and foreign banks. Permissible investments may consist of obligations of foreign branches of U.S. banks and foreign or domestic branches of foreign banks, including European Certificates of Deposit, European Time Deposits, Canadian Time Deposits and Yankee Bonds and Certificates of Deposit, and investments in Canadian Commercial Paper, foreign securities and europaper. In addition, the Funds may invest in depositary receipts. The Funds may also invest in securities issued or guaranteed by foreign corporations or foreign governments, their political subdivisions, agencies or instrumentalities and obligations of supranational entities such as the World Bank and the Asian Development Bank. Investment in foreign securities is subject to a number of special risks.

Since foreign securities are normally denominated and traded in foreign currencies, the value of a Fund's assets invested in such securities may be affected favorably or unfavorably by currency exchange rates and exchange control regulation. Exchange rates with respect to certain currencies may be particularly volatile. Additionally, although foreign exchange dealers do not charge a fee for currency conversion, they do realize a profit based on the difference (the "spread") between prices at which they buy and sell various currencies. Thus, a dealer may offer to sell a foreign currency to a Fund at one rate, while offering a lesser rate of exchange should a Fund desire to resell that currency to the dealer. For additional information see "Foreign Currency Transactions."

There may be less information publicly available about a foreign company than about a U.S. company, and foreign companies are not generally subject to accounting, auditing, and financial reporting standards and practices comparable to those in the United States. The securities of some foreign companies are less liquid and at times more volatile than securities of comparable U.S. companies. Foreign brokerage commissions and other fees are also generally higher than in the United States. Foreign settlement procedures and trade regulations may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment or delivery of securities or in the recovery of a Fund's assets held abroad) and expenses not present in the settlement of domestic investments.

In addition, with respect to certain foreign countries, there is a possibility of nationalization or expropriation of assets, confiscatory taxation, political or financial instability and diplomatic developments which could affect the value of investments in those countries. In certain countries, legal remedies available to investors may be more limited than those available with respect to investments in the United States or other countries. The laws of some foreign countries may limit a Fund's ability to invest in securities of certain issuers located in those countries. Special tax considerations apply to foreign securities.

The Global Select Markets Fund, Situs Fund and Real Strategies Fund may invest in the securities of emerging market issuers. Investing in emerging market securities involves risks which are in addition to the usual risks inherent in foreign investments. Some emerging markets countries may have fixed or managed currencies that are not free-floating against the U.S. dollar. Further, certain currencies may not be traded internationally. Certain of these currencies have experienced a steady devaluation relative to the U.S. dollar. Any devaluation in the currencies in which the Fund's securities are denominated may have a detrimental impact on the Fund.

Some countries with emerging securities markets have experienced substantial, and in some periods, extremely high, rates of inflation for many years. Inflation and rapid fluctuation in inflation rates have had and may continue to have negative effects on the economies and securities markets of certain countries. Moreover, the economies of some countries may differ favorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in such respects as rate of growth of gross domestic product, the rate of inflation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency, number and depth of industries forming the economy's base, governmental controls and investment restrictions that are subject to political change and balance of payments position. Further, there may be greater difficulties or restrictions with respect to investments made in emerging markets countries.

Emerging markets typically have substantially less volume than U.S. markets. In addition, securities in many such markets are less liquid, and their prices often are more volatile, than securities of comparable U.S. companies. Such markets often have different clearance and settlement procedures for securities transactions, and in some markets there have been times when settlements have been unable to keep pace with the volume of transactions, making it difficult to conduct transactions. Delays in settlement could result in temporary periods when assets may be uninvested. Settlement problems in emerging markets countries also could cause the Fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Satisfactory custodial services may not be available in some emerging markets countries, which may result in the Fund incurring additional costs and delays in the transportation and custody of such securities.

Each of the Equity Funds and the Balanced Allocation Fund may invest in foreign securities.

Futures Contracts and Options on Futures Contracts

A futures contract is a binding contractual commitment which, if held to maturity, will result in an obligation to make or accept delivery of a security at a specified future time and price. By purchasing futures (assuming a "long" position) a Fund will legally obligate itself to accept the future delivery of the underlying security and pay the agreed price. By selling futures (assuming a "short" position) it will legally obligate itself to make the future delivery of the security against payment of the agreed price. Open futures positions on debt securities will be valued at the most recent settlement price, unless that price does not in the judgment of the Trustees reflect the fair value of the contract, in which case the positions will be valued by or under the direction of the Trustees. Positions taken in the futures markets are not normally held to maturity, but are instead liquidated through offsetting transactions which may result in a profit or a loss. While futures positions taken by a Fund will usually be liquidated in this manner, a Fund may instead make or take delivery of the underlying securities whenever it appears economically advantageous to the Fund to do so. A clearing corporation associated with the exchange on which futures are traded assumes responsibility for such closing transactions and guarantees that the Fund's sale and purchase obligations under closed-out positions will be performed at the termination of the contract. Futures contracts are considered to be commodity contracts.

Futures and options on futures are regulated by the CFTC. The Funds' Advisor has claimed an exclusion from the definition of the term "commodity pool operator" under the Commodity Exchange Act ("CEA"); therefore, the Advisor is not subject to registration or regulation as a commodity pool operator under the CEA. The CFTC has adopted amendments to its rules that now require any person that claims an exemption or exclusion from Commodity Pool Operator ("CPO") registration under CFTC Regulations 4.5, 4.13(a)(1), 4.13(a) (2), 4.13(a)(3), 4.13(a)(5) or an exemption from CTA registration under 4.14(a)(8) to annually affirm the applicable notice of exemption or exclusion within 60 days of the calendar year end. The first notice affirming these exemptions was filed for the calendar year ending December 31, 2012, and annually thereafter. The Funds' Advisor continues to have the ability to claim the exemption and make the annual affirmation required to maintain this exemptive status. If a Fund were no longer able to claim the exclusion, the Fund's Advisor would likely become subject to registration and regulation as a commodity pool operator or the Fund might be limited in the use of these transactions.

Hedging by use of futures on debt securities seeks to establish more certainty than would otherwise be possible the effective rate of return on portfolio securities. A Fund may, for example, take a "short" position in the futures market by selling contracts for the future delivery of debt securities held by the Fund (or securities having characteristics similar to those held by the Fund) in order to hedge against an anticipated rise in interest rates that would adversely affect the value of the Fund's portfolio securities. When hedging of this character is successful, any depreciation in the value of portfolio securities may be offset by appreciation in the value of the futures position.

On other occasions, a Fund may take a "long" position by purchasing futures on debt securities. This would be done, for example, when the Advisor expects to purchase for a Fund particular securities when it has the necessary cash, but expects the rate of return available in the

securities markets at that time to be less favorable than rates currently available in the futures markets. If the anticipated rise in the price of the securities should occur (with its corresponding reduction in yield), the increased cost to the Fund of purchasing the securities may be offset by the rise in the value of the futures position taken in anticipation of the subsequent securities purchase.

Successful use by a Fund of futures contracts on debt securities is subject to the Advisor's ability to predict correctly movements in the direction of interest rates and other factors affecting markets for debt securities. For example, if a Fund has hedged against the possibility of an increase in interest rates which would adversely affect the market prices of debt securities held by it and the prices of such securities increase instead, the Fund will lose part or all of the benefit of the increased value of its securities which it has hedged because it will have offsetting losses in its futures positions. In addition, in such situations, if the Fund has insufficient cash, it may have to sell securities to meet daily margin maintenance requirements. A Fund may have to sell securities at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so.

A Fund may purchase and write put and call options on debt futures contracts, as they become available. Such options are similar to options on securities except that options on futures contracts give the purchaser the right, in return for the premium paid, to assume a position in a futures contract (a long position if the option is a call and a short position if the option is a put) at a specified exercise price at any time during the period of the option. As with options on securities, the holder or writer of an option may terminate its position by selling or purchasing an option of the same series. There is no guarantee that such closing transactions can be effected. A Fund will be required to deposit initial margin and variation margin with respect to put and call options on futures contracts written by it pursuant to brokers' requirements, and, in addition, net option premiums received will be included as initial margin deposits. Compared to the purchase or sale of futures contracts, the purchase of call or put options on futures contracts involves less potential risk to a Fund because the maximum amount at risk is the premium paid for the options plus transactions costs. However, there may be circumstances when the purchases of call or put options on a futures contract would result in a loss to a Fund when the purchase or sale of the futures contracts would not, such as when there is no movement in the prices of debt securities. The writing of a put or call option on a futures contract involves risks similar to those risks relating to the purchase or sale of futures contracts.

Margin payments. When a Fund purchases or sells a futures contract, it is required to deposit with its custodian an amount of cash, U.S. Treasury bills, or other permissible collateral equal to a small percentage of the amount of the futures contract. This amount is known as "initial margin." The nature of initial margin is different from that of margin in security transactions in that it does not involve borrowing money to finance transactions. Rather, initial margin is similar to a performance bond or good faith deposit that is returned to the Fund upon termination of the contract, assuming the Fund satisfies its contractual obligations. Subsequent payments to and from the broker occur on a daily basis in a process known as "marking to market." These payments are called "variation margin" and are made as the value of the underlying futures contract fluctuates. For example, when a Fund sells a futures contract and the price of the underlying debt security rises above the delivery price, the Fund's position declines in value. The Fund then pays the broker a variation margin payment equal to the difference between the delivery price of the futures contract. Conversely, if the price of the underlying security falls below the delivery price of the contract, the Fund's futures contract and the market price of the futures contract. The broker then must make a variation margin payment equal to the difference between the delivery price of the difference between the delivery price of the futures contract.

When a Fund terminates a position in a futures contract, a final determination of variation margin is made, additional cash is paid by or to the Fund, and the Fund realizes a loss or a gain. Such closing transactions involve additional commission costs.

Liquidity risks. Positions in futures contracts may be closed out only on an exchange or board of trade which provides a secondary market for such futures. Although the Trust intends to purchase or sell futures only on exchanges or boards of trade where there appears to be an active secondary market, there is no assurance that a liquid secondary market on an exchange or board of trade will exist for any particular contract or at any particular time. If there is not a liquid secondary market at a particular time, it may not be possible to close a futures position at such time and, in the event of adverse price movements, a Fund would continue to be required to make daily cash payments of variation margin. However, in the event financial futures are used to hedge portfolio securities, such securities will not generally be sold until the financial futures can be terminated. In such circumstances, an increase in the price of the portfolio securities, if any, may partially or completely offset losses on the financial futures.

In addition to the risks that apply to all options transactions, there are several special risks relating to options on futures contracts. The ability to establish and close out positions in such options will be subject to the development and maintenance of a liquid secondary market. It is not certain that such a market will develop. Although a Fund generally will purchase only those options for which there appears to be an active secondary market, there is no assurance that a liquid secondary market on an exchange will exist for any particular option or at any particular time. In the event no such market exists for particular options, it might not be possible to effect closing transactions in such options, with the result that the Fund would have to exercise the options in order to realize any profit.

Hedging risks. There are several risks in connection with the use by a Fund of futures contracts and related options as a hedging device. One risk arises because of the imperfect correlation between movements in the prices of the futures contracts and options and movements in the prices of securities which are the subject of the hedge. The Advisor will, however, attempt to reduce this risk by purchasing and selling, to the extent possible, futures contracts and related options on securities and indices the movements of which will, in its judgment, correlate closely with movements in the prices of the portfolio securities sought to be hedged.

Successful use of futures contracts and options by a Fund for hedging purposes is also subject to the Advisor's ability to predict correctly movements in the direction of the market. It is possible that, where a Fund has purchased puts on futures contracts to hedge its portfolio against a decline in the market, the securities or index on which the puts are purchased may increase in value and the value of securities held in the portfolio may decline. If this occurred, the Fund would lose money on the puts and also experience a decline in value in its portfolio securities. In addition, the prices of futures, for a number of reasons, may not correlate perfectly with movements in the underlying securities or index due to certain market distortions. First, all participants in the futures market are subject to margin deposit requirements. Such requirements may cause investors to close futures contracts through offsetting transactions which could distort the normal relationship between the underlying security or index and futures markets. Second, the margin requirements in the futures markets are less onerous than margin requirements in the securities markets in general, and as a result the futures markets may attract more speculators than the securities markets do. Increased participation by speculators in the futures markets may also cause temporary price distortions. Due to the possibility of price distortion, even a correct forecast of general market trends by the Advisor may still not result in a successful hedging transaction over a very short time period.

Other risks. Funds will incur brokerage fees in connection with their futures and options transactions. In addition, while futures contracts and options on futures will be purchased and sold to reduce certain risks, those transactions themselves entail certain other risks. Thus, while a Fund may benefit from the use of futures and related options, unanticipated changes in interest rates or stock price movements may result in a poorer overall performance for the Fund than if it had not entered into any futures contracts or options transactions. Moreover, in the event of an imperfect correlation between the futures position and the portfolio position which is intended to be protected, the desired protection may not be obtained and the Fund may be exposed to risk of loss.

Index Futures Contracts and Options on Index Futures Contracts

A debt index futures contract is a contract to buy or sell units of a specified debt index at a specified future date at a price agreed upon when the contract is made. A unit is the current value of the index. A stock index futures contract is a contract to buy or sell units of a stock index at a specified future date at a price agreed upon when the contract is made. A unit is the current value of the stock index.

The following example illustrates generally the manner in which index futures contracts operate. The Standard & Poor's 100 Stock Index (S&P 100) is composed of 100 selected common stocks, most of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). The S&P 100 assigns relative weightings to the common stocks included in the Index, and the Index fluctuates with changes in the market values of those common stocks. In the case of the S&P 100, contracts are to buy or sell 100 units. Thus, if the value of the S&P 100 were \$180, one contract would be worth \$18,000 (100 units X \$180). The stock index futures contract specifies that no delivery of the actual stocks making up the index will take place. Instead, settlement in cash must occur upon the termination of the contract, with the settlement being the difference between the contract price and the actual level of the stock index at the expiration of the contract. For example, if a Fund enters into a futures contract to buy 100 units of the S&P 100 at a specified future date at a contract price of \$180 and the S&P 100 is at \$184 on that future date, the Fund will gain \$400 (100 units X gain of \$4). If the Fund enters into a futures contract to sell 100 units of the stock index at a specified future date at a contract price of \$180 and the S&P 100 is at \$182 on that future date, the Fund will lose \$200 (100 units X loss of \$2). A Fund may purchase or sell futures contracts with respect to any stock index. Positions in index futures may be closed out only on an exchange or board of trade which provides a secondary market for such futures.

Purchases and sales of index futures may be used to hedge an investment. To hedge an investment successfully, however, a Fund must invest in futures contracts with respect to indices or sub-indices the movements of which will have a significant correlation with movements in the prices of the Fund's securities.

Options on index futures contracts are similar to options on securities except that options on index futures contracts give the purchaser the right, in return for the premium paid, to assume a position in an index futures contract (a long position if the option is a call and a short position if the option is a put) at a specified exercise price at any time during the period of the option. Upon exercise of the option, the holder assumes the underlying futures position and receives a variation margin payment of cash or securities approximating the increase in the value of the holder's option position. If an option is exercised on the last trading day prior to the expiration date of the option, the settlement is made entirely in cash based on the difference between the exercise price of the option and the closing level of the index on which the futures contract is based on the expiration date. Purchasers of options who fail to exercise their options prior to the exercise date suffer a loss of the premium paid.

As an alternative to purchasing call and put options on index futures contracts, a Fund may purchase put and call options on the underlying indices themselves to the extent that such options are traded on national securities exchanges. Index options are similar to options on individual securities in that the purchaser of an index option acquires the right to buy, and the writer undertakes the obligation to sell, an index at a stated exercise price during the term of the option. Instead of giving the right to take or make actual delivery of securities, the holder of an index option has the right to receive a cash "exercise settlement amount." This amount is equal to the amount by which the fixed

exercise price of the option exceeds (in the case of a put) or is less than (in the case of a call) the closing value of the underlying index on the date of the exercise, multiplied by a fixed "index multiplier." A Fund will enter into an option position only if there appears to be a liquid secondary market for such options.

The Funds will not engage in transactions in options on stock indices for speculative purposes but only to protect appreciation attained, to offset capital losses and to take advantage of the liquidity available in the option markets. The aggregate premium paid on all options on stock indices will not exceed 20% of a Fund's total assets.

Inflation-Protected Securities

Inflation-protected securities are fixed-income securities whose principal value or interest rate is adjusted periodically according to changes in a specific price index (such as the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers). If the price index falls (deflation), the principal value or interest rate of the securities will be adjusted downward, and, consequently, the interest payable on these securities will be reduced. U.S. Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities, also known as "TIPs," are adjusted as to principal; repayment of the original principal upon maturity of the security is guaranteed if the security is purchased when originally issued. With respect to other types of inflation-protected securities that are adjusted to the principal amount, the adjusted principal value of the security repaid at maturity may be less than the original principal. Most other types of inflation-protected securities, however, are adjusted with respect to the interest rate, which has a minimum of 0%, and the principal value does not change.

Interests in Other Business Organizations

Entities such as limited partnerships, limited liability companies, business trusts and companies organized outside the United States may issue securities comparable to common or preferred stock. Limited partnerships are partnerships consisting of one or more general partners, by whom the business is conducted, and one or more limited partners who contribute capital to the partnership. Limited liability companies frequently consist of one or more managing members, by whom the business is conducted, and other members who contribute capital to the company. Limited partners and members of limited liability companies generally are not liable for the debts of the partnership beyond their capital contributions or commitments. Limited partners and non-managing members are not involved in the day-to-day management of the partnership or limited liability company. They receive income and capital gains from the partnership or company in accordance with the terms established in the partnership or operating agreement. Typical limited partnerships and limited liability companies are involved in real estate, oil and gas, and equipment leasing, but they also finance movies, research and development, and other projects.

For an organization classified as a partnership under the Code (including most limited partnerships and limited liabilities companies), each item of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit is not taxed at the partnership level but flows through with the same character to the partners or members. This allows the partnership to avoid double taxation.

A master limited partnership ("MLP") is a publicly traded limited partnership or limited liability company. MLPs combine the tax advantages of a partnership with the liquidity of a publicly traded security. MLPs must limit their operations to avoid being taxed as corporations under the Code.

Investment Company Securities, including Money Market Mutual Funds

The Funds may invest in securities of other investment companies ("Acquired Funds"), including ETFs and the securities of affiliated money market funds, as an efficient means of carrying out their investment policies and managing their uninvested cash. A Fund's shareholders indirectly bear the expenses of the Acquired Funds in which a Fund invests.

Except under exemptive rules or relief from the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), a Fund may not invest more than 10% of its total assets at any one time in the shares of other investment companies (funds), 5% of its total assets in the shares of any one investment company, or own more than 3% of the shares of any one investment company. When a Fund invests in the shares of other investment companies, investment advisory and other fees will apply, and the investment's yield will be reduced accordingly. Pursuant to an exemptive order, dated July 24, 2001, received from the SEC, each of the Equity Funds and Balanced Allocation Fund may invest up to 25% of their respective total assets in any of the Huntington Money Market Funds subject to Subchapter M as described under the "Taxes" section found below.

Under normal market conditions, the Global Select Markets Fund and Real Strategies Fund intend to invest their assets in common stocks and index-based securities in order to achieve their investment objective. The Global Select Markets Fund and Real Strategies Fund may also invest in ETFs, including index-based ETFs and Ultrashort ETFs that relate to real estate- or commodities-related business sectors. The shares of most index-based securities, including ETFs, are listed and traded on stock exchanges at market prices, although some shares may be redeemable at NAV for cash or securities. Index-based securities may be purchased in order to achieve exposure to a specific region, country or market sector, or for other reasons consistent with a Fund's investment strategy. As with traditional investment companies, index-based securities charge assetbased fees, although these fees tend to be relatively low. Index-based securities generally do not charge initial sales charges or redemption fees and investors pay only customary brokerage fees to buy and sell index-based securities.

Money Market Instruments

On July 23, 2014, the SEC voted to amend Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act and other rules and forms related to money market funds. These amendments will affect the manner in which the Fund and other money market funds are structured and operated, and may impact Fund expenses, returns and liquidity. The degree to which a money market fund will be impacted by the rule amendments will depend upon the type of fund and type of investors. The amendments have staggered compliance dates, but compliance with many of these amendments will be required by October 14, 2016. As a result of these amendments, the Fund may be required to take certain steps that will impact and may adversely affect the Fund. The precise nature of such impact and effects has not yet been determined.

Except where otherwise noted, all of the Funds may, for temporary defensive or liquidity purposes, invest up to 100% of their assets in money market instruments.

Commercial Paper, Demand Notes, Variable Amount Demand Notes and Variable Amount Master Demand Notes

Consistent with its investment objective, policies, and restrictions, each Fund may invest in commercial paper (including commercial paper sold through private placements pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933) and variable amount master demand notes. Commercial paper consists of unsecured promissory notes issued by corporations normally having maturities of 270 days or less and rates of return which are fixed. These investments may include Canadian Commercial Paper, which is U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper issued by a Canadian corporation or a Canadian counterpart of a U.S. corporation, and europaper, which is U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper of a foreign issuer.

Demand notes and variable rate demand notes ("VRDNs") are unsecured, direct lending arrangements between a Fund, as the lender, and a corporation, financial institution, government agency, municipality or other entity.

VRDNs have interest rates which float or which are adjusted at regular intervals ranging from daily to annually. Although the VRDNs are not generally traded, a Fund may demand payment of principal and accrued interest according to its arrangement with the borrower (usually upon no more than seven days' notice). VRDNs are, therefore, treated as maturing on the later of the next interest adjustment or the date on which a Fund may next demand payment. Some VRDNs are backed by bank letters of credit.

Each of the Funds may only invest in VRDNs which satisfy its credit requirements for commercial paper.

Variable amount master demand notes are unsecured demand notes that permit the indebtedness thereunder to vary and provide for periodic adjustments in the interest rate according to the terms of the instrument. Because master demand notes are direct lending arrangements between a Fund and the issuer, they are not normally traded. Although there is no secondary market in the notes, a Fund may demand payment of principal and accrued interest at any time. A variable amount master demand note will be deemed to have a maturity equal to the longer of the period of time remaining until the next readjustment of its interest rate or the period of time remaining until the principal amount can be recovered from the issuer through demand.

The commercial paper in which any of the Money Market Funds may invest is subject to the issuer diversification and quality restrictions imposed by Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act.

Other money market instruments may include: obligations (certificates of deposit, time deposits, bank master notes, and bankers' acceptances) of thrift institutions, and savings and loans, provided that such institutions have total assets of \$1 billion or more as shown on their last published financial statements at the time of investment; short-term corporate obligations rated within the three highest rating categories by an NRSRO (for example, at least A by S&P or A by Moody's) at the time of investment, or, if not rated, determined by the Advisor to be of comparable quality; general obligations issued by the U.S. Government and backed by its full faith and credit, and obligations issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by agencies or instrumentalities of the U.S. Government (for example, obligations issued by Farmers Home Administration, Government National Mortgage Association, Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal Housing Administration); receipts, including Treasury Receipts, Treasury Income Growth Receipts and Certificates of Accrual on Treasuries; repurchase agreements involving such obligations; money market funds, and foreign commercial paper.

Bank Obligations

Bank obligations are short-term obligations issued by U.S. and foreign banks, including bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, time deposits and similar securities.

Bankers' acceptances are negotiable drafts or bills of exchange typically drawn by an importer or exporter to pay for specific merchandise that are "accepted" by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on maturity. Investments in bankers' acceptances will be limited to those guaranteed by domestic and foreign banks having, at the time of investment, total assets of \$1 billion or more (as of the date of the institution's most recently published financial statements).

Certificates of Deposit and Time Deposits

Certificates of deposit and time deposits represent funds deposited in a commercial bank or a savings and loan association for a definite period of time and earning a specified return.

Investments in certificates of deposit and time deposits may include Eurodollar Certificates of Deposit, which are U.S. dollar denominated certificates of deposit issued by offices of foreign and domestic banks located outside the United States, Yankee Certificates of Deposit, which are certificates of deposit issued by a U.S. branch of a foreign bank denominated in U.S. dollars and held in the United States, Eurodollar Time Deposits, which are U.S. dollar denominated deposits in a foreign branch of a U.S. bank or a foreign bank, and Canadian Time Deposits, which are U.S. dollar denominated certificates of deposit issued by Canadian offices of major Canadian banks. All investments in certificates of deposit and time deposits will be limited to those (a) of domestic and foreign banks and savings and loan associations which, at the time of investment, have total assets of \$1 billion or more (as of the date of the institution's most recently published financial statements) or (b) the principal amount of which is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Money Market Fund may only invest in bank obligations issued by domestic banks and U.S. branches of foreign banks subject to U.S. banking regulation. In addition, at the time of the investment, the issuing bank must have capital, surplus and undivided profits in excess of \$100 million.

Mortgage Dollar Roll Transactions

A dollar roll transaction is a transaction through which a Fund sells certain of its securities to financial institutions such as banks and broker-dealers, and agrees to repurchase substantially similar securities at a mutually agreed upon date and price. At the time a Fund enters into a dollar roll agreement, it will place in a segregated custodial account assets such as U.S. Government securities or other liquid assets consistent with its investment restrictions having a value equal to the repurchase price (including accrued interest), and will subsequently continually monitor the account to insure that such equivalent value is maintained at all times. Dollar roll agreements involve the risk that the market value of securities sold by a Fund may decline below the price at which it is obligated to repurchase the securities. Dollar roll agreements are considered to be borrowings by an investment company under the 1940 Act and, therefore, a form of leverage. A Fund may experience a negative impact on its net asset value ("NAV") if interest rates rise during the term of a dollar roll agreement. A Fund generally will invest the proceeds of such borrowings only when such borrowings will enhance a Fund's liquidity or when the Fund reasonably expects that the interest income to be earned from the investment of the proceeds is greater than the interest expense of the transaction.

Mortgage-related Securities

Mortgage-related securities are securities that, directly or indirectly, represent participations in, or are secured by and payable from, loans secured by real property. Mortgage-related securities include mortgage pass-through securities, adjustable rate mortgage securities and derivative securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations and stripped mortgage-backed securities. Mortgage-related securities fall into three categories: (a) those issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities, such as Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC"); (b) those issued by non-governmental issuers that represent interests in, or are collateralized by, mortgage-related securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities; and (c) those issued by non-governmental issuers that represent an interest in, or are collateralized by, whole mortgage loans or mortgage-related securities without a government guarantee but usually with over-collateralization or some other form of private credit enhancement. Non-governmental issuers include originators of investors in mortgage loans, including savings and loan associations, mortgage bankers, commercial banks, investment banks and special purpose subsidiaries of the foregoing.

There are a number of important differences both among the agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. Government that issue mortgage-related securities and among the securities themselves. "Ginnie Maes" are Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates issued by GNMA, which is a wholly-owned U.S. Government corporation within the Department of Housing and Urban Development. Ginnie Maes are guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and interest by GNMA and GNMA's guarantee is backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. In addition, Ginnie Maes are supported by the authority of GNMA to borrow funds from the U.S. Treasury to make payments under GNMA's guarantee. Mortgage-related securities issued by the FNMA include FNMA Guaranteed Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates (also known as

"Fannie Maes") which are solely the obligations of the FNMA. FNMA is a government-sponsored organization. Fannie Maes are guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by FNMA but are not backed by or entitled to the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. Mortgage-related securities issued by the FHLMC include FHLMC Mortgage Participation Certificates (also known as "Freddie Macs" or "PCs"). The FHLMC is a corporate instrumentality of the U.S. Government, created pursuant to an Act of Congress. Freddie Macs are not guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or by any Federal Home Loan Bank and do not constitute a debt or obligation of the U.S. Government or of any Federal Home Loan Bank. Freddie Macs entitle the holder to timely payment of interest, which is guaranteed by the FHLMC guarantees either ultimate collection or timely payment of all principal payments on the underlying mortgage loans. When the FHLMC does not guarantee timely payment of principal, FHLMC may remit the amount due on account of its guarantee of ultimate payment of principal at any time after default on an underlying mortgage, but in no event later than one year after it becomes payable.

In September 2008, the U.S. Treasury announced that FNMA and FHLMC were placed in conservatorship by the Federal Housing Finance Agency ("FHFA"), a newly created independent regulator. The conservatorship has no specified termination date. FNMA also has entered into a senior preferred stock purchase agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant to which Treasury has committed to provide funding to FNMA under specified circumstances. There can be no assurance as to when or how the conservatorship will be terminated or whether FNMA or FHLMC will continue to exist following the conservatorship or what their respective business structures will be during or following the conservatorship. The FHFA, as conservator, has the power to repudiate any contract entered into by FNMA or FHLMC prior to its appointment if it determines that performance of the contract is burdensome and repudiation of the contract promotes the orderly administration of FNMA's or FHLMC's affairs. Further, the FHFA has the right to transfer or sell any asset or liability of FNMA or FHLMC without any approval, assignment or consent. If FHFA were to transfer any such guaranty obligation to another party, holders of FNMA or FHLMC mortgage-backed securities would have to rely on that party for satisfaction of the guaranty obligation and would be exposed to the credit risk of that party.

Although certain mortgage-related securities are guaranteed by a third party or otherwise similarly secured, the market value of the security, which may fluctuate, is not so secured. If a Fund purchases a mortgage-related security at a premium, that portion may be lost if there is a decline in the market value of the security whether resulting from changes in interest rates or prepayments in the underlying mortgage collateral. As with other interest-bearing securities, the prices of mortgage-related securities are inversely affected by changes in interest rates. However, though the value of a mortgage-related security may decline when interest rates rise, the converse is not necessarily true, since in periods of declining interest rates the mortgages underlying the security are prone to prepayment. For this and other reasons, a mortgage-related security's effective maturity may be shortened by unscheduled prepayments on the underlying mortgages and, therefore, it is not possible to predict accurately the security's return to the Fund. In addition, regular payments received in respect of mortgage-related securities include both interest and principal. No assurance can be given as to the return a Fund will receive when these amounts are reinvested.

Mortgage Pass-through Securities

Mortgage pass-through securities provide for the pass-through to investors of their pro-rata share of monthly payments (including any prepayments) made by the individual borrowers on the pooled mortgage loans, net of any fees paid to the guarantor of such securities and the servicer of the underlying mortgage loans.

Adjustable Rate Mortgage Securities

Adjustable rate mortgage securities ("ARMS") are pass-through mortgage securities collateralized by mortgages with interest rates that are adjusted from time to time. The adjustments usually are determined in accordance with a predetermined interest rate index and may be subject to certain limits. While the values of ARMS, like other debt securities, generally vary inversely with changes in market interest rates (increasing in value during periods of declining interest rates and decreasing in value during periods of increasing interest rates), the values of ARMS should generally be more resistant to price swings than other debt securities because the interest rates of ARMS move with market interest rates. The adjustable rate feature of ARMS will not, however, eliminate fluctuations in the prices of ARMS, particularly during periods of extreme fluctuations in interest rates.

ARMS typically have caps which limit the maximum amount by which the interest rate may be increased or decreased at periodic intervals or over the life of the loan. To the extent that interest rates increase in excess of the caps, ARMS can be expected to behave more like traditional debt securities and to decline in value to a greater extent than would be the case in the absence of such caps. Also, since many adjustable rate mortgages only reset on an annual basis, it can be expected that the prices of ARMS will fluctuate to the extent that changes in prevailing interest rates are not immediately reflected in the interest rates payable on the underlying adjustable rate mortgages. The extent to which the prices of ARMS fluctuate with changes in interest rates will also be affected by the indices underlying the ARMS. Some indices, such as the one-year constant maturity Treasury note rate, closely mirror changes in market interest rate levels. Others, such as the 11th District Federal Reserve Cost of Funds Index (often related to ARMS issued by FNMA), tend to lag changes in market levels and tend to be somewhat less volatile.

Derivative Mortgage Securities

Collateralized mortgage obligations are derivative mortgage securities and are debt instruments issued by special purpose entities which are secured by pools of mortgage loans or other mortgage-related securities. Multi-class pass-through securities are equity interests in a trust composed of mortgage loans or other mortgage-related securities. Both are considered derivative mortgage securities and are collectively referred to as "CMOs." Payments of principal and interest on underlying collateral provide the funds to pay debt service on the collateralized mortgage obligation or make scheduled distributions on the multi-class pass-through security.

In a CMO, a series of bonds or certificates is issued in multiple classes. Each class of CMO, often referred to as a "tranche," is issued at a specific coupon rate and has a stated maturity or final distribution date. Principal prepayments on collateral underlying a CMO may cause it to be retired substantially earlier than the stated maturities or final distribution dates.

The principal and interest on the underlying mortgages may be allocated among the several tranches of a CMO in many ways. For example, certain tranches may have variable or floating interest rates and others may provide only the principal or interest feature of the underlying security. Generally, the purpose of the allocation of the cash flow of a CMO to the various tranches is to obtain a more predictable cash flow to certain of the individual tranches than exists with the underlying collateral of the CMO. As a general rule, the more predictable the cash flow is on a CMO tranche, the lower the anticipated yield will be on that tranche at the time of issuance relative to prevailing market yields on mortgage-related securities. As part of the process of creating more predictable cash flows on most of the tranches of a CMO, one or more tranches generally must be created that absorb most of the volatility in the cash flows on the underlying mortgage loans. The yields on these tranches, which may include inverse floaters, stripped mortgage-backed securities. As a result of the uncertainty of the cash flows of these tranches, the market prices of and yield on these tranches generally are more volatile.

An inverse floater is a CMO tranche with a coupon rate that moves inversely to a designated index, such as LIBOR (London Inter-Bank Offered Rate) or COFI (Cost of Funds Index). Like most other fixed income securities, the value of inverse floaters will decrease as interest rates increase. Inverse floaters, however, exhibit greater price volatility than the majority of mortgage pass- through securities or CMOs. Coupon rates on inverse floaters typically change at a multiple of the change in the relevant index rate. Thus, any rise in the index rate (as a consequence of an increase in interest rates) causes a correspondingly greater drop in the coupon rate of an inverse floater while any drop in the index rate causes a correspondingly greater increase in the coupon of an inverse floater. Some inverse floaters also exhibit extreme sensitivity to changes in prepayments. Inverse floaters would be purchased by a Fund in an attempt to protect against a reduction in the income earned on the Fund's investments due to a decline in interest rates.

Z tranches of CMOs defer interest and principal payments until one or more other classes of the CMO have been paid in full. Interest accretes on the Z tranche, being added to principal, and is compounded through the accretion period. After the other classes have been paid in full, interest payments begin and continue through maturity. Z tranches have characteristics similar to zero coupon bonds. Like a zero coupon bond, during its accretion period a Z tranche has the advantage of eliminating the risk of reinvesting interest payments at lower rates during a period of declining market interest rates. At the same time, however, and also like a zero coupon bond, the market value of a Z tranche can be expected to fluctuate more widely with changes in market interest rates than would the market value of a tranche which pays interest currently. In addition, changes in prepayment rates on the underlying mortgage loans will affect the accretion period of a Z tranche, and therefore also will influence its market value.

Stripped mortgage-backed securities ("SMBSs") may represent an interest solely in the principal repayments or solely in the interest payments on mortgage-backed securities. SMBSs are derivative multi-class securities. SMBSs are usually structured with two classes and receive different proportions of the interest and principal distributions on the pool of underlying mortgage-backed securities. Due to the possibility of prepayments on the underlying mortgages, SMBSs may be more interest-rate sensitive than other securities purchased. If prevailing interest rates fall below the level at which SMBSs were issued, there may be substantial prepayments on the underlying mortgages, leading to the relatively early prepayments of principal-only SMBSs (the principal-only or "PO" class) and a reduction in the amount of payments made to holders of interest-only SMBSs (the interest-only or "IO" class). Therefore, the IO class generally increases in value as interest rates rise and decreases in value as interest rates fall, counter to the PO class and to changes in value experienced by most fixed income securities. If the underlying mortgages experience slower than anticipated prepayments of principal, the yield on a PO class will be affected more severely than would be the case with a traditional mortgage-related security. Because the yield to maturity of an IO class is extremely sensitive to the rate of principal payments (including prepayments) on the related underlying mortgage-backed securities, it is possible that a Fund might not recover its original investment in these securities as a result of a rapid rate of principal prepayments may occur even if the securities are rated AAA by an NRSRO. In view of these considerations, the Advisor intends to use these characteristics of interest-only SMBSs to reduce the effects of interest rate changes on the value of a Fund's portfolio, while continuing to pursue current income.

Municipal Securities

Municipal securities generally include debt obligations (bonds, notes or commercial paper) issued by or on behalf of any of the 50 states and their political subdivisions, agencies and public authorities. The interest paid on municipal securities generally is tax-exempt. Municipal

securities are issued to obtain funds for various public purposes, including the construction of public facilities, such as airports, bridges, highways, housing, hospitals, mass transportation, schools, streets, water and sewer works, gas, and electric utilities. They may also be issued to refund outstanding obligations or to obtain funds for general operating expenses. Municipal leases are issued by a state or local government to acquire equipment or facilities, the obligations of which are typically secured by the leased equipment or facilities.

Non-Investment Grade Securities

The fixed income securities in which the Global Select Markets Fund invests may be rated BB+ or lower by Standard & Poor's or Ba or lower by Moody's (referred to as "junk bonds"). Securities rated below investment grade generally entail greater interest rate, liquidity and credit risks than investment grade securities.

Obligations of Supranational Entities

For a discussion of Obligations of Supranational Entities, please see the "Foreign Securities" discussion in this section.

Options

A call option gives the purchaser of the option the right to buy a security at a stated price from the writer (seller) of the option. A put option gives the purchaser of the option the right to sell a security at a stated price to the writer of the option. In a covered call option, during the option period the writer owns the security (or a comparable security sufficient to satisfy securities exchange requirements) which may be sold pursuant to the option. In a covered put option, the writer holds cash and/or short-term debt instruments sufficient in an amount equal to the exercise price of the option. In addition, a put or call option will be considered covered if and to the extent that some or all of the risk of the option has been offset by another option. A Fund may write combinations of covered puts and calls on the same underlying security.

In general, a Fund may write options in an attempt to increase returns or purchase options for hedging purposes.

The premium received from writing a put or call option, increases a Fund's return on the underlying security in the event that the option expires unexercised or is closed out at a profit. The amount of the premium reflects, among other things, the relationship between the exercise price and the current market value of the underlying security, the volatility of the underlying security, the amount of time remaining until expiration, current interest rates, and the effect of supply and demand in the options market and in the market for the underlying security. A put option locks in the price at which a Fund may sell a security it holds, thus hedging against market declines and a call option locks in the price at which a Fund may purchase a security, thus hedging against inflation. Such protection is provided during the life of the put option since the Fund, as holder of the option, is able to sell the underlying security at the option's exercise price regardless of any decline in the underlying security source. By writing a call option, a Fund limits its opportunity to profit from any increase in the market value of the underlying security above the exercise price of the option but continues to bear the risk of a decline in the value of the underlying security. By writing a put option, a Fund assumes the risk that it may be required to purchase the underlying security for an exercise price higher than its then current market value, resulting in a potential capital loss unless the security substantially appreciates in value.

A Fund may terminate an option that it has written prior to its expiration by entering into a closing purchase transaction, in which it purchases an offsetting option. A Fund realizes a profit or loss from a closing transaction if the cost of the transaction (option premium plus transaction costs) is less or more than the premium received from writing the option. Because increases in the market price of a call option generally reflect increases in the market price of the security underlying the option, any loss resulting from a closing purchase transaction may be offset in whole or in part by unrealized appreciation of the underlying security owned by a Fund.

In order for a put option to be profitable, the market price of the underlying security must decline sufficiently below the exercise price to cover the premium and transaction costs. By using put options in this manner a Fund will reduce any profit it might otherwise have realized from appreciation of the underlying security by the premium paid for the put option and by transaction costs.

In order for a call option to be profitable, the market price of the underlying security must rise sufficiently above the exercise price to cover the premium and transaction costs.

Those Funds that are authorized to write or purchase put and call options must cover such options.

The successful use of options depends on the ability of the Advisor to forecast interest rate and market movements. For example, if a Fund were to write a call option based on the Advisor's expectation that the price of the underlying security will fall, but the price rises instead, the Fund could be required to sell the security upon exercise at a price below the current market price. Similarly, if a Fund were to write a put option based on the Advisor's expectations that the price of the underlying security will rise, but the price

falls instead, the Fund could be required to purchase the security upon exercise at a price higher than the current market price.

When a Fund purchases an option, it runs the risk that it will lose its entire investment in the option in a relatively short period of time, unless the Fund exercises the option or enters into a closing sale transaction with respect to the option during the life of the option. If the price of the

underlying security does not rise (in the case of a call) or fall (in the case of a put) to an extent sufficient to cover the option premium and transaction costs, a Fund will lose part or all of its investment in the option. This contrasts with an investment by a Fund in the underlying security, since the Fund will not lose any of its investment in such security if the price does not change.

The use of options also involves the risk of imperfect correlation between movements in option prices and movements in the value of the underlying securities.

The effective use of options also depends on the Fund's ability to terminate option positions at times when the Advisor deems it desirable to do so. Although a Fund will take an option position only if the Advisor believes there is a liquid secondary market for the option, there is no assurance that the Fund will be able to effect a closing transaction at any particular time or at an acceptable price.

A Fund generally expects that its options transactions will be conducted on recognized exchanges. In certain instances, however, a Fund may purchase and sell options in the OTC markets. A Fund's ability to terminate options in the OTC market may be more limited than for exchange-traded options and may also involve the risk that securities dealers participating in such transactions would be unable to meet their obligations to a Fund. A Fund will, however, engage in OTC market transactions only when appropriate exchange-traded transactions are unavailable and when, in the opinion of the Advisor, the pricing mechanism and liquidity of the OTC market is satisfactory and the participants are responsible parties likely to meet their contractual obligations.

If a secondary trading market in options were to become unavailable, a Fund could no longer engage in closing transactions. Lack of investor interest might adversely affect the liquidity of the market for particular options or series of options. A market may discontinue trading of a particular option or options generally. In addition, a market could become temporarily unavailable if unusual events—such as volume in excess of trading or clearing capability—were to interrupt its normal operations.

A market may at times find it necessary to impose restrictions on particular types of options transactions, such as opening transactions. For example, if an underlying security ceases to meet qualifications imposed by the market or the Options Clearing Corporation, new series of options on that security will no longer be opened to replace expiring series, and opening transactions in existing series may be prohibited. If an options market were to become unavailable, a Fund as a holder of an option would be able to realize profits or limit losses only by exercising the option, and the Fund, as option writer, would remain obligated under the option until expiration.

Disruptions in the markets for the securities underlying options purchased or sold by a Fund could result in losses on the options. If trading is interrupted in an underlying security, the trading of options on that security is normally halted as well. As a result, a Fund as purchaser or writer of an option will be unable to close out its positions until options trading resumes, and it may be faced with considerable losses if trading in the security reopens at a substantially different price. In addition, the Options Clearing Corporation or other options markets may impose exercise restrictions. If a prohibition on exercise is imposed at the time when trading in the option has also been halted, a Fund as a purchaser or writer of an option will be locked into its position until one of the two restrictions has been lifted. If the Options Clearing Corporation were to determine that the available supply of an underlying security appears insufficient to permit delivery by the writers of all outstanding calls in the event of exercise, it may prohibit indefinitely the exercise of put options by holders who would be unable to deliver the underlying interest. A Fund, as holder of such a put option, could lose its entire investment if the prohibition remained in effect until the put option's expiration and the Fund was unable either to acquire the underlying security or to sell the put option in the market.

Special risks are presented by internationally-traded options. Because of time differences between the United States and various foreign countries, and because different holidays are observed in different countries, foreign options markets may be open for trading during hours or on days when U.S. markets are closed. As a result, option premium may not reflect the current prices of the underlying interest in the United States.

An exchange-listed option may be closed out only on an exchange which provides a secondary market for an option of the same series. There is no assurance that a liquid secondary market on an exchange will exist for any particular option or at any particular time. If no secondary market were to exist, it would be impossible to enter into a closing transaction to close out an option position. As a result, a Fund may be forced to continue to hold, or to purchase at a fixed price, a security on which it has sold an option at a time when the Advisor believes it is inadvisable to do so.

Higher than anticipated trading activity or order flow or other unforeseen events might cause the Options Clearing Corporation or an exchange to institute special trading procedures or restrictions that might restrict a Fund's use of options. The exchanges have established limitations on the maximum number of calls and puts of each class that may be held or written by an investor or group of investors acting in concert. It is possible that the Trust and other clients of the Advisor may be considered such a group. These position limits may restrict the Trust's ability to purchase or sell options on particular securities. Options which are not traded on national securities exchanges may be closed out only with the other party to the option transaction. For that reason, it may be more difficult to close out unlisted options than listed options. Furthermore, unlisted options are not subject to the protection afforded purchasers of listed options by the Options Clearing Corporation.

Preferred Stock

Preferred stock is a type of equity security which represents an ownership interest in a corporation and the right to a portion of the assets of the corporation in the event of a liquidation. This right, however, is subordinate to that of any creditors, including holders of debt issued by the corporation. Owners of preferred stock ordinarily do not have voting rights, but are entitled to dividends at a specified rate.

Real Estate Investment Trusts ("REITs")

REITs are pooled investment vehicles which invest primarily in income producing real estate or real estate related loans or interest. REITs are generally classified as equity REITs, mortgage REITs or a combination of equity and mortgage REITs. Equity REITs invest the majority of their assets directly in real property and derive income primarily from the collection of rents. Equity REITs can also realize capital gains by selling property that has appreciated in value. Mortgage REITs invest the majority of their assets in real estate mortgages and derive income from the collection of interest payments. The real property and mortgages serving as investment vehicles for REITs may be either residential or commercial in nature and may include healthcare facilities. Similar to investment companies, REITs are not taxed on income distributed to shareholders provided they comply with several requirements of the Code. Such tax requirements limit a REIT's ability to respond to changes in the commercial real estate market.

Investments in REITs are subject to the same risks as direct investments in real estate. Real estate values rise and fall in response to many factors, including local, regional and national economic conditions, the demand for rental property, and interest rates. In addition, REITs may have limited financial resources, may trade less frequently and in limited volume and may be more volatile than other securities.

Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements are agreements through which banks, broker-dealers and other financial institutions approved by the Trustees, sell securities (usually U.S. Government securities) to a Fund and agree to repurchase those securities at a specified price and time (usually not more than seven days from the original sale). The seller's obligation to pay the repurchase price is secured by the securities to be repurchased. These securities are required to be held by the Fund, its custodian or a third-party custodian. In order to protect the Fund's interest, collateral securities must have a value of at least 100% of the resale price at all times. (The seller must provide additional collateral in the event that this condition is not met). In general, the Advisor will require collateral securities to have a value of at least 102% of the resale price at the time the repurchase agreement is made. The collateral is marked to market on a daily basis, thus enabling the Advisor to determine when to request additional collateral from the seller.

If a seller defaults on its repurchase obligation, a Fund could realize a loss on the sale of the underlying securities to the extent that the proceeds of the sale (including accrued interest) are less than the resale price. In addition, even though the U.S. Bankruptcy Code provides protection to a Fund if the seller becomes bankrupt or insolvent, the Fund may suffer losses in such event.

Restricted and Illiquid Securities

Restricted securities are any securities which are subject to restriction on resale under federal securities law, including commercial paper issued in reliance on the exemption from registration afforded by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. Illiquid securities are any securities for which there is a limited trading market and may, therefore, be difficult to sell at market value. Because restricted and illiquid securities may be difficult to sell at an acceptable price, they may be subject to greater volatility and may result in a loss to a Fund.

Section 4(2) commercial paper is generally sold to institutional investors, such as mutual funds, who agree that they are purchasing the paper for investment purposes and not with a view to public distribution. Any resale by the purchaser must be in an exempt transaction. Section 4(2) commercial paper is normally resold to other institutional investors through or with the assistance of the issuer or investment dealers who make a market in Section 4(2) commercial paper, thus providing liquidity. The Advisor believes that Section 4(2) commercial paper and possibly certain other restricted securities which meet the criteria for liquidity established by the Trustees are quite liquid. Therefore, the Trust intends to treat these securities as liquid and not subject to the investment limitation applicable to illiquid securities.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Each Fund, except the U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund, may borrow funds for temporary purposes by entering into reverse repurchase agreements, provided such action is consistent with the Fund's investment objective and fundamental investment restrictions. As a matter of non-fundamental policy, each Fund intends to limit total borrowings under reverse repurchase agreements to no more than 10% of the value of its total assets. Pursuant to a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund will sell portfolio securities to

financial institutions such as banks or to broker-dealers, and agree to repurchase the securities at a mutually agreed-upon date and price. A Fund intends to enter into reverse repurchase agreements only to avoid otherwise selling securities during unfavorable market conditions to meet redemptions. At the time a Fund enters into a reverse repurchase agreement, it will place in a segregated custodial account assets such as U.S. Government securities or other liquid assets consistent with the Fund's investment objective having a value equal to 100% of the repurchase price (including accrued interest), and will subsequently monitor the account to ensure that an equivalent value is maintained. Reverse repurchase agreements involve the risk that the market value of the securities sold by a Fund may decline below the price at which a Fund is obligated to repurchase the securities. Reverse repurchase agreements are considered to be borrowings by a Fund under the 1940 Act.

Securities Lending

In order to generate additional income, each of the Funds may lend its portfolio securities on a short-term basis to certain brokers, dealers or other financial institutions. In determining whether to lend to a particular broker, dealer or financial institution, the Advisor will consider all relevant facts and circumstances, including the size, creditworthiness and reputation of the borrower. Any loans made will be continuously secured by collateral in cash at least equal to 100% of the value of the securities on loan for the Funds. All Funds may each lend up to 33^{1/3}% of their total assets. Such loans must be fully collateralized by cash, U.S. government obligations or other high-quality debt obligations and marked to market daily. Although the loan is fully collateralized, if the borrower defaults, a Fund could lose money.

While portfolio securities are on loan, the borrower will pay to the lending Fund any dividends or interest received on the securities. In addition, the Fund retains all or a portion of the interest received on investment of the collateral or receives a fee from the borrower. Although voting rights, or rights to consent, with respect to the loaned securities pass to the borrower, the lending Fund retains the right to call the loans at any time on reasonable notice, and it will do so to enable a Fund to exercise voting rights on any matters materially affecting the investment. A Fund may also call such loans in order to sell the securities.

One of the risks in lending portfolio securities, as with other extensions of credit, is the possible delay in recovery of the securities or possible loss of rights in the collateral should the borrower fail financially. There is also the risk that, when lending portfolio securities, the securities may not be available to a Fund on a timely basis and a Fund may, therefore, lose the opportunity to sell the securities at a desirable price. In addition, in the event that a borrower of securities would file for bankruptcy or become insolvent, disposition of the securities may be delayed pending court action.

Small Cap/Special Equity Situation Securities

Certain Funds may invest in the securities of small capitalization companies and companies in special equity situations. Companies are considered to have a small market capitalization if their capitalization is within the range of those companies in the S&P 600 SmallCap Index. Companies are considered to be experiencing special equity situations if they are experiencing unusual and possibly non-repetitive developments, such as mergers; acquisitions; spin-offs; liquidations; reorganizations; and new products, technology or management. These companies may offer greater opportunities for capital appreciation than larger, more established companies, but investment in such companies may involve certain special risks. These risks may be due to the greater business risks of small size, limited markets and financial resources, narrow product lines and frequent lack of depth in management. The securities of such companies may be less liquid, and subject to more abrupt or erratic market movements than securities of larger, more established growth companies. Since a "special equity situation" may involve a significant change from a company's past experiences, the uncertainties in the appraisal of the future value of the company's equity securities and the risk of a possible decline in the value of the Funds' investments are significant.

Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper and Tax-Exempt Securities

Tax-exempt commercial paper typically represents very short-term, unsecured, negotiable promissory notes. These obligations are often issued to meet seasonal working capital needs of municipalities or to provide interim construction financing. The obligations are paid from general revenues of municipalities or are refinanced with long-term debt. In most cases, tax-exempt commercial paper is backed by letters of credit, lending agreements, note repurchase agreements or other credit facility agreements offered by banks or other institutions which may be called upon in the event of default by the issuer of the commercial paper.

Tax-exempt securities are debt obligations the interest on which is, in the opinion of bond counsel for the issuing governmental entity or agency, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Examples of tax-exempt securities include fixed and floating or variable rate municipal obligations, tax-exempt notes, certificates of participation, trust and partnership interests in municipal obligations, tax-exempt commercial paper, stand-by commitments and private activity bonds.

Tax-exempt securities are issued to obtain monies for various public purposes, including the construction of a wide range of public facilities such as bridges, highways, roads, schools, water and sewer works, and other utilities. Other public purposes for which taxexempt securities may be issued include refunding outstanding obligations, obtaining monies for general operating expenses and to lend to other public institutions and facilities. The two principal classifications of tax-exempt securities are general obligation and limited obligation (or revenue) securities. General obligation securities are obligations involving the credit of an issuer possessing taxing power and are payable from the issuer's general unrestricted revenues and not from any particular fund or source. The characteristics and methods of enforcement of general obligation securities vary according to the law applicable to the particular issuer. Limited obligation securities are payable only from the revenues derived from a particular facility or class or facilities or, in some cases, from the proceeds of a special excise or other specific revenue source, and generally are not payable from the unrestricted revenues of the issuer. Private activity bonds generally are limited obligation securities, the credit and quality of which are usually directly related to the credit of the private user of the facilities. Payment of principal of and interest on these bonds is the responsibility of the private user (and any guarantor).

Tax-exempt notes and tax-exempt commercial paper are generally used to provide for short-term capital needs, seasonal working capital needs of municipalities or to provide interim construction financing, and generally have maturities of one year or less. Tax-exempt notes include tax anticipation notes ("TANs"), revenue anticipation notes ("RANs") and bond anticipation notes ("BANs"). TANs are issued to finance working capital needs of municipalities. Generally, they are issued in anticipation of various seasonal tax revenues, such as income, sales, use and business taxes, and are payable from these specific future taxes. RANs are issued in expectation of receipt of other kinds of revenue, such as federal revenues or grants available under the federal revenue sharing programs. BANs are issued to provide interim financing until long-term financing can be arranged. In most cases, the long-term bonds then provide the money for the repayment of the notes. Tax-exempt commercial paper is typically backed by letters of credit, lending agreements, note repurchase agreements or other credit facility agreements offered by banks or other institutions and is actively traded.

Private activity bonds (sometimes called "industrial development bonds") may be issued by or on behalf of public authorities to obtain funds to support certain privately owned or operated facilities. Because dividends attributable to interest on such bonds may not be tax exempt, it may not be desirable for an investor to purchase shares of a Fund which invests in private activity bonds, if such investor is a "substantial user" of facilities which are financed by private activity bonds or industrial development bonds or a "related person" of such a substantial user.

Tax-exempt securities may be purchased through the acquisition of certificates of accrual or similar instruments evidencing direct ownership of interest payments or principal payments, or both, on tax-exempt securities. In such arrangements, any discount accruing on a certificate or instrument that is purchased at a yield not greater than the coupon rate of interest on the related tax-exempt securities must be exempt from federal income tax and applicable state income taxes to the same extent as interest on such tax-exempt securities, in the opinion of counsel to the initial seller of each such certificate or instrument.

Tax-exempt securities may also be acquired by purchasing from banks participation interests in all or part of specific holdings of taxexempt securities. Such participations may be backed in whole or in part by an irrevocable letter of credit or guarantee of the selling bank. A Fund will have the right to sell the interest back to the bank or other financial institutions and draw on the letter of credit on demand, generally on seven days' notice, for all or any part of the Fund's participation interest in the par value of the municipal obligation plus accrued interest. The Advisor will generally exercise the demand on a letter of credit only under the following circumstances: (1) upon default of any of the terms of the documents of the municipal obligation, (2) as needed to provide liquidity in order to meet redemptions, or (3) in order to maintain a high quality investment portfolio. The selling bank may receive a fee in connection with the arrangement. Banks and financial institutions are subject to extensive governmental regulations which may limit the amounts and types of loans and other financial commitments that may be made and interest rates and fees which may be charged. The profitability of banks and financial institutions is largely dependent upon the availability and cost of capital funds to finance lending operations under prevailing money market conditions. General economic conditions also play an important part in the operations of these entities and exposure to credit losses arising from possible financial difficulties of borrowers may affect the ability of a bank or financial institution to meet its obligations with respect to a participation interest. A Fund which purchases a participation interest must receive an opinion of counsel or a ruling of the Internal Revenue Service stating that interest earned by it on the taxexempt securities in which it holds such participation interest is excluded from gross income for federal regular income tax purposes and applicable state income taxes.

Prices and yields on tax-exempt securities are dependent on a variety of factors, including general money market conditions, the financial condition of the issuer, general conditions in the market for tax-exempt obligations, the size of a particular offering, and the maturity of the obligation and ratings of particular issues, and are subject to change from time to time. Information about the financial condition of an issuer of tax-exempt bonds or notes may not be as extensive as that which is made available by corporations whose securities are publicly traded.

Congress or state legislatures may seek to extend the time for payment of principal or interest, or both, or to impose other constraints upon enforcement of tax-exempt securities. There is also the possibility that, as a result of litigation or other conditions, the power or ability of issuers to meet their obligations to pay interest on and principal of their tax-exempt securities may be materially impaired or their obligations may be found to be invalid or unenforceable. Such litigation or conditions may from time to time have the effect of introducing uncertainties in the market for tax exempt obligations or certain segments thereof, or may materially affect the credit risk with respect to particular bonds or notes. Adverse economic, business, legal or political developments might affect all or a substantial portion of tax-exempt securities in the same manner. Obligations of issuers of tax-exempt securities are subject to the provisions of bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws, such as the Federal Bankruptcy Code, affecting the rights and remedies of creditors.

The Code imposes certain continuing requirements on issuers of tax-exempt securities regarding the use, expenditure and investment of bond proceeds and the payment of rebates to the United States of America. Failure by the issuer to comply subsequent to the issuance of tax- exempt bonds with certain of these requirements could cause interest on the bonds to become includable in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance.

Time Deposits

For a discussion of Time Deposits, please see the "Money Market Instruments" discussion in this section.

Treasury Receipts

For a discussion of Treasury Receipts, please see the "Money Market Instruments" discussion in this section.

Unit Investment Trusts

Unit Investment Trusts are a type of investment company, registered with the SEC under the 1940 Act, that purchases a fixed portfolio of income-producing securities, such as corporate, municipal, or government bonds, mortgage-backed securities, or preferred stock. Unit holders receive an undivided interest in both the principal and the income portion of the portfolio in proportion to the amount of capital they invest. The portfolio of securities remains fixed until all the securities mature and unit holders have recovered their principal. Certain exchange traded funds are organized as unit investment trusts.

U.S. Government Securities

U.S. Government securities are securities that are either issued or guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities. U.S. Government securities are limited to: direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury; such as bills, notes, and bonds of the U.S. Treasury, and notes, bonds, and discount notes of U.S. Government agencies or instrumentalities, including certain mortgage securities.

Some obligations issued or guaranteed by agencies or instrumentalities of the U.S. Government, such as Government National Mortgage Association participation certificates, are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury.

Other such obligations are only supported by: the issuer's right to borrow an amount limited to a specific line of credit from the U.S. Treasury; the discretionary authority of the U.S. Government to purchase certain obligations of an agency or instrumentality; or the credit of the agency or instrumentality.

Agency securities are issued or guaranteed by a federal agency or other government sponsored entity ("GSE") acting under federal authority. Some GSE securities are supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government and some GSE securities are not. GSE securities backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government include the Government National Mortgage Association, Small Business Administration, Farm Credit System Financial Assistance Corporation, Farmer's Home Administration, Federal Financing Bank, General Services Administration, Department of Housing and Urban Development, Export-Import Bank, Overseas Private Investment Corporation, and Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority Bonds.

GSE securities, not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government but that receive support through federal subsidies, loans or other benefits include those issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC"), Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), and Tennessee Valley Authority in support of such obligations.

In September 2008, the U.S. Treasury announced that FNMA and FHLMC were placed in conservatorship by the Federal Housing Finance Agency ("FHFA"), a newly created independent regulator. The conservatorship has no specified termination date. FNMA also has entered into a senior preferred stock purchase agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant to which Treasury has committed to provide funding to FNMA under specified circumstances. There can be no assurance as to when or how the conservatorship will be terminated or whether FNMA or FHLMC will continue to exist following the conservatorship or what their respective business structures will be during or following the conservatorship. The FHFA, as conservator, has the power to repudiate any contract entered into by FNMA or FHLMC prior to its appointment if it determines that performance of the contract is burdensome and repudiation of the contract promotes the orderly administration of FNMA's or FHLMC's affairs. Further, the FHFA has the right to transfer or sell any asset or liability of FNMA or FHLMC without any approval, assignment or consent. If FHFA were to transfer any such guaranty obligation to another party, holders of FNMA or FHLMC mortgage-backed securities would have to rely on that party for satisfaction of the guaranty obligation and would be exposed to the credit risk of that party. FNMA also has entered into a senior preferred stock purchase agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant to which Treasury has committed to provide funding to FNMA under specified circumstances.

Certain other GSE securities are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government and have no explicit financial support, including the Farm Credit System, Financing Corporation, and Resolution Funding Corporation.

Investors regard agency securities as having low credit risks, but not as low as Treasury securities. A Fund treats mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by a GSE as if issued or guaranteed by a federal agency. Although such a guarantee protects against credit risks, it does not reduce market and prepayment risks.

U.S. Treasury Obligations

For a discussion of U.S. Treasury Obligations, please see the "U.S. Government Securities" discussion above.

U.S. Treasury Security Futures Contracts and Options

U.S. Treasury security futures contracts require the seller to deliver, or the purchaser to take delivery of, the type of U.S. Treasury security called for in the contract at a specified date and price. Options on U.S. Treasury securities futures contracts give the purchaser the right in return for the premium paid to assume a position in a U.S. Treasury security futures contract at the specified option exercise price at any time during the period of the option. U.S. Treasury security futures contracts may be used to hedge against movements in the value of tax-exempt securities.

Successful use of U.S. Treasury security futures contracts depends on the ability to predict the direction of interest rate movements and the effects of other factors on the value of debt securities. For example, the sale of U.S. Treasury security futures contracts is used to hedge against the possibility of an increase in interest rates which would adversely affect the value of tax-exempt securities held in a Fund's portfolio. If, unexpectedly, the prices of the tax-exempt securities increase following a decline in interest rates, the Fund will lose part or all of the benefit of the increased value of its securities which it has hedged because it will have offsetting losses in its futures positions. In addition, in such situations, if the Fund has insufficient cash, it may have to sell securities to meet daily maintenance margin requirements at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so.

There is also a risk that price movements in U.S. Treasury security futures contracts and related options will not correlate closely with price movements in markets for tax-exempt securities. For example, if a Fund has hedged against a decline in the values of tax-exempt securities held by it by selling U.S. Treasury securities futures and the value of U.S. Treasury securities subsequently increases while the value of its tax-exempt securities decreases, the Fund will incur losses on both its U.S. Treasury security futures contracts and its tax-exempt securities. The Advisor will seek to reduce this risk by monitoring movements in markets for U.S. Treasury security futures and options and for tax-exempt securities closely.

Warrants

Warrants are basically options to purchase common stock at a specific price (usually at a premium above the market value of the optioned common stock at issuance) valid for a specific period of time. Warrants may have a life ranging from less than a year to twenty years or may be perpetual. However, most warrants have expiration dates after which they are worthless. In addition, if the market price of the common stock does not exceed the warrant's exercise price during the life of the warrant, the warrant will expire as worthless. Warrants have no voting rights, pay no dividends, and have no rights with respect to the assets of the corporation issuing them. The percentage increase or decrease in the market price of the optioned common stock.

When-issued and Delayed Delivery Transactions

When-issued and delayed delivery transactions are arrangements through which a Fund purchases securities with payment and delivery scheduled for a future time. No fees or other expenses, other than normal transaction costs, are incurred. However, liquid assets of the purchasing Fund sufficient to make payment for the securities are segregated on the Fund's records at the trade date. These assets are then marked to market daily and maintained until the transaction has been settled. A seller's failure to complete a transaction may cause a Fund to miss a desired price or yield. In addition, because of delayed settlement, a Fund may pay more than market value on the settlement date. The Advisor may choose to dispose of a commitment prior to settlement.

With the exception of the Dividend Capture Fund and the Situs Fund, which may invest up to 25% of their total assets in securities purchased on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis, and the Global Select Markets Fund, which has no such restrictions on total assets, none of the Funds intend to engage in when-issued and delayed delivery transactions to an extent that would cause the segregation of more than 20% of the total value of a Fund's assets.

Zero-coupon Securities

Zero-coupon securities are debt obligations which are generally issued at a discount and payable in full at maturity, and which do not provide for current payments of interest prior to maturity. Zero-coupon securities usually trade at a deep discount from their face or par value and are subject to greater market value fluctuations from changing interest rates than debt obligations of comparable maturities which make current distributions of interest. As a result, the NAV of shares of a Fund investing in zero-coupon securities may fluctuate over a greater range than shares of other mutual funds investing in securities making current distributions of interest and having similar maturities.

Zero-coupon securities may include U.S. Treasury bills issued directly by the U.S. Treasury or other short-term debt obligations, and longer-term bonds or notes and their unmatured interest coupons which have been separated by their holder, typically a custodian bank or investment brokerage firm. A number of securities firms and banks have stripped the interest coupons from the underlying principal (the "corpus") of U.S. Treasury securities and resold them in custodial receipt programs with a number of different names, including TIGRS and CATS. The underlying U.S. Treasury bonds and notes themselves are held in book-entry form at the Federal Reserve Bank or, in the case of bearer securities (i.e., unregistered securities which are owned ostensibly by the bearer or holder thereof), in trust on behalf of the owners thereof.

In addition, the U.S. Treasury has facilitated transfers of ownership of zero-coupon securities by accounting separately for the beneficial ownership of particular interest coupons and corpus payments on U.S. Treasury securities through the Federal Reserve book-entry record-keeping system. The Federal Reserve program, as established by the U.S. Treasury Department, is known as "STRIPS" or "Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities." Under the STRIPS program, a Fund will be able to have its beneficial ownership of U.S. Treasury zero-coupon securities recorded directly in the book-entry record-keeping system in lieu of having to hold certificates or other evidence of ownership of the underlying U.S. Treasury securities. When debt obligations have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupons by the holder, the stripped coupons are sold separately. The principal or corpus is sold at a deep discount because the buyer receives only the right to receive a future fixed payment on the security and does not receive any rights to periodic cash interest payments. Once stripped or separated, the corpus and coupons may be sold separately.

Typically, the coupons are sold separately or grouped with other coupons with like maturity dates and sold in such bundled form. Purchasers of stripped obligations acquire, in effect, discount obligations that are economically identical to the zero-coupon securities issued directly by the obligor.

INVESTMENT RISKS

There are many factors which may affect an investment in the Funds. The Funds' principal risks are described in the Prospectus. Additional risk factors are outlined below.

Active Trading Risk

Active trading will cause the Fund to have an increased portfolio turnover rate, which is likely to generate shorter-term gains (losses) for its shareholders, which are taxed at a higher rate than longer-term gains (losses). Actively trading portfolio securities increases the Fund's trading costs and may have an adverse impact on the Fund's performance.

ADR and Domestically Traded Foreign Securities Risk

Because the Funds (except the Money Market Funds) may invest in ADRs and other domestically traded securities of foreign companies, the Funds' share price may be more affected by foreign economic and political conditions, taxation policies and accounting and auditing standards than would otherwise be the case. Foreign companies may not provide information as frequently or to as great an extent as companies in the United States. Foreign companies may also receive less coverage than U.S. companies by market analysts and the financial press. In addition, foreign companies may lack uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards or regulatory requirements comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies. These factors may prevent a Fund and its Advisor from obtaining information concerning foreign companies that is as frequent, extensive and reliable as the information concerning companies in the United States.

Advisor's Potential Conflict Risk

In managing the Balanced Allocation Fund, the Advisor has sole discretion in selecting and substituting the Underlying Funds in which the Fund will invest at any given time. Because the Advisor is primarily responsible for managing the Balanced Allocation Fund and certain of the Underlying Funds, the Advisor is subject to conflicts of interest with respect to how it allocates the Balanced Allocation Fund's assets among the various Underlying Funds. The conflict primarily arises because the expenses paid by the Advisor in connection with its management of certain of the Underlying Funds could be higher than expenses paid for other Underlying Funds, likewise, fees payable to the Advisor and/or its affiliates (primarily management fees) by some Underlying Funds are higher than the fees payable by other Underlying Funds. See "Fees Paid to Advisor and Affiliates."

Allocation Risk

Because the Balanced Allocation Fund has set limitations on the amount of assets that may be allocated to Underlying Equity Funds, Underlying Income Funds and Underlying Money Market Funds, respectively, the Balanced Allocation Fund has less flexibility in its investment strategies than funds that are not subject to such limitations. In addition, the asset allocations made by the Balanced Allocation Fund may not effectively decrease risk or increase returns for investors.

Asset-Backed Securities Risk

Asset-backed securities include interests in pools of debt securities, commercial or consumer loans, or other receivables. The value of these securities depends on many factors, including changes in interest rates, the availability of information concerning the pool and its structure, the credit quality of the underlying assets, the market's perception of the servicer of the pool, and any credit enhancement provided. In addition, asset-backed securities have prepayment risks similar to mortgage-backed securities.

Call Risk

Call risk is the possibility that an issuer may redeem a fixed income security before maturity (a call) at a price below its current market price. An increase in the likelihood of a call may reduce the security's price.

If a fixed income security is called, a Fund may have to reinvest the proceeds in other fixed income securities with lower interest rates, higher credit risks, or other less favorable characteristics.

Class/Sector/Region Focus Risk

When a Fund invests more than 25% of its net assets in securities of issuers within a particular geographic region or business sector or asset class, such as real estate-related or commodities-related securities, it is subject to increased risk. Performance will generally depend on the region's performance, which may differ in direction and degree from that of the overall stock market. In addition, financial, economic, business and political developments affecting the region or sector may have a greater effect on the Fund than it would on a fund that did not focus on the sector, asset class or region.

Commodities-Related Investment Risk

Neither the Advisor nor the Funds anticipate being subject to registration or regulation by the CFTC as a commodity pool, CPO or a commodity trading adviser ("CTA") under the CEA as a result of a Fund's commodities-related investments. However, should the Advisor or the Funds be deemed to fall under these categories, then the Advisor would be subject to registration and regulation in its capacity as the Funds' CPO or CTA, and the Funds would be subject to regulation as a commodity pool under the CEA. A Fund may incur additional expense as a result of the registration and regulation obligations and certain investments may be limited or restricted.

Correlation Risk

A number of factors may affect a Fund's ability to achieve a high degree of correlation with its benchmark, and there can be no guarantee that a Fund will achieve a high degree of correlation. A failure to achieve a high degree of correlation may prevent a Fund from achieving its investment objective. A number of factors may adversely affect a Fund's correlation with its benchmark, including fees, expenses, transaction costs, costs associated with the use of leveraged investment techniques, income items and accounting standards. A Fund may not have investment exposure to all securities in its underlying benchmark index, or its weighting of investment exposure to such stocks or industries may be different from that of the index. In addition, a Fund may invest in securities or financial instruments not included in the index underlying its benchmark. A Fund may be subject to large movements of assets into and out of the Fund, potentially resulting in the Fund being over- or under-exposed to its benchmark.

Activities surrounding annual index reconstitutions and other index rebalancing or reconstitution events may hinder the Funds' ability to meet their daily investment objective on that day. Each Fund seeks to rebalance its portfolio daily to keep leverage consistent with each Fund's daily investment objective.

Counterparty Risk

The value of the Fund's investments may be adversely affected if a security's credit rating is downgraded; an issuer of an investment held by the Fund fails to pay an obligation on a timely basis, otherwise defaults or is perceived by other investors to be less creditworthy; or a counterparty to a derivatives or other transaction with the Fund files for bankruptcy, becomes insolvent, or otherwise becomes unable or unwilling to honor its obligation to the Fund.

Credit Enhancement Risk

The securities in which the Funds invest may be subject to credit enhancement (for example, guarantees, letters of credit or bond insurance). Credit enhancement is designed to assure timely payment of the security; it does not protect the Fund against losses caused by declines in a security's value due to changes in market conditions. Securities subject to credit enhancement generally would be assigned a lower credit rating if the rating were based primarily on the credit quality of the issuer without regard to the credit enhancement. If the credit quality of the credit enhancement provider (for example, a bank or bond insurer) is downgraded, the rating on a security credit enhanced by such credit enhancement provider also may be downgraded.

A single bank, bond insurer or other enhancement provider may provide credit enhancement to more than one of the Fund's investments. Having multiple securities credit enhanced by the same enhancement provider will increase the adverse effects on the Fund that are likely to result from a downgrading of, or a default by, such an enhancement provider. Adverse developments in the banking or bond insurance industries also may negatively affect the Fund, as the Fund may invest its assets in securities credit enhanced by banks or by bond insurers without limit. Bond insurers that provide credit enhancement for large segments of the fixed income markets, particularly the municipal bond market, may be more susceptible to being downgraded or defaulting during recessions or similar periods of economic stress.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility that an issuer may default on a security by failing to pay interest or principal when due. If an issuer defaults, the Funds will lose money.

Many fixed income securities receive credit ratings from nationally recognized statistical rating organizations ("NRSROs") which assign ratings to securities by assessing the likelihood of issuer default. Lower credit ratings correspond to higher credit risk. If a security has not received a rating, the Funds must rely entirely upon the Advisor's credit assessment.

Fixed income securities generally compensate for greater credit risk by paying interest at a higher rate. The difference between the yield of a security and the yield of a U.S. Treasury security with a comparable maturity (the spread) measures the additional interest paid for risk. Spreads may increase generally in response to adverse economic or market conditions. A security's spread may also increase if the security's rating is lowered, or the security is perceived to have an increased credit risk. An increase in the spread will cause the price of the security to decline.

Derivative Contracts and Hybrid Instruments Risk

A Fund's investments in derivatives can significantly increase the Fund's exposure to market risk or credit risk of the counterparty. Derivatives also involve the risk of mispricing or improper valuation and the risk that changes in the value of the derivative may not correlate perfectly with the relevant assets, rates and indices.

When a derivative or other instrument is used as a hedge against an offsetting position that the Fund also holds, any loss generated by that derivative or other instrument will be substantially offset by the gains on the hedged security, and vice versa. To the extent the Fund uses a derivative security or other instrument for purposes other than as a hedge, or, if the Fund hedges imperfectly, the Fund is directly exposed to the risks of that derivative or other instrument and the risk that any loss generated by that derivative or other instrument will not be offset by a gain.

Derivative contracts and hybrid instruments involve risks different from, or possibly greater than, risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments. Specific risk issues related to the use of such contracts and instruments include valuation and tax issues, increased potential for losses and/or costs to the Fund, and a potential reduction in gains to the Fund. Each of these issues is described in greater detail in this prospectus. Derivative contracts and hybrid instruments may also involve other risks described in the prospectus or this SAI, such as market, interest rate, credit, currency, liquidity and leverage risks.

Emerging Markets Risk

In addition to all of the risks of investing in foreign developed markets, emerging market securities involve risks attendant to less mature and stable governments and economies, such as lower trading volume, trading suspension, security price volatility, repatriation restrictions, government confiscation, inflation, deflation, currency devaluation and adverse government regulations of industries or markets. As a result of these risks, the prices of emerging market securities tend to be more volatile than the securities of issuers located in developed markets.

Equity Securities Risk

Equity securities include common, preferred and convertible preferred stocks and securities the values of which are tied to the price of stocks, such as rights, warrants and convertible debt securities. Common and preferred stocks represent equity ownership in a company. Stock markets are volatile. The price of equity securities will fluctuate and can decline, reducing the value of a Fund. The price of equity securities fluctuates based on changes in a company's financial condition and overall market and economic conditions. The value of equity securities purchased by a Fund could decline if the financial condition of the companies in which the Fund is invested in declines or if overall market and economic conditions deteriorate.

Even Funds that invest in high quality or "blue chip" equity securities or securities of established companies with large market capitalizations (which generally have strong financial characteristics) can be negatively impacted by poor overall market and economic conditions. Companies with large market capitalizations may also have less growth potential than smaller companies and may be able to react less quickly to changes in the marketplace.

The Funds may maintain substantial exposure to equities and generally do not attempt to time the market. Because of this exposure, the possibility that stock market prices in general will decline over short or extended periods subjects the Funds to unpredictable declines in the value of their investments, as well as periods of poor performance.

Exchange-Traded Commodity Funds ("ETCFs") Risk

Commodities are tangible assets such as oil, agriculture, livestock, industrial metals, and precious metals such as gold or silver. The values of ETCFs are highly dependent on the prices of the commodities in which they invest; however, most ETCFs utilize futures trading to implement their strategies, which may produce returns that differ from those that would result from owning the underlying commodity. The demand and supply of these commodities may fluctuate widely based on such factors as interest rates, investors' expectations with respect to the rate of inflation, currency exchange rates, the production and cost levels of producing countries and/or forward selling by such producers, global or regional political, economic or financial events, purchases and sales by central banks, and trading activities by hedge funds and other commodity funds. ETCFs may use derivatives, such as futures, options and swaps, which exposes them to further risks, including counterparty risk (i.e., the risk that the institution on the other side of their trade will default). There may be times when the market price and NAV of an ETCF may vary significantly, and because the Fund buys and sells ETCFs at market price, it may pay more than NAV when buying an ETCF, and receive less than NAV when selling an ETCF. Additionally, an active trading market for an ETCF's shares may not develop or be maintained. The trading of an ETCF's shares may be halted if the listing exchange's officials deem such action appropriate, the shares are delisted from the exchange, or by the activation of market-wide "circuit breakers" (which are tied to large decreases in stock prices) that halt stock trading generally. Finally, the Fund incurs certain transaction costs in purchasing and selling ETCFs in the secondary market.

Exchange-Traded Funds ("ETFs")/Index-Based Securities Risk

An investment in an ETF or index-based security generally presents the same primary risks as an investment in a mutual fund that has the same investment objectives, strategies, and policies. The price of an ETF or index-based security can fluctuate up or down, and the Fund could lose money investing in an ETF or index-based security if the prices of the securities owned by the ETF or index-based security go down. In addition, ETFs and index-based securities may be subject to the following risks that do not apply to conventional mutual funds: (i) the market price of an ETF's or index-based security's shares may trade above or below their net asset value; (ii) an active trading market for an ETF's or index-based security's shares may not develop or be maintained; or (iii) trading of an ETF's or index-based security's shares may be halted if the listing exchange's officials deem such action appropriate, the shares are delisted from the exchange, or by the activation of market-wide "circuit breakers" (which are tied to large decreases in stock prices) that halt stock trading generally. See also "Ultrashort ETFs Risk" for further discussion on ETF Risk.

Extension Risk

Extension risk is the possibility that rising interest rates may cause prepayments on underlying obligations to occur at a slower than expected rate. This particular risk may effectively change a security which was considered short- or intermediate-term at the time of purchase into a long-term security. Long-term securities generally fluctuate more widely in response to changes in interest rates than short- or intermediate-term securities.

Fee Layering Risk

Because the Asset Allocation Funds may invest in underlying mutual funds or ETFs that have their own fees and expenses in addition to those charged directly by the Fund, the Fund may bear higher expenses than a Fund that invests directly in individual securities.

Foreign Custodial Services and Related Investment Costs Risk

Foreign custodial services and other costs relating to investment in international securities markets are generally more expensive than in the United States. Such markets have settlement and clearance procedures that differ from those in the United States. In certain markets, particularly emerging markets, there have been times when settlements have been unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. Inability of a Fund to make intended securities purchases due to settlement problems could cause a Fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security caused by settlement problems could result in losses to a Fund due to a subsequent decline in value of the portfolio security. In addition, security settlement and clearance procedures in some emerging market countries may not fully protect a Fund against loss or theft of its assets.

Foreign Investment/Currency Risk

Compared with investing in the United States, investing in foreign markets involves a greater degree and variety of risk. Investors in international or foreign markets may face delayed settlements, currency controls and adverse economic developments as well as higher overall transaction costs. In addition, fluctuations in the U.S. dollar's value versus other currencies may erode or reverse gains from investments denominated in foreign currencies or widen losses. Exchange rates for currencies fluctuate daily. Foreign governments may expropriate assets, impose capital or currency controls, impose punitive taxes, impose limits on ownership or nationalize a company or industry. Any of these actions could have a severe effect on security prices and impair the fund's ability to bring its capital or income back to the U.S. Exchange rate fluctuations also may impair an issuer's ability to repay U.S. dollar denominated debt, thereby increasing credit risk of such debt. Finally, the value of foreign securities may be affected by incomplete, less frequent or inaccurate financial information about their issuers, social upheavals or political actions ranging from tax code changes to governmental collapse. Foreign companies may also receive less coverage than U.S. companies by market analysts and the financial press. In addition, foreign countries may lack uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards or regulatory requirements comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies. These risks are greater in emerging markets. The combination of currency risk and market risk tends to make securities traded in foreign markets more volatile than securities traded exclusively in the United States.

Government Intervention and Extreme Volatility Risk

In the past, instability in the financial markets led the United States Government and other governments to take a number of unprecedented actions designed to support certain financial institutions and segments of the financial markets that experienced extreme volatility, and in some cases a lack of liquidity. Federal, state, and other governments, their regulatory agencies, or self-regulatory organizations could take actions that affect the regulation of the instruments in which the Funds invest, or the issuers of such instruments, in ways that are unforeseeable. Legislation or regulation may also change the way in which the Funds themselves are regulated. Such legislation or regulation could limit or preclude a Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.

Reduced liquidity in credit and fixed-income markets may adversely affect many issuers worldwide. Reduced liquidity may also result in less money being available to purchase raw materials, goods and services from emerging markets, which may, in turn, bring down the prices of these economic staples. It may also result in emerging market issuers having more difficulty obtaining financing, which may, in turn, cause a decline in their stock prices. If they arise, these issues may have an adverse effect on the Funds.

In the wake of the financial crises that began in 2008, the Federal Reserve System attempted to stabilize the U.S. economy and support the U.S. economic recovery by keeping the federal funds rate at or near zero percent. In addition, the Federal Reserve has purchased large quantities of securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities on the open market (the "quantitative easing program"). As a result, the United States is experiencing historically low interest rate levels. A low interest rate environment may have an adverse impact on the Fund's ability to provide a positive yield to its shareholders and pay expenses out of Fund assets because of the low yields from the Fund's portfolio investments.

However, continued economic recovery and the cessation of the quantitative easing program increase the risk that interest rates will rise in the near future and that the Funds will face a heightened level of interest rate risk. Federal Reserve policy changes may expose fixed-income and related markets to heightened volatility and may reduce liquidity for certain Fund investments, which could cause the value of a Fund's investments and a Fund's share price to decline or create difficulties for the Fund in disposing of investments. A Fund that invests in derivatives tied to fixed-income markets may be more substantially exposed to these risks than a Fund that does not invest in derivatives. If rising interest rates cause a Fund to lose enough value, the Fund could also face increased shareholder redemptions, which could force the Fund to liquidate its investments at disadvantageous times or prices, thereby adversely affecting the Fund. To the extent a Fund experiences high redemptions because of these policy changes, a Fund may experience increased portfolio turnover, which will increase the costs that a Fund incurs and lower a Fund's performance.

Hedging Risk

When a derivative (a security whose value is based on that of another security or index) is used as a hedge against an opposite position that a fund holds, any loss on the derivative should be substantially offset by gains on the hedged investment, and vice versa. Although hedging can be an effective way to reduce a Fund's risk, it may not always be possible to perfectly offset one position with another. As a result, there is no assurance that a Fund's hedging transactions will be effective.

Interest Rate Risk

Prices of fixed income securities rise and fall in response to changes in the interest rate paid by similar securities. Generally, when interest rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall. However, market factors, such as the demand for particular fixed income securities, may cause the price of certain fixed income securities to fall while the prices of other securities rise or remain unchanged.

Interest rate changes have a greater effect on the price of fixed income securities with longer durations. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a fixed income security to changes in interest rates. See also Government Intervention and Extreme Volatility Risk.

Investment Style Risk

The risk that the particular type of investment on which a Fund focuses (such as small cap value stocks or large-cap growth stocks) may underperform other asset classes or the overall market. Individual market segments tend to go through cycles of performing better or worse than other types of securities. These periods may last as long as several years. Additionally, a particular market segment could fall out of favor with investors, causing a Fund that focuses on that market segment to underperform those that favor other kinds of securities.

Leverage Risk

Some transactions, such as derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and dollar rolls, may give rise to a form of leverage, which may expose the Fund to greater risk and increase its costs. When transactions create leverage, adverse changes in the value or level of the underlying asset, reference rate or index can result in a loss substantially greater than the amount invested in the derivatives or other instruments themselves. Certain transactions have the potential for unlimited loss, regardless of the size of the initial investments. Increases and decreases in the value of the securities held by the Fund and therefore in the Fund's net asset value will be magnified when the Fund uses leverage because leverage tends to increase the Fund's exposure to market risk, interest rate risk or other risks by, in effect, increasing assets available for investment.

To mitigate leverage risk, the Advisor will segregate liquid assets on the books of the Fund or otherwise cover the transactions. The use of leverage may cause the Fund to liquidate Fund positions when it may not be advantageous to do so to satisfy its obligations or to meet segregation requirements. The Fund will also have to pay interest on its borrowing, reducing the Fund's return. This interest expense may be greater than the Fund's return on the underlying investment.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the possibility that a Fund may not be able to sell a security or close out a derivative contract when it wants to. If this happens, a Fund will be required to continue to hold the security or keep the position open, and a Fund could incur losses. OTC derivative contracts generally carry greater liquidity risk than exchange-traded contracts.

Management Risk

The risk that a strategy used by a Fund's portfolio manager may fail to produce the intended result. This includes the risk that changes in the value of a hedging instrument will not match those of the asset being hedged.

Manager Risk

The Advisor's selection of securities for a Fund may cause a Fund to underperform similar funds or relevant benchmarks.

Market Capitalization Risk

Stocks fall into three broad market capitalization categories-large, medium and small. A Fund that invests primarily in one of these categories carries the risk that due to current market conditions that category may be out of favor with investors. If valuations of large capitalization companies appear to be greatly out of proportion to the valuations of small or medium capitalization companies, investors may migrate to the stocks of small and medium-sized companies. Larger, more established companies may also be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges such as changes in technology and consumer tastes. Many larger companies also may not be able to attain the high growth rate of successful smaller companies, especially during extended periods of economic expansion. Investing in medium and small capitalization companies may be subject to special risks associated with narrower product lines, more limited financial resources, fewer experienced managers, dependence on a few key employees, and a more limited trading market for their stocks, as compared with larger companies. In addition, securities of these companies are subject to the risk that, during certain periods, the liquidity of particular issuers or industries will shrink or disappear with little forewarning as a result of adverse economic or market conditions, or adverse investor perceptions, whether or not accurate. Securities of medium and smaller capitalization issuers may therefore be subject to greater price volatility and may decline more significantly in market downturns than securities of larger companies. Smaller and medium capitalization issuers may also require substantial additional capital to support their operations, to finance expansion or to maintain their competitive position; and may have substantial borrowings or may otherwise have a weak financial condition, and may be susceptible to bankruptcy. Transaction costs for these investments are often higher than those of larger capitalization companies. There is typically less publicly available information about small capitalization companies. Some small and medium capitalization companies also may be relatively new issuers, which carries risks in addition to the risks of other medium and small capitalization companies. New issuers may be more speculative because such companies are relatively unseasoned. These companies will often be involved in the development or marketing of a new product with no established market, which could lead to significant losses.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a security will move up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably. These fluctuations, which are often referred to as "volatility," may cause a security to be worth less than it was worth at an earlier time. Market risk may affect a single issuer, industry or sector of the economy or the market as a whole. Market risk is common to most investments, including stocks and bonds, and the mutual funds that invest in them. Bonds and other fixed income securities generally involve less market risk than stocks. The risks of investing in bonds, however, can vary significantly depending upon factors such as issuer and maturity. The bonds of some companies may be riskier than the stocks of others.

Mid/Small Cap Stock Risk

To the extent that the Fund invests in small cap and mid cap stocks, it takes on additional risks. Generally, the smaller the market capitalization of a company, the fewer the number of shares traded daily, the less liquid its stock and the more volatile its price. Market capitalization is determined by multiplying the number of its outstanding shares by the current market price per share. Companies with smaller market capitalizations also tend to have unproven track records, a limited product or service base and limited access to capital. These factors also increase risks and make these companies more likely to fail than companies with larger market capitalizations.

Money Market Reform Regulatory Risk

In July 2014, the SEC adopted amendments to money market fund regulations that will affect the structure and operation of money market funds. The amendments include additional requirements which are generally expected to be implemented by April 14, 2016. These amendments could adversely affect the operation or performance of the Fund and cause the Fund to incur additional expenses. The precise nature of the impact of the amendments and the effects have not yet been determined.

Mortgage-backed and Asset-backed Securities Risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of residential mortgage loans, some of which are guaranteed by the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities. However, the guarantee of these types of securities relates to the principal and interest payments and not the market value of such securities. In addition, the guarantee only relates to the mortgage-backed securities held by a Fund and not the purchase of shares of the Fund.

Mortgage-backed securities do not have a fixed maturity and their expected maturities may vary when interest rates rise or fall. An increased rate of prepayments on the Fund's mortgage-backed securities will result in an unforeseen loss of interest income to the Fund as the Fund may be required to reinvest assets at a lower interest rate. A decreased rate of prepayments lengthens the expected maturity of a mortgage-backed securities may decrease more than prices of other fixed-income securities when interest rates rise.

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations: A Fund may invest in mortgage-backed securities called collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs"). CMOs are issued in separate classes with different stated maturities. As the mortgage pool experiences prepayments, the pool pays off investors in classes with shorter maturities first. By investing in CMOs, a Fund may manage the prepayment risk of mortgage-backed securities. However, prepayments may cause the actual maturity of a CMO to be substantially shorter than its stated maturity.

Asset-backed Securities: Asset-backed securities include interests in pools of debt securities, commercial or consumer loans, or other receivables. The value of these securities depends on many factors, including changes in interest rates, the availability of information concerning the pool and its structure, the credit quality of the underlying assets, the market's perception of the servicer of the pool, and any credit enhancement provided. In addition, asset-backed securities have prepayment risks similar to those of mortgage-backed securities.

Non-Investment Grade Securities Risk

The securities in which the Fund may invest may be rated below investment grade. Such securities are known as junk bonds. Junk bonds generally entail greater market, credit and liquidity risks than investment grade securities. For example, their prices are more volatile, economic downturns and financial setbacks may affect their prices more negatively, and their trading market may be more limited.

Prepayment Risk

Many types of fixed-income securities are subject to prepayment risk, including mortgage-backed securities. Prepayment risk occurs when the issuer of a security can repay principal prior to the security's maturity. This is more likely to occur when interest rates fall. The prepayment of principal can adversely affect the return of the Fund since it may have to reinvest the proceeds in securities that pay a lower interest rate.

Generally, mortgage-backed securities compensate for the increased risk associated with prepayments by paying a higher yield. The additional interest paid for risk is measured by the difference between the yield of a mortgage-backed security and the yield of a U.S. Treasury security with a comparable maturity (the spread). An increase in the spread may cause the price of the mortgage-backed security to decline. Spreads generally increase in response to adverse economic or market conditions. Spreads may also increase if the security is perceived to have an increased prepayment risk or is perceived to have less market demand.

Recoupment Risk

The Advisor entered into an agreement with the Trust, whereby the Advisor agreed to waive all or a portion of its investment advisory fee and/or to reimburse certain operating expenses of certain of the Funds to the extent necessary to ensure that each of these Funds maintains a positive yield of at least 0.00% for the Huntington U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund and 0.01% for the Huntington Money Market Fund, respectively. The Advisor shall be entitled to recoup from these Funds any waived and/or reimbursed amounts pursuant to the agreement for a period of up to three (3) years from the date of the waiver and/or reimbursement. This recoupment could negatively affect the Fund's future yield. The Advisor may terminate the agreement at any time upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the Fund.

Securities Linked to the Real Estate Market and REIT Risk

Investing in securities of companies in the real estate industry subjects a Fund to the risks associated with the direct ownership of real estate. These risks include:

- declines in the value of real estate;
- risks related to general and local economic conditions;
- possible lack of availability of mortgage funds;
- overbuilding;
- extended vacancies of properties;

- increased competition;
- increases in property taxes and operating expenses;
- change in zoning laws;
- losses due to costs resulting from the clean-up of environmental problems;
- liability to third parties for damages resulting from environmental problems;
- casualty or condemnation losses;
- limitations on rents;
- changes in neighborhood values and the appeal of properties to tenants; and
- changes in interest rates.

Therefore, for a Fund investing a substantial amount of its assets in securities of companies in the real estate industry, the value of a Fund's shares may change at different rates compared to the value of shares of a Fund with investments in a mix of different industries.

Securities of companies in the real estate industry include real estate investment trusts ("REITs") including equity REITs and mortgage REITs. Equity REITs may be affected by changes in the value of the underlying property owned by the trusts, while mortgage REITs may be affected by the quality of any credit extended. Further, equity and mortgage REITs are dependent upon management skills and generally may not be diversified. Equity and mortgage REITs are also subject to heavy cash flow dependency, defaults by borrowers and self-liquidations. In addition, equity and mortgage REITs could possibly fail to qualify for tax free pass-through of income under the Code, or to maintain their exemptions from registration under the 1940 Act. The above factors may also adversely affect a borrower's or a lessee's ability to meet its obligations to the REIT. In the event of a default by a borrower or lessee, the REIT may experience delays in enforcing its rights as a mortgage or lessor and may incur substantial costs associated with protecting its investments.

In addition, even the larger REITs in the industry tend to be small to medium-sized companies in relation to the equity markets as a whole. See "Small and Medium Size Company Risk" for a discussion of the risks associated with investments in these companies.

Security-Specific Risk

Security-specific risk is the risk that the value of a particular security may or may not move in the same direction as the market as a whole. All Funds are subject to this type of risk.

Small and Medium Size Company Risk

Companies that are small or unseasoned (that is, less than three years of operating history) are more likely than larger or established companies **to** fail or not to accomplish their goals. As a result, the value of their securities could decline significantly. These companies are less likely to survive since they are often dependent upon a small number of products and may have limited financial resources and a small management group. Small or unseasoned companies often have a greater degree of change in earnings and business prospects than larger or established companies, resulting in more volatility in the price of their securities. The securities of small or unseasoned companies may have limited marketability. This factor could cause the value of a Fund's investments to decrease if it needs to sell such securities when there are few interested buyers. Small or unseasoned companies usually have fewer outstanding shares than larger or established companies. Therefore, it may be more difficult to buy or sell large amounts of these shares without unfavorably impacting the price of the security. There may be less publicly available information about small or unseasoned companies. Therefore, when making a decision to purchase a security for a Fund, the Advisor may not be aware of problems associated with the company issuing the security. Investments in the securities of medium sized companies present risks similar to those associated with small or unseasoned companies although to a lesser degree due to the larger size of the companies.

Ultrashort ETFs Risk

Ultrashort ETFs use investment techniques that may be considered aggressive, including the use of futures contracts, options on futures contracts, securities and indices, forward contracts, swap agreements and similar instruments. An Ultrashort ETF's investment in financial instruments may involve a small investment relative to the amount of investment exposure assumed and may result in losses exceeding the amounts invested. Such instruments, particularly when used to create leverage, may expose the Ultrashort ETF and the Fund to potentially dramatic changes (losses or gains) in the value of the instruments and imperfect correlation between the value of the instruments and the

security or index. The use of aggressive investment techniques also exposes the Fund to risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities contained in an index underlying an Ultrashort ETF benchmark, including: (1) the risk that an instrument is mispriced; (2) credit or performance risk on the amount the Ultrashort ETF expects to receive from a counterparty; (3) the risk that securities prices, interest rates and currency markets will move adversely and the Ultrashort ETF will incur significant losses; (4) the risk that there may be imperfect correlation between the price of financial instruments and movements in the prices of the underlying securities; (5) the risk that the cost of holding a financial instrument might exceed its total return; and (6) the possible absence of a liquid secondary market for any particular instrument and/or possible exchange-imposed price fluctuation limits, which may make it difficult or impossible to adjust an Ultrashort ETF's position in a particular financial instrument when desired.

Unrated Securities Risk

To the extent that the Fund invests in unrated securities, these securities may prove less liquid than rated securities as less information is available regarding the securities and a market may not exist for the securities at a given point in time.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The following investment restrictions are fundamental and may not be changed without a vote of a majority of the outstanding Shares of a Fund. The investment restrictions pertain to each Fund unless otherwise noted. In effectuating the Balanced Allocation Fund's investment goals and strategies, the Fund will look through to the investments of the Underlying Funds.

Each Fund:

- (1) May not concentrate investments in a particular industry or group of industries as concentration is defined under the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (2) May issue senior securities to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (3) May lend or borrow money to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (4) May purchase or sell commodities, commodities contracts, futures contracts, or real estate to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (5) May underwrite securities to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (6) May pledge, mortgage or hypothecate any of its assets to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.
- (7) May purchase securities of any issuer only when consistent with the maintenance of its status as a diversified company under the 1940 Act, or the rules or regulations thereunder, as such statute, rules or regulations may be amended from time to time.

The fundamental limitations of the Funds have been adopted to avoid wherever possible the necessity of shareholder meetings otherwise required by the 1940 Act. This recognizes the need to react quickly to changes in the law or new investment opportunities in the securities markets and the cost and time involved in obtaining shareholder approvals for diversely held investment companies. However, certain Funds also have adopted non-fundamental limitations, set forth below, which in some instances may be more restrictive than their fundamental limitations. Any changes in a Fund's non-fundamental limitations will be communicated to the Fund's shareholders prior to effectiveness.

Note, with respect to the Global Select Markets Fund, the Fund will not invest more than 25% of its total assets in the securities of exchangetraded funds which concentrate (that is, invest more than 25% of their assets) in the same industry, provided that (i) through its investment in index-based securities, the Fund indirectly may invest more than 25% of its assets in one industry, and (ii) the Fund will concentrate more than 25% of its assets in investment companies. The Real Strategies Fund may also indirectly invest more than 25% of its assets in one industry indirectly through investments in index-based securities which do not concentrate in the industry.

1940 Act Restrictions. Under the 1940 Act, and the rules, regulations and interpretations thereunder, a "diversified company," as to 75% of its totals assets, may not purchase securities of any issuer (other than obligations of, or guaranteed by, the U.S. Government, its agencies or its instrumentalities and securities of other investment companies) if, as a result, more than 5% of the value of its total assets would be invested in the securities of such issuer or more than 10% of the issuer's voting securities would be held by the fund. "Concentration" is generally interpreted under the 1940 Act to refer to an investment of more than 25% of net assets in an industry or group of industries. The 1940 Act limits the ability of investment companies to borrow and lend money and to underwrite securities. The 1940 Act currently prohibits an open-end fund from issuing senior securities, as defined in the 1940 Act, except under very limited circumstances.

Additionally, the 1940 Act limits a Fund's ability to borrow money, prohibiting the Fund from issuing senior securities, except a Fund may borrow from any bank provided that immediately after any such borrowing there is an asset coverage of at least 300% for all borrowings by a Fund and provided further, that in the event that such asset coverage shall at any time fall below 300%, the Fund shall, within three days thereafter or such longer period as the SEC may prescribe by rules and regulations, reduce the amount of its borrowings to such an extent that the asset coverage of such borrowing shall be at least 300%.

Regulatory Compliance. The Funds may follow non-fundamental operational policies that are more restrictive than their fundamental investment limitations, as set forth in the Prospectuses and this SAI, in order to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including the provisions of and regulations under the 1940 Act. In particular, the Money Market Funds will comply with the various requirements of Rule 2a-7 (the Rule), which regulates money market mutual funds. The Funds will determine the effective maturity of its investments according to the Rule. The Funds may change these operational policies to reflect changes in the laws and regulations without the approval of its shareholders.

The following are non-fundamental policies of the indicated Fund:

U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund*

• under normal circumstances, the U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund will invest at least 80% of its "Assets" (net assets plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and repurchase agreements collateralized by such obligations.

Dividend Capture Fund*

• under normal circumstances, the Dividend Capture Fund will invest at least 80% of its assets in dividend-paying stocks, and the Advisor focuses on those it believes are undervalued or out-of-favor.

Situs Fund*

- under normal circumstances, the Situs Fund will invest at least 80% of the value of its "Assets" (net assets plus the amount of any borrowings for investment purposes) in equity securities.
- * The above Funds will provide shareholders with at least 60 days prior notice of any change in these policies as required by SEC Rule 35d-1. These policies shall be interpreted and implemented in accordance with its purpose, which is solely to comply with Rule 35d-1.

Certain Funds have adopted non-fundamental investment policies obligating them to commit, under normal market conditions, at least 80% of their net assets to investments that have economic characteristics similar to equity securities contained in financial instruments. For purposes of such non-fundamental investment policy, the term "assets" includes the amount of a Fund's net assets attributable to investments directly providing investment exposure to the type of investments suggested by such Fund's name (e.g., the value of stocks, or the value of derivative instruments such as futures, options or options on futures). The Board of Trustees has adopted a policy to provide investors with at least 60 days' notice prior to changes in a Fund's 80% investment policy.

The following investment limitations are non-fundamental policies of the Funds:

- (1) The Funds will not invest more than 15% of net assets in illiquid securities (5% in the case of money market funds).
- (2) In applying the concentration restriction: (a) the Advisor uses GICS (Global Industry Classification Standard) Level 4 as its definition of industry; and (b) asset-backed securities will be classified according to the underlying assets securing such securities. Also, to conform to the current view of the SEC that only domestic bank instruments may be excluded from industry concentration limitations, as a matter of non-fundamental policy, a Fund will not exclude foreign bank instruments from industry concentration limits as long as the policy of the SEC remains in effect. Moreover, investments in bank instruments, and investments in certain industrial development bonds funded by activities in a single industry, will be deemed to constitute investment in an industry, except when held for temporary defensive purposes. The investment of more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets in any one industry will constitute "concentration."

The following investment limitations of the Dividend Capture Fund, Global Select Markets Fund and Situs Fund are nonfundamental policies. The Funds will not:

- (1) Invest in companies for the purpose of exercising control.
- (2) Pledge, mortgage or hypothecate assets, except to secure temporary borrowings permitted by the Fund's fundamental limitation, in aggregate amounts not to exceed 15% of total assets taken at current value at the time of the incidence of such loan, except as permitted with respect to securities lending.
- (3) Purchase or sell real estate, real estate limited partnership interest, commodities or commodities contracts (except that the Funds may invest in futures contracts and options on futures contracts, as disclosed in the Prospectuses) and interest in a pool of securities that are secured by interests in real estate. However, subject to its permitted investments, the Funds may invest in companies which invest in real estate, commodities or commodities contracts.
- (4) Make short sales of securities, maintain a short position or purchase securities on margin, except that the Funds may obtain short-term credits as necessary for the clearance of security transactions.
- (5) Act as an underwriter of securities of other issuers except as it may be deemed an underwriter in selling a Fund security.

The following investment limitation of the Dividend Capture Fund, Global Select Markets Fund, Real Strategies Fund and Situs Fund is a non-fundamental policy. The Funds will not:

(1) Invest in other funds in reliance on Section 12(d)(1)(F) or (G) of the 1940 Act.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

The portfolio turnover rate of a Fund is defined by the SEC as the ratio of the lesser of annual sales or purchases to the monthly average value of the portfolio, excluding from both the numerator and the denominator securities with maturities at the time of acquisition of one year or less. Under that definition, the Money Market Funds will have no portfolio turnover. Portfolio turnover generally involves some expense to a Fund, including brokerage commissions or dealer mark-ups and other transactions costs on the sale of securities and reinvestment in other securities.

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the portfolio turnover rates for each of the following Funds were as follows:

Fund	2014	2013
Dividend Capture Fund ¹	92%	130%
Global Select Markets Fund ²	88%	156%
Real Strategies Fund	31%	43%
Situs Fund	12%	22%
Balanced Allocation Fund	52%	44%

WHO MANAGES AND PROVIDES SERVICES TO THE FUNDS?

Trustees and Officers

The following tables provide information about the Independent Trustees and the senior officers of the Trust. Each Trustee oversees all portfolios of the Trust and serves for an indefinite term (subject to mandatory retirement provisions). Information about each Trustee is provided below and includes each person's: name, address, age (as of the date of the Funds' most recent fiscal year end), present position(s) held with the Trust, principal occupations for the past five years and total compensation received as a Trustee for the most recent fiscal year. Please note that the information consolidates and includes historical information from their service as Trustee or Officer of the Original Trusts. Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each person listed below is c/o The Huntington Funds, 2960 N. Meridian Street, Suite 300, Indianapolis, IN 46208. Unless otherwise noted, each officer is elected annually by the Board. Each Trustee and officer also serves in the same capacity for Huntington Strategy Shares, another open-end investment company whose series are managed by the Advisor. Collectively, The Huntington Funds and Huntington Strategy Shares comprise the "Huntington Complex." As of April 1, 2015, the Huntington Complex is comprised of 11 separate series. Each Trustee serves as Trustee for all 11 portfolios of the Huntington Complex.

As of December 31, 2014, the Trustees and officers as a group owned less than 1% of Shares of the Trust.

Interested Trustee Background and Compensation

Name Age Positions Held with Trust Date Service Began with Huntington Complex	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years, Previous Position(s) and Other Directorships Held	Total Compensation From Trust (past calendar year)
Joseph L. Rezabek	Principal Occupation(s): President, Leader Promotions	\$0
Age: 46	Previous Position(s): Executive Vice President, Huntington National	
TRUSTEE	Bank (President, Huntington Asset Services, Inc., Huntington Asset	
Began Serving: April 2015	 Advisors, Inc., Huntington Investment Company, Inc. (March 2012 to April 2015); President, The Huntington Funds and Huntington Strategy Shares (February 2013 to April 2015); Managing Director and Head of Fund Services, Citi (2006 to 2012); Chief Operating Officer (Milan, Italy), State Street Corporation (1999 to 2006). Other Directorships Held: Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares. 	

¹ The portfolio turnover rate increased significantly for the period. This increase was attributable to tactical portfolio adjustments made. The basic characteristic of the Fund's investment strategy did not change.

² portfolio turnover rate increased significantly for the period. This increase was attributable to tactical portfolio adjustments made. The basic characteristic of the Fund's investment strategy did not change



Independent Trustees Background and Compensation

Name Age Positions Held with Trust Date Service Began with <u>Huntington Complex</u> Thomas J. Westerfield* Age: 60 CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND TRUSTEE	Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years, Previous Position(s) and Other Directorships Held Principal Occupation(s): Chairman of the Board and Of Counsel, Dinsmore & Shohl LLP (law firm) (August 2005 to present). Previous Position(s): Of Counsel, Cors & Bassett LLC (law firm) (1993- 2005). Other Directorships Held: Based Member, Huntington Statemer, Shares	Total Compensation From Trust <u>(past calendar year)</u> \$90,500
Began serving: January 2001 Mark D. Shary Age: 55 TRUSTEE Began serving: June 2006	 Other Directorships Held: Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares. Principal Occupation(s): Managing Director, ET Partner (consulting) (2008 to present); Private investor (2007 to present). Previous Position(s): Chief Executive Officer and President, BestTransport.com, Inc. (2003 to 2007); President, Bostech Corporation (2000 to 2002). Other Directorships Held: Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares; Director, SafeWhite, hc1.com, Updox, MBA Focus, InnerApps, and Vantage Point Logistics (all private companies); Trustee, TechColumbus (non-profit); Director, Healthcare.com (1998-2000) (public company). 	\$73,000
William H. Zimmer, III Age: 61 TRUSTEE Began Serving: December 2006	 Principal Occupation(s): Chief Executive Officer, Cintel Federal Credit Union, (January 2011 to present); Independent Consultant, WHZIII, LLC (January 2014 to present). Previous Position(s): Consultant, WHZIII, LLC (March 2009 to January 2011); Assistant Treasurer, Dana Holding Corp. (September 2006 to February 2009) (manufacturing); Vice President and Manager, Global Treasury Management, National City Bank (January 2004 to March 2006); Vice President, Treasury Management Operations, Provident Bank (June 2003 to January 2004); Financial Consultant (April 2001 to June 2003). Other Directorships Held: Board Member, Huntington Strategy Shares. 	\$72,500

* Thomas J. Westerfield became Chairman of the Trust on February 14, 2013.

Officers¹

Name Age Positions Held with Trust Address Date Service Began with Huntington Complex Daniel Brewer Age: 46 PRESIDENT and CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215 Began Serving: April 2015

Martin R. Dean

Age: 51 ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING OFFICER AND CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215 Began Serving: July 2013

¹ Officers do not receive any compensation from the Trust.

Principal Occupation(s) and Previous Position(s)Principal Occupation(s): Senior Vice President, HuntingtonAsset Services, Inc. ("HASI") (March 2014 to present).Previous Position(s): Senior Vice President, Operations,BISYS Fund Services, (October 2002 to March 2014);Kemper Fund Services (February 1991 to September 2002).

Principal Occupation(s): Senior Vice President and Compliance Group Manager, HASI (July 2013 to present); Anti-Money Laundering Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, Huntington Strategy Shares (July 2013 to present). **Previous Position(s)**: Director and Fund Accounting and Fund Administration Product Manager, Citi (2008 to June 2013); Senior Vice President/Vice President, Fund Administration, Citi (formerly, BISYS Fund Services) (May 1994 to 2008)

Name Age Positions Held with Trust Address Date Service Began with Huntington Complex Bryan W. Ashmus Age: 42 TREASURER 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215

Jay S. Fitton

Age: 45 SECRETARY 3805 Edwards Road Cincinnati, OH 45209 Began Serving: February 2012

Began Serving: November 2013

Principal Occupation(s) and Previous Position(s)

Principal Occupation(s): Vice President, Fund
Administration, HASI (September 2013 to present); Principal
Financial Officer and Treasurer, Valued Advisers Trust
(December 2013 to present); Treasurer, Huntington Strategy
Shares (November 2013 to present).
Previous Position(s): Vice President, Fund Administration,
Citi Fund Services, Ohio, Inc. (May 2005 to September 2013).

Principal Occupation(s): Vice President of Legal Administration, HASI (November 2011 to present); Secretary, Huntington Strategy Shares (October 2012 to present); Secretary, Capitol Series Trust (September 2013 to present). **Previous Position(s):** Vice President and Senior Counsel, J.P. Morgan Chase (April 2007 to November 2011).

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Board Committee	Committee Members	Committee Functions	Meetings Held During Last Fiscal Year
Audit	Mark D. Shary (Chairman) Thomas J. Westerfield William H. Zimmer, III	The purposes of the Audit Committee are to oversee the Trust's accounting and financial reporting policies and practices; to oversee the quality and objectivity of the Trust's financial statements and the independent audit thereof; to consider the selection of independent public accountants for the Trust and the scope of the audit; and to act as a liaison between the Trust's independent auditors and the full Board of Trustees. The Audit Committee also serves as the Qualified Legal Compliance Committee.	6
Compliance	Mark D. Shary Thomas J. Westerfield (Chairman) William H. Zimmer, III	The purpose of the Compliance Committee is to oversee the Trust's compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of the Trust's operations, including compliance with securities laws and regulations.	6
Investment Oversight	Mark D. Shary Thomas J. Westerfield William H. Zimmer, III (Chairman)	The purpose of the Investment Oversight Committee is to oversee the Funds' compliance with investment policies and procedures, to monitor the Funds' performance and the Advisor's initiatives with regard to investment management.	5
Nominating	Mark D. Shary Thomas J. Westerfield (Chairman) William H. Zimmer, III	The purpose of the Nominating Committee is to nominate a person or persons to serve as a member of the Board of Trustees. The Nominating Committee will consider nominees recommended by Shareholders. The Nominating Committee shall be comprised of all Independent Trustees. Recommendations should be submitted to the Nominating Committee in care of The Huntington Funds.	0
Special Proxy Voting	Mark D. Shary William H. Zimmer, III	The purpose of the Special Proxy Voting Committee is to consider and determine how to vote on behalf of the Trust with respect to specific votes referred by the Trust's Advisor.	0

TRUSTEES OWNERSHIP OF SHARES IN A FUND AND IN THE HUNTINGTON COMPLEX AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

All Funds managed by the Advisor are part of the "Huntington Complex." The Huntington Complex consists of the Trust and Huntington Strategy Shares.

Name of Trustee	Dollar Range of Shares Owned in a Fund	Dollar Range of Shares Owned in the Huntington Complex ¹
Joseph L. Rezabek	None	None
Thomas J. Westerfield		\$50,001 - \$100,000
Dividend Capture Fund	\$10,000 - 50,000	
Global Select Markets Fund	\$10,000 - 50,000	
Situs Fund	\$10,000 - 50,000	
Mark D. Shary		Over \$100,000
Money Market Fund	\$10,000 - 50,000	
Situs Fund	\$50,001 - 100,000	
EcoLogical Strategy ETF	\$50,001 - 100,000	
William H. Zimmer, III		\$50,001 - \$100,000
Dividend Capture Fund	\$50,001 - 100,000	

¹ As of April 1, 2015, the Huntington Funds Complex consisted of 9 series of the Trust and 2 series of the Huntington Strategy Shares.

Qualifications and Experience of the Trustees

The following provides an overview of the considerations that led the Board to conclude that each individual serving as a Trustee of the Trust should so serve. The current members of the Board have joined the Board at different points in time since 1990. Generally, no one factor was decisive in the original selection of an individual to join the Board. Among the factors the Board considered when concluding that an individual should serve on the Board were the following: (1) the individual's business and professional experience and accomplishments; (2) the individual's ability to work effectively with the other members of the Board; (3) the individual's prior experience, if any, serving on the boards of public companies (including, where relevant, other investment companies) and other complex enterprises and organizations; and (4) how the individual's skills, experience and attributes would contribute to an appropriate mix of relevant skills and experience on the Board.

In respect of each current Trustee, the individual's substantial professional accomplishments and prior experience, including, in some cases, in fields related to the operations of the Trust, were a significant factor in the determination that the individual should serve as a Trustee of the Trust.

In addition to the information set forth in the table above, the following sets forth additional information about the qualifications and experience of each of the Trustees that lead to the conclusion that each Trustee should serve as Trustee of the Trust.

Joseph L. Rezabek

Mr. Rezabek's experience includes over 26 years of corporate executive and mutual fund industry experience, including service as president and chief operating officer of several mutual fund administrators. His previous experience managing mutual fund administration companies and serving as an officer in various capacities on mutual fund boards provide him with extensive knowledge of management, regulatory, business, financial reporting, and corporate governance issues. In addition, his previous experience serving as President of the Trust has given him an extensive understanding of the Trust's operations.

Mark D. Shary

Mr. Shary's experience includes over twenty years of corporate executive and accounting experience, including service as the chief financial officer of a publicly traded company and the chief executive officer of two companies. Mr. Shary is a Certified Public Accountant and has served in the financial services and investment company-related practices of a global accounting firm. Mr. Shary has also served on the boards of public and private companies, as well as non-profit entities. This experience provides Mr. Shary with extensive knowledge of management, financial reporting, and corporate governance issues. In addition, his multi-year service as an Independent Trustee of the Trust has given him a strong understanding of investment company operations.

Thomas J. Westerfield

Mr. Westerfield's experience includes serving as a corporate lawyer advising on corporate and mutual fund issues since 1981. Mr. Westerfield has also served on the boards of private companies, including a real estate development company. His legal background and board experience provides him with extensive knowledge of regulatory, business, financial reporting and corporate governance issues. In addition, his thirteen years of service as a Trustee of the Trust have given him an extensive understanding of the Trust's operations.

William H. Zimmer III

Mr. Zimmer has over twenty years of corporate and financial industry experience, including service as a chief financial officer of a publicly traded company, assistant treasurer of a multinational corporation, secretary-treasurer of a large NYSE firm, and a manager of global treasury operations for a large bank. Mr. Zimmer also has experience serving on the boards of mutual funds and large companies. This experience provides him with an extensive knowledge of management, financial reporting, operational and corporate governance issues. In addition, his seven years as an Independent Trustee of the Trust have given him a strong understanding of the Trust's operations.

Board Structure

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the management and operations of the Trust. The Board consists of one Interested Trustee and three Independent Trustees. The Chairperson of the Trust, Thomas J. Westerfield, is an Independent Trustee.

The Board of Trustees has five standing committees: Audit Committee, Compliance Committee, Investment Oversight Committee, Nominating Committee and Special Proxy Voting Committee. The Audit Committee, Compliance Committee, Investment Oversight Committee and Nominating Committee are chaired by Independent Trustees. All members of the Special Proxy Voting Committee are Independent Trustees.

Through the Audit, Compliance, Investment Oversight, Nominating and Special Proxy Voting Committees, the Independent Trustees consider and address important matters involving the Trust, including those presenting conflicts or potential conflicts of interest for Trust management. The Board holds four regular meetings each year to consider and address matters involving the Funds. The Board also may hold special meetings to address matters arising between regular meetings. In addition, the Independent Trustees regularly meet outside the presence of management and are advised by independent legal counsel. These meetings may take place in-person or by telephone.

The Board reviews its structure regularly and believes that its leadership structure, including having a super-majority of Independent Trustees, coupled with an Independent Chairperson, is appropriate and in the best interests of the Trust, given its specific characteristics. The Board of Trustees also believes its leadership structure facilitates the orderly and efficient flow of information to the Independent Trustees from Trust management.

When considering potential nominees to fill vacancies on the Board, and as part of its annual self-evaluation, the Board reviews the

mix of skills and other relevant experiences of the Trustees.

Board Oversight of Risk

An integral part of the Board's overall responsibility for overseeing the management and operations of the Trust is the Board's oversight of the risk management of the Trust's investment programs and business affairs. The Funds are subject to a number of risks, such as investment

risk, credit and counterparty risk, valuation risk, risk of operational failure or lack of business continuity, and legal, compliance and regulatory risk. The Funds, the Advisor and other service providers to the Trust have implemented various processes, procedures and controls to identify risks to the Funds, to lessen the probability of their occurrence and to mitigate any adverse effect should they occur. Different processes, procedures and controls are employed with respect to different types of risks.

The Board of Trustees exercises oversight of the risk management process through the Audit Committee and the Compliance Committee, and through oversight by the Board itself. In addition to adopting, and periodically reviewing, policies and procedures designed to address risks to the Funds, the Board of Trustees requires management of the Advisor and the Trust, including the Trust's Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO"), to report to the Board and the Committees of the Board on a variety of matters, including matters relating to risk management, at regular and special meetings. The Board and the Audit Committee receive regular reports from the Trust's independent public accountants on internal control and financial reporting matters. On at least a quarterly basis, the Independent Trustees meet with the Trust's CCO, including outside the presence of management, to discuss issues related to compliance. Furthermore, the Board receives a quarterly report from the Trust's CCO regarding the operation of the compliance policies and procedures of the Trust and its primary service providers. The Board and the Investment Oversight Committee also receive quarterly reports from the Advisor on the investments and securities trading of the Funds, including their investment performance and asset weightings compared to appropriate benchmarks, as well as reports regarding the valuation of the Funds' securities. The Board also receives reports from the Trust's primary service providers regarding the valuation of the Funds' securities.

Investment Advisor

Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc. (the "Advisor") has served as investment advisor to the Trust since its creation on May 12, 2001, as part of a reorganization of the investment advisory services of Huntington National Bank. The Advisor is a separate, wholly owned subsidiary of Huntington National Bank. As of December 31, 2014, the Advisor had assets under management of \$2.0 billion.

Huntington National Bank is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Huntington Bancshares Incorporated ("HBI"). With over \$66 billion in assets as of December 31, 2014, HBI is a Maryland corporation and major Midwest regional bank holding company. Through its subsidiaries and affiliates, HBI offers a full range of services to the public, including: commercial lending, depository services, cash management, brokerage services, retail banking, international services, mortgage banking, investment advisory services and trust services.

Under the investment advisory agreements between the Trust and Advisor ("Investment Advisory Agreements"), the Advisor, at its expense, furnishes a continuous investment program for the various Funds and makes investment decisions on their behalf, all subject to such policies as the Trustees may determine. Investment decisions are subject to the provisions of the Trust's Declaration of Trust and By-laws, and to the 1940 Act. In addition, the Advisor makes decisions consistent with a Fund's investment objectives, policies, and restrictions, and such policies and instructions as the Trustees may, from time to time, establish. Under the Investment Advisory Agreements, the Advisor may delegate to another investment adviser the responsibility of investing a Fund's assets subject to the supervision of the Advisor and the Board.

The Investment Advisory Agreements provide that the Advisor shall not be subject to any liability for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss suffered by the Trust in connection with the matters to which the Investment Advisory Agreements relate, except a loss resulting from a breach of fiduciary duty with respect to the receipt of compensation for services or a loss resulting from willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence, or reckless disregard of its obligations and duties on the part of the Advisor.

The Investment Advisory Agreements may be terminated without penalty with respect to any Fund at any time by the vote of the Trustees or by the shareholders of that Fund upon 60 days' written notice, or by the Advisor on 90 days' written notice. An Investment Advisory Agreement may be amended only by a vote of the shareholders of the affected Fund(s). The Investment Advisory Agreements also terminate without payment of any penalty in the event of their assignment.

The Investment Advisory Agreements provide for an initial term of two years. Thereafter, the Investment Advisory Agreements will continue in effect from year to year only so long as such continuance is approved at least annually with respect to each Fund by the vote of either the Trustees or the shareholders of the Fund, and, in either case, by a majority of the Trustees who are not "interested persons" of Huntington, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval.

The Advisor may from time to time agree to voluntarily reduce its advisory fee. While there can be no assurance that the Advisor will choose to make such an agreement, any voluntary reductions in the Advisor's advisory fee will lower the Fund's expenses, and thus increase the Fund's yield and total return, during the period such voluntary reductions are in effect.

From time to time, the Advisor may use a portion of its reasonable resources and profits to pay for certain administrative services provided by financial institutions for Shares of the Funds.

Portfolio Manager Information

Unless otherwise noted, the following information about the Funds' Portfolio Managers is provided as of the end of the Funds' most recently completed fiscal year and none of the other Accounts described below has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dividend Capture Fund

Other Accounts Managed by Kirk Mentzer	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	4 funds/\$247,136,737
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: \$100,001 - \$500,000.

Other Accounts Managed by Peter Sorrentino	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	3 Funds/\$240,000,000
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: \$10,001 - \$50,000.

Global Select Markets Fund

Other Accounts Managed by Paul Attwood	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	1 Fund/\$21,000,000
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Other Accounts Managed by Martina Cheung	Total Number of Other <u>Accounts Managed/Total Assets</u> *
Registered Investment Companies	3 funds/\$32,786,356
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Real Strategies Fund

Other Accounts Managed by Peter Sorrentino	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	3 funds/\$240,000,000
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: \$10,001-\$50,000.

Other Accounts Managed by Paul Attwood	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	1 Fund/\$16,000,000
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Situs Fund

Other Accounts Managed by B. Randolph "Randy" Bateman	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	2 funds/\$71,432,887
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: \$10,001-\$50,000

Other Accounts Managed by Kirk Mentzer	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	4 funds/\$266,066,257
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Balanced Allocation Fund

Other Accounts Managed by B. Randolph "Randy" Bateman	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	2 funds/\$216,174,890
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Other Accounts Managed by Kirk Mentzer	Total Number of Other Accounts Managed/Total Assets*
Registered Investment Companies	4 funds/\$431,248,259
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	None
Other Accounts	None

* None of the Accounts has an advisory fee that is based on the performance of the account.

Dollar value range of Shares owned in the Fund: None.

Mr. Bateman is paid a fixed base salary and is eligible for a cash bonus. Base salary is determined within a market competitive salary range, based on his experience and performance, and is reviewed annually. The cash incentive is part of the Management Incentive Plan ("MIP"). MIP is an annual plan that is funded based on a percentage of annual base salary measured against corporate objectives and paid based on individual and business unit performance.

Mr. Bateman is eligible for annual awards of stock options and restricted stock units on The Huntington National Bank's holding company stock, the amount of which is recommended by his manager and subject to approval by the Chief Executive Officer and the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the holding company. Mr. Bateman is eligible, but has not elected, to participate in a deferred compensation program.

Mr. Attwood, Mr. Mentzer, Mr. Sorrentino, and Ms. Cheung, (collectively "Fund Managers") are paid fixed base salaries and are eligible for several cash incentives, as described below. Base salary is determined within a market competitive salary range, based on experience and performance, and is reviewed annually. The cash incentive is part of the Huntington Asset Advisors Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). The Plan has two quarterly award components which are as follows:

- Participants are eligible for a quarterly award under the Plan as a new business sales incentive opportunity based on the first year fees generated by the account.
- Participants are also eligible for a quarterly performance award under the Plan. The quarterly performance incentive is based on a percentage of the Fund Manager's quarterly base salary and the assigned Fund's Morningstar rankings as of the calendar quarter-end. In addition, the payout is also funded based on the retail growth of the Fund Manager's respective Fund. The final pool is then adjusted for compliance and risk-related events. A percentage of the final quarterly award is subject to a deferral until after year-end with the final pooled/deferred amount subject to Corporate performance.

Mr. Attwood, Mr. Mentzer, Mr. Sorrentino, and Ms. Cheung are each eligible for an annual award of stock options and/or restricted stock units of Huntington Bank's holding company stock, the amount of which is recommended by the Fund Manager's manager and approved by the Chief Executive Officer and Compensation Committee of the holding company. Mr. Mentzer and Mr. Sorrentino are eligible, but have not elected, to participate in a deferred compensation program.

Advisor Conflicts of Interest

As a general matter, certain actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise in connection with a portfolio manager's management of the Funds' investments, on the one hand, and the investments of other accounts for which the portfolio manager is responsible, on the other. For example, the management of multiple accounts may result in a portfolio manager devoting unequal time and attention to the management of each account. Although the Advisor does not track the time a portfolio manager spends on a single portfolio, the Advisor does periodically

assess whether a portfolio manager has adequate time and resources to effectively manage all of the accounts for which he or she is responsible. Moreover, variances in advisory fees charged from account to account may create an incentive for portfolio managers to devote more attention to those accounts that pay high advisory fees. It is also possible that the various accounts managed could have different investment strategies that, at times, might conflict with one another. Alternatively, to the extent that the same investment opportunities might be desirable for more than one account, possible conflicts could arise in determining how to allocate them.

Other potential conflicts might include conflicts created by specific portfolio manager compensation arrangements, and conflicts relating to selection of brokers or dealers to execute Fund portfolio trades and/or specific uses of commissions from Fund portfolio trades (for example, research, or "soft dollars").

The Advisor has adopted and implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, which it believes address the conflicts associated with managing multiple accounts for multiple clients. In addition, the Advisor monitors a variety of areas, including compliance with account investment guidelines and compliance with its applicable Code of Ethics. Finally, the Advisor has structured its portfolio managers' compensation in a manner, and the Funds have adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to safeguard the Funds from being negatively affected as a result of any such potential conflicts.

VOTING PROXIES ON FUND PORTFOLIO SECURITIES

Under Rule 206(4)-6 of the Advisers Act, it is a fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act, practice or course of business within the meaning of section 206(4) of the Advisers Act for an investment adviser to exercise voting authority with respect to client securities, unless (i) the adviser has adopted and implemented written policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to ensure that the adviser votes proxies in the best interest of its clients, (ii) the adviser describes its proxy voting procedures to its clients and provides copies on request, and (iii) the adviser discloses to clients how they may obtain information on how the adviser voted their proxies.

The Trustees have delegated to the Advisor authority to vote proxies on the securities held in the Funds' portfolios. The Advisor's proxy voting policies are set forth below, and shall govern its voting of such proxies.

Advisor's Policies

As required pursuant to Rule 206(4)-6 of the Advisers Act, the Advisor will vote proxies associated with securities held by the Funds in the best interest of the shareholders of the Funds.

The Advisor employs an independent third party to: (i) provide voting recommendations and guidelines for all proxies for which the Advisor has authority to vote; (ii) cast a vote consistent with the recommendation of the independent third party; and (iii) maintain required proxy voting records.

The Advisor has adopted the independent third party proxy voting guidelines, as they may be amended from time to time, to further the interest of the Funds' shareholders with respect to proxy voting matters, and the Advisor's Proxy Review Committee (described below in this section) will review the proxy voting guidelines no less frequently than annually to assure that votes continue to be cast in the best interest of shareholders of the Funds. Any changes in the guidelines will be communicated at least annually by the Advisor's Proxy Review Committee to the Chief Compliance Officer of the Funds.

The Advisor will ensure that proxy votes are voted in the Funds' best interest and are not affected by the Advisor's conflicts of interest.

To alleviate any conflicts of interests, as detailed above in this section, the Advisor generally votes all proxies in accordance with the independent third party guidelines thereby removing any discretion on the part of the Advisor. In any instance where there is no recommendation on how to vote a proxy pursuant to the proxy voting guidelines, the general policy of the Advisor will be to vote any such proxies in accordance with the recommendations of management. For proxy votes on issues held by the Funds for which the Advisor overrides the recommendation of the independent third party, or for which no recommendation is made by the third party, the Advisor will follow the procedures as detailed below in this section.

All proxies will be voted in accordance with the proxy voting guidelines, subject to the limitations otherwise described in this section. The Advisor will not neglect its proxy voting responsibilities, but the Advisor may abstain from voting if it deems that abstaining is in the Funds' best interest. (For example, the Advisor may be unable to vote securities that have been lent by the custodian, voting on international

securities where personal appearance is required and not having sufficient information to vote the proxy). (See below in this section for information regarding procedures when the Advisor determines that for the Funds voting a specific proxy is inappropriate or impractical under the proxy voting guidelines.)

In accordance with Rule 204-2 of the Advisers Act, the Advisor must retain (i) its proxy voting policies and procedures; (ii) proxy statements received regarding Fund/client securities; (iii) records of votes on behalf of the Funds; (iv) records of Fund requests for proxy voting information, and (v) any documents prepared by the Advisor that were material to making a decision how to vote, or that memorialized the basis for the decision. The Advisor may rely on proxy statements filed on the SEC's EDGAR system (instead of keeping its own copies), and may rely on proxy statements and records of its votes cast that are maintained by the proxy voting service provider, provided that the Advisor obtains an undertaking from the service provider to provide a copy of the documents promptly upon request.

The Advisor has established a Proxy Review Committee to monitor the recommendations made and votes cast to assure that such votes are consistent with, as applicable:

- the Advisor's fiduciary duty;
- the best interest of the shareholders of the Funds;
- the approved proxy voting guidelines; and
- these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures.

In addition, on an annual basis the Committee will review and approve the proxy voting guidelines for the Advisor.

In any instances where the Advisor is unable to vote a proxy on behalf of the Funds due to the fact that voting is inappropriate or impractical under the proxy voting guidelines or any possible conflict of interest of the Advisor is not adequately addressed by such guidelines, the Advisor will refer the vote on that proxy to the Special Voting Proxy Committee of the Funds (described below in this section). Any proxy referred to the Special Proxy Voting Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Funds will be voted by the Advisor in accordance with the instructions received by the Special Proxy Committee of the Funds.

The Board of Trustees of the Funds has established a Special Proxy Voting Committee to consider and determine how to vote on behalf of the Funds with respect to specific votes referred by the Advisor. The Special Proxy Voting Committee shall be composed exclusively of the independent Trustees of the Board of Trustees of the Funds, and will conduct its activities according to the Special Proxy Voting Committee Charter.

Certain Funds may be required to vote proxies in a manner specified under the 1940 Act. In particular, a Fund that relies on Section 12(d)(1)(F) of the 1940 Act to invest in the securities of other investment companies must vote its shares in an underlying investment company in accordance with Section 12(d)(1)(E) of the 1940 Act. With respect to those Funds that rely on Section 12(d) (1)(F), the Advisor will have no discretion in voting those proxies and the Advisor Proxy Review Committee Chairman (or his or her designee) will instruct the proxy voting service provider to vote those Funds' proxies on underlying investment companies in the same proportion as the vote of all other holders of such securities (commonly referred to as "echo" or "mirror" voting).

Proxy Voting Report

A report on "Form N-PX" of how the Funds voted any proxies during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 is available without charge through The Huntington Funds' website. Go to www.huntingtonfunds.com; select "Fund Shareholders;" then use the link to "Proxy Voting Record" and select a Fund. Form N-PX filings are also available at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION

The disclosure policy of the Funds and the Advisor generally prohibits the disclosure of portfolio holdings information to any investor or intermediary before the same information is made available to all other investors. Employees of the Advisor or their affiliates who have access to nonpublic information concerning the Funds' portfolio holdings are prohibited from trading securities on the basis of this information. Such persons must report all personal securities trades and obtain pre-clearance for certain personal securities trades other than mutual fund shares.

Firms that provide administrative, custody, financial, accounting, legal or other services to the Funds may receive nonpublic information about the Funds' portfolio holdings for purposes relating to their services. All of these service providers are identified elsewhere in the Prospectus or in the Appendix to this SAI.

No consideration may be received by the Fund, the Advisor, any affiliate of the Advisor or any of their employees in connection with the disclosure of portfolio holdings information.

The Board exercises oversight of the disclosure of Fund portfolio holdings by: (1) overseeing the implementation and enforcement of the policy, the Trust's Code of Ethics and other relevant policies and procedures of the Trust and its service providers by the CCO; (2) considering reports and recommendations by the CCO concerning materials compliance matters (as defined in Rule 38a-1 under the 1940 Act); and (3) considering proposed amendments to this policy. The Board also receives and reviews periodically and at least annually a list of the persons who receive nonpublic portfolio holdings information and the purposes for which it is furnished.

The furnishing of nonpublic portfolio holdings information to any third party (other than authorized governmental or regulatory personnel) requires the prior approval of the Advisor's Chief Compliance Officer and the authorization of the Funds' Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer. Approval to furnish nonpublic portfolio holdings information to a third party will be given only if there is a legitimate business purpose and such disclosure is subject to a confidentiality agreement to safeguard the confidentiality of the information so that the information will be used only for the purposes for which it was furnished and otherwise protect against misuse of such information. Persons approved to receive nonpublic portfolio holdings information will receive it as often as necessary for the purpose for which it is provided. Such information may be furnished as frequently as daily and often with no time lag between the date of the information and the date it is furnished.

The Funds may also provide portfolio holdings information to publications that rate, rank or otherwise categorize investment companies. These organizations are Lipper, Morningstar and Standard & Poor's, Inc., who receive a full portfolio holdings listing each month.

The Advisor may also disclose nonpublic portfolio holdings information of the Funds no less often than monthly to Abel/Noser Corp., Bloomberg, Bondedge, eVestment, FactSet, InvestEdge, Investment Scorecard, Inc., McGraw-Hill, Thomson-Vestek, Valueline, Vickers and Wilshire Associates, Inc., so that they can provide the Advisor with portfolio and trading analysis and comparative information based on proprietary modeling software to assist the Advisor in its investment management process. In addition, traders or portfolio managers may provide "interest" lists to facilitate portfolio trading if the list reflects only that subset of the portfolio for which the trader or portfolio manager is seeking market interest.

The Funds may provide portfolio holdings information to certain legal firms that monitor potential securities settlements or litigation. These firms are Berger & Montague, P.C., Bernstein Litowitz Berger & Grossman LLP, Chimicles & Tikellis LLP, Grant & Eisenhofer P.A., and Robbins Geller Rudman & Dowd LLP.

Portfolio Transactions

The Advisor may place portfolio transactions with broker-dealers which furnish, without cost, certain research, statistical, and quotation services of value to the Advisor and its affiliates in advising the Trust and other clients, provided that they shall always seek best price and execution with respect to the transactions. Certain investments may be appropriate for the Trust and for other clients advised by the Advisor. Investment decisions for the Trust and other clients of the Advisor are made with a view to achieving their respective investment objectives and after consideration of such factors as their current holdings, availability of cash for investment, and the size of their investments generally. Frequently, a particular security may be bought or sold by the Advisor for only one client or in different amounts and at different times for more than one but less than all clients. Likewise, a particular security may be bought for one or more clients of the Advisor on the same day. To the extent that multiple clients are purchasing or sell a specific security at the same time, such transactions will be allocated among the clients in a manner believed by the Advisor to be equitable to each. In some cases, this procedure could have an adverse effect on the price or amount of the securities purchased or sold by the Trust. Purchase and sale orders for the Trust may be combined with those of other clients of the Advisor in the interest of achieving the most favorable net results for the Trust.

As part of its regular banking operations, Huntington National Bank may make loans to public companies. Thus, it may be possible, from time to time, for the Funds to hold or acquire the securities of issuers which are also lending clients of Huntington National Bank. The lending relationship will not be a factor in the selection of securities for the Funds.

Brokerage Allocation and Other Practices

Transactions on U.S. stock exchanges and other agency transactions involve the payment by a Fund of negotiated brokerage

commissions. Such commissions vary among different brokers. Also, a particular broker may charge different commissions according to such factors as the difficulty and size of the transaction. Transactions in foreign securities often involve the payment of fixed brokerage commissions, which are generally higher than those in the United States. There is generally no stated commission in the case of securities traded in the over-the- counter markets, but the price paid by a Fund usually includes an undisclosed dealer commission or mark-up. In underwritten offerings, the price paid by a Fund includes a disclosed, fixed commission or discount retained by the underwriter or dealer.

The Advisor places all orders for the purchase and sale of portfolio securities for a Fund and buys and sells securities for a Fund through a substantial number of brokers and dealers. In so doing, it uses its best efforts to obtain for a Fund the best price and execution available. In seeking the best price and execution, the Advisor having in mind a Fund's best interests, considers all factors it deems relevant, including, by way of illustration, price, the size of the transaction, the nature of the market for the security, the amount of the commission, the timing of the transaction taking into account market prices and trends, the reputation, experience, and financial stability of the broker-dealer involved, and the quality of service rendered by the broker-dealer in other transactions.

It has for many years been a common practice in the investment advisory business for advisors of investment companies and other institutional investors to receive research, statistical, and quotation services from broker-dealers that execute portfolio transactions for their clients. Consistent with this practice, the Advisor may receive research, statistical, and quotation services from many broker-dealers with which it places a Fund's portfolio transactions. These services, which in some cases may also be purchased for cash, include such matters as general economic and security market reviews, industry and company reviews, evaluations of securities, and recommendations as to the purchase and sale of securities. Some of these services are of value to the Advisor and their respective affiliates in advising various of their clients (including the Trust), although not all of these services are necessarily useful and of value in managing a Fund. The fee paid by a Fund to the Advisor is not reduced because the Advisor and their respective affiliates receive such services.

As permitted by Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and by the Investment Advisory Agreements, the Advisor may cause a Fund to pay a broker-dealer that provides the brokerage and research services described above an amount of disclosed commission for effecting a securities transaction for the Fund in excess of the commission which another broker-dealer may charge for effecting that transaction. The Advisor's authority to cause a Fund to pay any such greater commissions is also subject to such policies as the Trustees may adopt from time to time.

The following brokerage commissions were paid by the Funds for the fiscal years indicated:

	Dividend Capture Fund For the fiscal years ended December 31,		Global Select Markets Fund For the fiscal years ended December 31,		ended	
	2012	2013	2014	2012	2013	2014
Brokerage Commissions Paid	\$458,919	\$691,086	\$717,083	\$166,378	\$317,554	\$134,467
	Real Strategies Fund		Situs Fund			
	For the fiscal years ended December 31,		For the fiscal years ended December 31,			
	2012	2013	2014	2012	2013	2014
Brokerage Commissions Paid	\$ 97,174	\$157,071	\$448,506	\$ 95,860	\$183,270	\$262,500

	Balan	Balanced Allocation Fund		
		For the fiscal years ended		
	2012	December 31,		
		2013 2014		
Brokerage Commissions Paid	\$2,165	\$6,746	\$3,669	

On December 31, 2014, certain Funds owned securities of the following regular broker/dealers (amounts in thousands) as of the end of the Funds' respective fiscal years:

Fund	Security Type	<u>Security</u>	Holdings
Money Market Fund	Debt	TD Securities	\$70,000
	Debt	South Street Securities	10,491
	Debt	Wells Fargo	7,581
	Debt	JP Morgan Chase & Co.	7,515
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund	Debt	TD Securities	275,000
Dividend Capture Fund	Equity	JP Morgan Chase & Co.	7,661
	Equity	Wells Fargo	8,391
	Equity	Raymond James Financial, Inc.	3,275
	Equity	Royal Bank of Canada	2,072
	Equity	Toronto Dominion Bank	1,672
Situs Fund	Equity	Raymond James	1,146

CODE OF ETHICS

Each of the Trust, the Advisor and the Distributor maintains a Code of Ethics which permits the Trustees and certain employees to invest in securities for their own accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by a Fund, subject to certain preclearance and blackout provisions that minimize potential conflicts of interest. Although they do permit these persons to trade in securities, including those in which a Fund may invest, they also contain significant safeguards designed to protect the Trust and its shareholders from abuses in this area, such as requirements to obtain prior approval for, and to report, particular transactions. As of the date of this SAI, copies of these Codes of Ethics have been filed with the SEC as exhibits to the Trust's Registration Statement.

Expenses

The Trust's service providers bear all expenses in connection with the performance of their respective services, except that each Fund will bear the following expenses relating to its operations: taxes, interest, brokerage fees and commissions, if any, fees and travel expenses of the Trustees who are not partners, officers, directors, shareholders or employees of Huntington National Bank, SEC fees and state fees and expenses, certain insurance premiums, outside and, to the extent authorized by the Trust, auditing and legal fees and expenses, fees charged by rating agencies in having a Fund's Shares rated, advisory and administration fees, fees and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of the custodian and transfer agent, expenses incurred for pricing securities owned by a Fund, costs of maintenance of corporate existence, typesetting and printing prospectuses for regulatory purposes and for distribution to current shareholders, costs and expenses of shareholders and Trustee reports and meetings and any extraordinary expenses.

Distributor

Unified Financial Securities, Inc. ("Distributor") is the Funds' Distributor.

The Distributor offers Shares on a continuous, best-efforts basis and markets the Shares to institutions or to individuals, directly or through investment professionals. When the Distributor receives marketing fees and sales charges, it may pay some or all of them to investment professionals. The Distributor and its affiliates may pay out of their assets other amounts (including items of material value) to investment professionals for marketing and servicing Shares. From time to time, the Distributor, may pay out of its reasonable profits and other resources (including those of its affiliates) advertising, marketing and other expenses for the benefit of the Funds. The Distributor is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HBI and an affiliate of HASI.

FRONT-END SALES CHARGE REALLOWANCES

The Distributor receives a front-end sales charge on certain Share sales. The Distributor generally pays a portion of this charge to eligible financial intermediaries for sales of Fund shares and/or administrative services. The Distributor retains any portion not paid to a financial intermediary, and can make this available for marketing and sales-related activities and expenses, including those of the Advisor and its affiliates.

Rule 12b-1 Plan (Class A Shares and Class C Shares)

As a compensation-type plan, the Rule 12b-1 Plan is designed to pay a financial intermediary (including the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates) for activities principally intended to result in the sale of Shares such as advertising and marketing of Shares (including printing and disseminating prospectuses and sales literature to prospective shareholders and financial intermediaries) and providing incentives to financial intermediaries to sell Shares. The Plan is also designed to cover the cost of administrative services performed in conjunction with the sale of Shares, including, but not limited to, shareholder services, recordkeeping services and educational services, as well as the costs of implementing and operating the Plan. In accordance with the Distribution Plan, the Distributor or the Fund may enter into agreements with financial intermediaries and dealers relating to distribution and/or marketing services with respect to the Class A Shares and Class C Shares of the Fund. The Distributor or the Fund may also enter into Rule 12b-1 related agreements with financial institutions (including fiduciaries, custodians for public funds, and investment advisers) to provide distribution related and other services with respect to Class A Shares and Class C Shares. The Rule 12b-1 Plan may benefit the Fund in a number of ways. For example, it is anticipated that the Plan may help the Fund attract and retain assets, thus providing cash for orderly portfolio management and Share redemptions and possibly helping to stabilize or reduce other operating expenses.

In addition, the Plan is integral to the multiple class structure of the Fund, which promotes the sale of Shares by providing a range of options to investors. The Fund's service providers that receive asset-based fees also benefit from stable or increasing Fund assets.

Under the 12b-1 Plan, the Fund may compensate a financial intermediary more or less than its actual marketing and administrative expenses. In no event will the Fund pay for any expenses of a financial intermediary that exceed the maximum Rule 12b-1 Plan fee.

The fee paid to the Adviser and/or Distributor by the Fund is computed on an annualized basis reflecting the average daily net assets of the class. Class A Shares of the Funds pay a maximum distribution and service fee of 0.25% of the Fund's Class A Shares' average daily net assets. Class C Shares of the Funds pay a maximum distribution and service fee of 1.00% of the Fund's Class C Shares' average daily net assets. Of this amount, 0.75% represents distribution 12b-1 fees and 0.25% represents shareholder servicing fees.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

The Funds may pay a shareholder servicing fee of up to 0.25% of its average daily net assets to financial intermediaries, including the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates for providing shareholder services and maintaining shareholder accounts. The financial intermediary may select others to perform these services for their customers and may pay them fees.

ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS TO FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES

In addition to the Rule 12b-1 and/or shareholder services fees that a Fund may pay to financial intermediaries, the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates may pay out of their own resources and reasonable profits amounts (including items of material value) to certain financial intermediaries. While Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") regulations limit the sales charges that you may bear as a Fund shareholder, there are no limits with regard to the amounts that the Distributor, the Advisor and its affiliates may pay out of their own resources and reasonable profits. You can ask your financial intermediary for information about any payments it receives from the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates for any service the financial intermediary provides.

The following examples illustrate the types of instances in which the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates may make additional payments to a financial intermediary.

SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENTS

Other than 12b-1 and shareholder services fees, financial intermediaries may be paid fees out of the assets of the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates (but not out of Fund assets).

Financial intermediaries may receive fees for providing distribution-related, recordkeeping or shareholder services such as sponsoring sales, providing sales literature, conducting training seminars for employees, and engineering sales-related computer software programs and systems. Also, financial intermediaries may be paid cash or promotional incentives, such as reimbursement of certain expenses relating to attendance at informational meetings about the Funds or other special events at recreational-type facilities, or items of material value. These payments will be based upon the amount of Shares the financial intermediary sells or may sell and/or upon the type and nature of sales or marketing support furnished by the financial intermediary.

Processing Support Payments

The Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates may make payments to financial intermediaries that sell Fund Shares to help offset their costs associated with client account maintenance support, statement processing and transaction processing. The types of payments that they may make under this category include: payment of ticket charges on a per transaction basis; payment of networking fees; and payment for ancillary services such as setting up funds on the financial intermediaries' mutual fund trading system.

Retirement Plan Program Servicing Payments

The Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates may make payments to certain financial intermediaries who sell Fund Shares through retirement plan programs. A financial intermediary may perform retirement plan program services itself or may arrange with a third party to perform retirement plan program services. In addition to participant recordkeeping, reporting, or transaction processing, retirement plan program services may include services rendered to a plan in connection with fund/investment selection and monitoring; employee enrollment and education; plan balance rollover or separation, or other similar services.

Other Benefits to Financial Intermediaries

From time to time, the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates, at their expense, may provide additional compensation to financial intermediaries that sell or arrange for the sale of Shares. Such compensation may include financial assistance to financial intermediaries that enable the Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates to participate in or present at conferences or seminars, sales or training programs for invited employees, client and investor events and other financial intermediary-sponsored events.

The Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates also may hold or sponsor, at their expense, sales events, conferences and programs for employees or associated persons of financial intermediaries and may pay the travel and lodging expenses of attendees. The Distributor, the Advisor and their affiliates also may provide, at their expense, meals and entertainment in conjunction with meetings with financial intermediaries. Other compensation may be offered to the extent not prohibited by applicable laws, regulations or the rules of any self-regulatory agency, such as FINRA.

The Funds paid the following fees pursuant to the Distribution Plan for Class A Shares for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

UNDERWRITING COMMISSIONS

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, Unified Financial Securities, Inc., the Funds' Distributor, received commissions of \$65,205 earned on the sales of Class A Shares. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, the Distributor received commissions of \$92,067, earned on the sales of Class A Shares. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the Distributor received commissions of \$92,117, earned on the sale of Class A Shares.

Fund	12B-1 Fees Paid	12B-1 Fees Waived
Money Market Fund	\$361,856	\$ 361,856
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund	\$266,369	\$ 234,424
Dividend Capture Fund	\$186,867(1)	
Global Select Markets Fund	\$ 2,004	
Real Strategies Fund	\$ 5,773	
Situs Fund	\$171,041 ⁽²⁾	
Balanced Allocation Fund	\$ 52,760	

⁽¹⁾ 12b-1 fees paid for Class C Shares represent \$14,327 of the total.

⁽²⁾ 12b-1 fees paid for Class C Shares represent \$7,314 of the total.

Administration Services

Huntington Asset Services, Inc. ("HASI"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Huntington Bancshares, Incorporated, provides administration and accounting services at the following annual rate on a tiered basis:

	Average Daily
Fee Rate	Net Assets of the Trust
0.1822%	on the first \$4 billion
0.1650%	on the next \$2 billion
0.1575%	on the next \$2 billion
0.1450%	on assets in excess of \$8 billion

There is no minimum annual fee per Fund or class of Shares.

The Advisor and its affiliates may pay out of their own reasonable resources and profits, fees or other expenses for shareholder and/or recordkeeping services and/or marketing support.

Custodians

The Huntington National Bank currently serves as custodian for each Fund. For its custody services, the Huntington National Bank receives an annual maximum fee of 0.026% calculated on the domestic assets in each Fund (except the Balanced Allocation Fund) as of the last day of each month, plus out of pocket expenses. For the Balanced Allocation Fund, the Huntington National Bank receives an annual maximum fee of 0.01% calculated on the assets in the Fund as of the last day of each month, plus out of pocket expenses. It also receives an annual surcharge of 0.005% of 1.00% calculated on the net *non-domestic* assets of the Global Select Markets Fund, the Situs Fund and the Real Strategies Fund as of the last day of each month.

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. serves as sub-custodian for each Fund's foreign assets.

Transfer Agent and Dividend Disbursing Agent

HASI, Indianapolis, IN, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HBI, serves as the transfer agent and dividend disbursing agent for the Trust.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Ernst & Young LLP is the independent registered public accounting firm for the Trust.

Legal Counsel

Sullivan & Worcester LLP, 1666 K Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20006, is counsel to the Trust and Independent Trustees and will pass upon the legality of the Shares offered hereby.

FEES PAID BY THE FUNDS FOR SERVICES

	Money Market Fund		U.S. Trea	asury Money Mar	ket Fund	
	For the fiscal years ended			For	the fiscal years en	ided
	December 31,				December 31,	
	2014	2013	2012	2014	2013	2012
Advisory Fee Paid	\$1,062,457	\$ 978,411	\$1,205,214	\$2,401,784	\$2,812,908	\$ 704,613
Advisory Fee Waived/Reimbursed	\$1,877,044	\$1,526,624	\$1,533,406	\$5,403,446	\$5,772,291	\$1,433,607
Administration Fee Paid	\$ 645,742	\$ 589,263	\$ 731,997	\$2,190,185	\$2,539,734	\$ 641,894
Financial Administration Fee Paid	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 5,254	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 1,516
Chief Compliance Officer Services*	\$ 15,425	\$ 8,290	\$ 15,208	\$ 53,561	\$ 25,430	\$ 11,408

		idend Capture Fund		Select Markets Fund
	For	the fiscal years ended December 31,		e fiscal years ended December 31,
	2014		2014	2013 2012
Advisory Fee Paid	\$2,013,238	\$1,698,590 \$1,30	0,716 \$176,319	\$320,697 \$415,44
Advisory Fee Waived/Reimbursed	\$1,313,835	\$1,004,031 \$ 25	54,226 \$ 96,711	\$ 43,287 \$
Administration Fee Paid	\$ 489,598	\$ 409,132 \$ 31	5,985 \$ 32,165	\$ 57,938 \$ 29,74
Financial Administration Fee Paid	\$ —	\$ — \$	5,867 \$ —	\$ \$ 75,694
Chief Compliance Officer Services*	\$ 11,354	\$ 5,950 \$	6,703 \$ 784	\$ 797 \$ 1,60

	Real Strategies Fund		Situs Fund			
	For the fiscal years ended December 31,		For	the fiscal years en December 31,	nded	
	2014	2013	2012	2014	2013	2012
Advisory Fee Paid	\$446,568	\$710,915	\$727,180	\$2,444,015	\$2,107,587	\$1,539,700
Advisory Fee Waived/Reimbursed	\$282,469	\$ 14,797	\$ —	\$1,097,463	\$ 73,283	\$ —
Administration Fee Paid	\$108,615	\$171,263	\$176,655	\$ 594,291	\$ 507,672	\$ 374,041
Financial Administration Fee Paid	\$ —	\$ —	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 3,529	\$ 20,633
Chief Compliance Officer Services*	\$ 2,643	\$ 2,450	\$ 3,685	\$ 13,692	\$ 7,829	\$ 8,188

	Balar	Balanced Allocation Fund		
	For t	For the fiscal years ended		
		December 31,		
	2014	2014 2013 201		
Advisory Fee Paid	\$21,104	\$20,442	\$20,425	
Advisory Fee Waived/Reimbursed	\$48,026	\$37,483	\$42,050	
Administration Fee Paid	\$38,484	\$36,928	\$37,214	
Financial Administration Fee Paid	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 1,136	
Chief Compliance Officer Services*	\$ 895	\$ 565	\$ 659	

* Chief Compliance Officer services are contracted with HASI and paid by the Trust at the contractual rate of \$100,000 per year (from July 9, 2013 through August 19, 2014, the annual rate was \$135,188).

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board of Trustees approving any investment advisory contract of the Fund is available with the Fund's Annual or Semi-Annual Report to Shareholders, as applicable, covering the period covered by the relevant Annual or Semi-Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES

Information is provided below regarding each person who owns of record or is known by the Trust to own beneficially 5% or more of any class of Shares of any Fund. The Advisor is a wholly owned subsidiary of Huntington National Bank. Huntington National Bank, a national banking association, is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HBI, a bank holding company organized under the laws of Maryland. By virtue of the Advisor's affiliation with Huntington National Bank, the Advisor may be deemed to control the Funds.

As of April 1, 2015, the following shareholders owned of record, beneficially, or both, 5% or more of outstanding Shares:

Fund Share Class	Shareholder Name Address	Shares Owned	Percentage Owned
Money Market Fund—Class A			
Shares	Carey & Co.		
	Columbus, OH		
	National Financial Services LLC New York, NY	32,556,029.460	22.55%
	Liquid Green Omnibus Account	95,501,227.540	66.12%
	Indianapolis, IN	15,028,607.890	10.41%
Money Market Fund—Institutional			
Shares	Carey & Co.		
	Columbus, OH	129,950,771.820	99.97%
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund-			
Class A Shares	National Financial Services LLC		
	New York, NY	42,172,935.990	46.54%
	Carey & Co.		
	Columbus, OH	48,252,257.490	53.25%

Fund Share Class	Shareholder Name Address	Shares Owned	Percentage Owned
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund—			r er centage o winda
Institutional Shares	Carey & Co. Columbus, OH	729,799,513.620	100.00%
Global Select Markets Fund—Class A			
Shares	National Financial Services LLC NFS FMTC IRA		
	FBO Timothy A. Grooms		
	Xenia, OH	6,073.188	6.91%
	National Financial Services LLC FEBO David S. Schoedin		
	Columbus, OH	4,506.108	5.13%
	Charles Schwab and Co Inc. Special Custody AC Customers San Francisco, CA	45,464.878	51.71%
Global Select Markets Fund—Institutional	, ,		
Shares	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Huntington National Bank Columbus, OH	559,729.214	53.28%
	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	338,941.884	32.26%
	TD Ameritrade Omaha, NE	53,955.692	5.14%
Dividend Capture Fund—Class C Shares	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Raymond D. Bateman TTEE	20,233.216	5.03%

Fund Share Class	Shareholder Name Address	Shares Owned	Percentage Owned
Dividend Capture Fund—Institutional			
Shares	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	7,768,953.418	65.81%
	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	3,001,598.857	25.43%
Real Strategies Fund—Class A Shares	Charles Schwab and Co Inc.		
	Special Custody AC Customers		
	San Francisco, CA	84,351.699	31.98%
	National Financial Services LLC		
	Bill E. Miller	14,017.191	5.31%
Real Strategies Fund—Institutional Shares	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	1,083,503.967	38.65%
	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	1,211,230.365	43.21%
	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	427,788.043	15.26%
Situs Fund—Class A Shares	National Financial Services LLC		
	FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	EB Accounts		
	Columbus, OH	124,033.391	6.08%
	TD Ameritrade Trust Company		
	Denver, CO	154,688.606	7.58%

Fund Share Class	Shareholder Name Address	Shares Owned	Percentage Owned
Situs Fund—Institutional Shares	Saxon CO	321,059.681	5.71%
	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	2,452,137.235	43.57%
	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Huntington National Bank		
	Columbus, OH	433,871.796	7.71%
	National Financial Services LLC FEBO Huntington National Bank EB Accounts		
	Columbus, OH	1,811,870.760	32.20%

Shareholders owning 25% or more of outstanding Shares may be in control and be able to affect the outcome of certain matters presented for a vote of Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Trust is an open-end management investment company, whose Declaration of Trust permits the Trust to offer separate series of Shares of beneficial interest, representing interests in separate portfolios of securities. The Shares in any one portfolio may be offered in two or more separate classes. As of the date of this SAI, the Trustees have established four classes of Shares, known as Class A Shares, Class C Shares, Institutional Shares, and Interfund Shares. Interfund Shares are offered only by the Money Market Funds. Class C Shares of a Fund are fully transferable. Each class is entitled to dividends from the respective class assets of the Fund as declared by the Trustees, and if the Trust (or a Fund) were liquidated, the shareholders of each class would receive the net assets of the Fund attributable to each respective class.

All shareholders are entitled to one vote for each Share held on the record date for any action requiring a vote by the shareholders and a proportionate fractional vote for each fractional Share held. Shareholders of the Trust will vote in the aggregate and not by Fund or class except (i) as otherwise expressly required by law or when the Trustees determine that the matter to be voted upon affects only the interests of the shareholders of the Fund or class, or (ii) only holders of Class A Shares and Class C Shares will be entitled to vote on matters submitted to shareholder vote with respect to the Rule 12b-1 Plan applicable to such class or classes.

The rights of shareholders cannot be modified without a majority vote.

The Trust is not required to hold annual meetings of shareholders for the purpose of electing Trustees except that (i) the Trust is required to hold a shareholder meeting for the election of Trustees at such time as less than a majority of the Trustees holding office have been elected by shareholders and (ii) if, as a result of a vacancy on the Board, less than two-thirds of the Trustees holding office have been elected by the shareholders, that vacancy may only be filled by a vote of the shareholders. In addition, a Trustee may be removed from office by a written consent signed by the holders of Shares representing two-thirds of the outstanding Shares of the Trust at a meeting duly called for the purpose, which meeting must be held upon written request of not less than 10% of the outstanding Shares of the Trust. Upon written request by the holders of Shares representing 1% of the outstanding Shares of the Trust stating that such shareholders wish to communicate with the other shareholders for the purpose of obtaining the signatures necessary to demand a meeting to consider removal of a Trustee, the Trust will provide a list of shareholders or disseminate appropriate materials (at the expense of the requesting shareholders). Except as set forth above, a Trustee may continue to hold office and may appoint successor Trustees.

Shareholder inquiries regarding the Funds should be directed to the Trust, c/o Huntington Asset Services, Inc., P.O. Box 6110, Indianapolis, IN 46206-6110.

Additional Information on Purchases, Exchanges and Redemptions

Class C Shares may be purchased, exchanged with other Class C Shares within the Huntington Complex, or redeemed by contacting the Trust or your investment professional. Class C Shares may also be offered through other financial intermediaries.

Class A Shares of each of the Funds may be purchased, exchanged or redeemed by contacting the Trust or your investment professional. Class A Shares may also be offered through other financial intermediaries.

Institutional Shares may be purchased only through fiduciary, advisory, agency and other similar accounts maintained by or on behalf of Huntington or its affiliates or correspondent banks as well as similar customers of third party financial institutions. Individuals who receive Institutional Shares as a result of a Trust distribution or similar transaction or by operation of law, will be permitted to retain such Shares, but may not purchase additional Institutional Shares, except by means of the reinvestment of dividends or distributions. Exchanges of Institutional Shares, if permitted by the account agreement, as well as redemptions of Institutional Shares, are made by contacting the Trust.

Interfund Shares are available only for purchase by the Funds and may be purchased, exchanged or redeemed by contacting the Trust.

Telephone purchase, exchange or redemption requests may be recorded and will be binding upon an investor. Use of the telephone for exchanges or redemptions involves the possible risk of loss, since anyone providing the required information may be able to use the service without the shareholder's permission. If reasonable procedures are not followed by the Trust, it may be liable for losses due to unauthorized or fraudulent telephone instructions.

In times of extreme economic or market conditions, shareholders may have difficulty making redemptions or exchanges by telephone. If a shareholder cannot make contact by telephone, redemption or exchange requests should be made in writing and sent by overnight mail to the Trust.

In connection with certain redemption or exchange requests, a shareholder may be required to obtain a signature guarantee for authentication purposes. Only New Technology Medallion imprints will be accepted as signature guarantees.

Other Purchase Information

Purchases of all classes of Shares are made at NAV, plus (for Class A Shares only) any applicable sales charge. All purchases, except for of Interfund Shares, are subject to minimum purchase requirements, but these requirements may be waived by the Distributor. Payment for Class A Shares and Class C Shares may not be by third party check, and any checks drawn from a bank located outside the U.S. will result in a delay in processing until the check has cleared.

If at any time the right to purchase Shares is suspended, although no new purchases may be made, in some circumstances existing shareholders may be permitted to purchase additional Shares and have dividends reinvested.

Payment in Kind. In addition to payment by check, Shares of a Fund may be purchased by customers of the Advisor in exchange for securities held by an investor which are acceptable to that Fund. Investors interested in exchanging securities must first telephone Huntington at 800-253-0412 for instructions regarding submission of a written description of the securities the investor wishes to exchange. Within five business days of the receipt of the written description, Huntington will advise the investor by telephone whether the securities to be exchanged are acceptable to the Fund whose Shares the investor desires to purchase and will instruct the investor regarding delivery of the securities. There is no charge for this review. Securities which have been accepted by a Fund must be delivered within five days following acceptance.

Securities accepted by a Fund are valued in the manner and on the days described in the section entitled "Determination of Net Asset Value" as of 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time).

The value of the securities to be exchanged and of the Shares of the Fund may be higher or lower on the day Fund Shares are offered than on the date of receipt by the Funds of the written description of the securities to be exchanged. The basis of the exchange of such securities for Shares of the Fund will depend on the value of the securities and the NAV of Fund Shares next determined following acceptance on the day Fund Shares are offered. Securities to be exchanged must be accompanied by a transmittal form which is available from the Funds.

A gain or loss for federal income tax purposes may be realized by the investor upon the securities exchange depending upon the cost basis of the securities tendered. All interest, dividends, subscription or other rights with respect to accepted securities which go "ex" (the interval between the announcement and the payments of the next dividend or right) after the time of valuation become the property of the Fund and must be delivered to the Fund by the investor forthwith upon receipt from the issuer. Further, the investor must represent and agree that all securities offered to the Fund are not subject to any restrictions upon their sale by the Fund under the Securities Act of 1933, or otherwise.

Sales Charge Reductions/Waivers (Class A Shares). Class A Shares may be purchased without an initial sales charge by any investor who buys Class A Shares through an investment professional that does not accept a sales commission from the Funds' Distributor. Investment professionals wishing to offer this sales charge waiver should call the Trust. Also, sales charges applicable to purchases of Class A Shares may be reduced for certain investors or groups of investors who make larger investments. Investors wishing to take advantage of these sales charge reductions should call the Trust.

Reinstatement Privilege. Every shareholder has a one-time right, within 60 days of redeeming Class A Shares of an Equity Fund, to reinvest the redemption proceeds at the next-determined NAV in Class A Shares without any sales charge. The investor must notify the Trust in writing of the reinvestment by the shareholder in order to eliminate a sales charge.

If the shareholder redeems Class A Shares and utilizes the reinstatement privilege, there may be tax consequences.

Other Exchange Information

Exchanges may only be made between Funds having identical shareholder registrations. For any other exchanges you must obtain a New Technology Medallion Signature Guarantee.

Unless otherwise specified in writing, the existing registration and reinvestment options relating to a Fund being exchanged will be used for any new Fund accounts required to be opened in the exchange.

Exchanges will not be available for Shares purchased by check until the check has cleared.

Other Redemption Information

Redemptions of all classes of Shares are made at NAV, less any applicable contingent deferred sales charge (CDSC). If you make exchanges of your Class A Shares among the Funds, the holding period for purposes of determining the applicable CDSC will be determined based on the purchase date of your original Shares.

If a shareholder wishes to wire redemption proceeds to a bank other than the one previously designated, redemption may be delayed by as much as seven days. To change the name of the bank account to which redemption proceeds will be wired, a shareholder should send a written request (and, if necessary, with a New Technology Medallion Signature Guarantee) to the Trust, P.O. Box 6110, Indianapolis, IN 46206-6110.

Proceeds from the redemption of Shares purchased by check will not be available until the check has cleared.

Shareholders of the Money Market Funds who write checks to redeem Class A Shares may be subject to certain checking account fees. Checks written on these accounts may be negotiated through the shareholder's local bank and should not be sent to the issuing bank in order to redeem Class A Shares. Cancelled checks are sent to the shareholder each month. *Redemption in kind.* Although the Funds intend to pay Share redemptions in cash, they reserve the right, as described below, to pay the redemption price in whole or in part by a distribution of the Fund's portfolio securities.

Because the Funds have elected to be governed by Rule 18f-1 under the 1940 Act, the Funds are obligated to pay Share redemptions to any one shareholder in cash only up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1% of the net assets represented by such Share class during any 90-day period.

Any Share redemption payment greater than this amount will also be in cash unless the Fund determines that payment should be in kind. In such a case, the Funds will pay all or a portion of the remainder of the redemption in portfolio securities, valued in the same way as a Fund determines its NAV. The portfolio securities will be selected in a manner that the Fund's Trustees deem fair and equitable and, to the extent available, such securities will be readily marketable.

Redemption in kind is not as liquid as a cash redemption. If redemption is made in kind, shareholders receiving the portfolio securities and selling them before their maturity could receive less than the redemption value of the securities and could incur certain transaction costs.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE - MONEY MARKET FUNDS

NAV is calculated at 1:00 p.m. Eastern time for the Money Market Fund and the U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund. In addition, these Money Market Funds and all the other Funds calculate their NAV as of the close of the NYSE every Monday through Friday that the NYSE is open. In addition, the Money Market Funds reserve the right to allow the purchase, redemption, and exchange of Shares on any other day on which regular trading in money market instruments is taking place. On any day that the bond markets close early, such as days in advance of holidays or in the event of an emergency, the Money Market Funds reserve the right to advance the time NAV is determined and by which purchase, redemption, and exchange orders must be received on that day, to the time of such closing.

For valuing securities in calculating NAV, the Money Market Funds have elected to use the amortized cost method of valuation pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the 1940 Act. The process of selecting securities is consistent with the credit quality and diversification requirements of Rule 2a-7. The amortized cost method involves valuing an instrument at its cost initially and thereafter assuming a constant amortization to maturity of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the instrument. This method may result in periods during which value, as determined by amortized cost, is higher or lower than the price a Fund would receive if it sold the instrument. The value of securities in a Fund can be expected to vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates. Pursuant to Rule 2a-7, each of the Money Market Funds will maintain a dollar-weighted average portfolio maturity appropriate to maintaining a stable NAV per Share, provided that no Fund will purchase any security with a remaining maturity of more than 397 days (except as described below) nor maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of greater than 60 days. Repurchase agreements involving the purchase of securities with remaining maturities of greater than 397 days will be treated as having a maturity equal to the period remaining until the date on which the repurchase is scheduled to occur or, where no date is specified and the agreement is subject to a demand feature, the notice period applicable to the demand to repurchase those securities. A variable rate instrument, the principal amount of which is scheduled to be repaid in more than 397 days but which is subject to a demand feature, shall be deemed to have a maturity equal to the longer of the period remaining until the next readjustment of the interest rate or the period remaining until the principal amount may be recovered through exercise of the demand feature. A floating rate instrument, the principal amount of which is scheduled to be repaid in more than 397 days but which is subject to a demand feature, shall be deemed to have a maturity equal to the period remaining until the principal amount can be recovered through demand.

The Trustees have undertaken to establish procedures reasonably designed, taking into account current market conditions and each of the Money Market Funds' investment objective, to stabilize the NAV per Share of each Money Market Fund for purposes of sales and redemptions at \$1.00. These procedures include a review by the Trustees, at such intervals as they deem appropriate, to determine the extent, if any, to which the NAV per Share of each Fund, calculated by using available market quotations, deviates from \$1.00 per Share. In the event such deviation exceeds one-half of one percent, Rule 2a-7 requires that the Trustees promptly consider what action, if any, should be initiated. If the Trustees believe that the extent of any deviation from a Fund's \$1.00 amortized cost price per Share may result in material dilution or other unfair results to investors, the Trustees will take such steps as they deem appropriate to eliminate or reduce to the extent reasonably practicable any such dilution or unfair results. These steps may include selling portfolio instruments prior to maturity, shortening the Fund's average portfolio maturity, withholding or reducing dividends, reducing the number of a Fund's outstanding Shares without monetary consideration, or utilizing a NAV per Share based on available market quotations. In addition, if the Advisor becomes aware that any Second Tier Security or Unrated Security held by a Fund has received a rating from any NRSRO below the NRSRO's two highest rating categories, the procedures adopted by the Trustees in accordance with Rule 2a-7 require the Advisor to dispose of such security unless (i) the sale would cause the deviation between the Fund's amortized cost and market-determined values per Share to exceed 0.50 of 1% (in which case the Trustees will meet to determine what

action to take) or (ii) the Trustees reassess the credit quality of the security and determine that it is in the best interests of shareholders to retain the investment. In the event a Fund holds a defaulted security, a security that has ceased to be an Eligible Security, or a security that has been determined to no longer present minimal credit risks, Rule 2a-7 requires the Fund to dispose of the security unless the Trustees determine that such action is not in the best interest of shareholders. The Rule requires each Fund to limit its investments to securities determined to present minimal credit risks based on factors in addition to ratings assigned a security by an NRSRO and which are at the time of acquisition Eligible Securities.

Rule 2a-7, as amended, defines the terms NRSRO, Requisite NRSROs, Eligible Securities, Rated Securities, Unrated Securities, Demand Features, Guarantees, Unconditional Demand Features, First Tier Securities and Second Tier Securities in establishing risk limiting conditions for money market mutual funds.

A summary of those definitions follows:

"NRSRO" is any nationally recognized statistical rating organization as that term is used in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, that is not an affiliated person of the issuer, guarantor or provider of credit support for the instrument. While the Appendix to the SAI identifies each NRSRO, examples include S&P, Moody's and Fitch Ratings (Fitch).

"REQUISITE NRSROs" means (i) any two NRSROs that have issued a rating with respect to a security or class of debt obligations of an issuer, or (ii) if only one NRSRO has issued a rating with respect to such security or class of debt obligations of an issuer at the time the fund acquired the security, that NRSRO.

"ELIGIBLE SECURITIES" are defined as (i) Rated Securities with a remaining maturity of 397 or less days and which have received rating in one of the two highest rating categories; (ii) Unrated Securities that are of comparable equality, provided that an Unrated Security is not an Eligible Security if the security has received a long-term rating from any NRSRO that is not within the NRSRO's three highest long-term rating categories, unless the security has received a long-term rating from an NRSRO in one of the three highest rating categories, and provided that certain asset backed securities shall not be Eligible Securities unless they have received a rating from an NRSRO; and (iii) a security that is subject to a Demand Feature or Guarantee whether the Guarantee has received a rating from an NRSRO or the Guarantee is issued by a guarantor that has received a rating from an NRSRO with respect to a class of debt obligations (or any debt obligation within that class) that is comparable in priority and security to the Guarantee, or another institution, has undertaken promptly to notify the holder of the security in the event the Demand Feature or Guarantee is substituted with another Demand Feature or Guarantee.

"RATED SECURITIES" include (i) securities that have received a short-term rating from an NRSRO, or have been issued by an issuer that has received a short-term rating from an NRSRO with respect to a class of debt obligations (or any debt obligation within that class) that is comparable in priority and security, or (ii) securities that are subject to a Guarantee that has received a short-term rating from an NRSRO, or a Guarantee issued by a guarantor that has received a short-term rating from an NRSRO with respect to a class of debt obligations (or any debt obligation within that class) that is comparable in priority and security is not a Rated Security if it is subject to an external credit support agreement that was no in effect when the security was assigned its rating, unless the security has received a short-term rating reflecting the existence of the credit support or the credit support itself has received a short-term rating.

"UNRATED SECURITIES" are any securities that are not Rated Securities.

"DEMAND FEATURE" is (i) a feature permitting the holder of a security to sell the security at an exercise price equal to the approximate amortized cost of the security plus accrued interest, if any, at the time of exercise, provided that such feature must be exercisable either at any time on no more than 30 calendar days' notice or at specified intervals not exceeding 397 calendar days and upon no more than 30 calendar days' notice; or (ii) a feature permitting the holder of certain asset backed securities unconditionally to receive principal and interest within 397 calendar days of making demand.

"GUARANTEE" is an unconditional obligation of a person other than the issuer of the security to undertake to pay, upon presentment by the holder of the Guarantee (if required), the principal amount of the underlying security plus accrued interest when due or upon default, or, in the case of an Unconditional Demand Feature, an obligation that entitles the holder to receive upon exercise the approximate amortized cost of the underlying security or securities, plus accrued interest, if any. A Guarantee includes a letter of credit, financial guaranty (bond) insurance, and an Unconditional Demand Feature (other than an Unconditional Demand Feature provided by the issuer of the security).

"UNCONDITIONAL DEMAND FEATURE" means a Demand Feature that by its terms would be readily exercisable in the event of a default in payment of principal or interest on the underlying security or securities.

"FIRST TIER SECURITY" means any (i) Rated Security which has received the highest short-term rating by the Requisite NRSROs for debt obligations, (ii) any Unrated Security that is of comparable quality, (iii) any security issued by a registered investment company that is a money market fund, or (iv) certain government securities.

"SECOND TIER SECURITY" means any Eligible Security that is not a First Tier Security.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE – ALL FUNDS OTHER THAN MONEY MARKET FUNDS

Pursuant to Trustee-approved policies, the Trust relies on certain security pricing services to provide current market value of securities. Those security pricing services value equity securities (including foreign equity securities) traded on a securities exchange at the last reported sales price on the principal exchange. Equity securities quoted by NASDAQ are valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price. If there is no reported sale on the principal exchange and in the case of over-the-counter securities, equity securities are valued at a bid price estimated by the security pricing service. Foreign securities are subject to modification based on significant events. U.S. Government obligations held by a Fund are valued at the mean between the over-the-counter bid and asked prices furnished by the security pricing service. Except as noted above, debt securities traded on a national securities exchange or in the over-the-counter market are valued at the last reported sales price on the principal exchange. If there is no reported sale on the principal exchange, and for all other debt securities, including zero-coupon securities, debt securities are valued at a bid price estimated by the security pricing service. Foreign securities quoted in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the foreign exchange rate in effect as of the close of the NYSE (generally 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) on the day the value of the foreign security is determined. Option contracts are generally valued at the mean of the bid and asked price as reported on the highest-volume exchange (in terms of the number of option contracts traded for that issue) on which such options are traded. Short-term investments with remaining maturities of 60 days or less at the time of purchase may be valued at amortized cost. Investments in other open-end investment companies are valued at NAV. In certain limited circumstances such as when a security's closing price versus the prior day's closing price exceeds a defined variance tolerance, or when a security's closing price is unchanged as compared to the prior day's closing price, a financial intermediary's good faith determination of the fair value of a security or option may be used instead of its current market value, even if the security's market price is readily available. In cases where market prices for portfolio securities are not readily available, a Pricing Committee established and appointed by the Trustees determines in good faith, subject to Trust procedures, the fair value of portfolio securities held by a Fund.

TAXES

Federal Income Taxation

Each Fund has elected to be treated, and intends to qualify each year, as a regulated investment company (a "RIC") under Subchapter M of the Code. Qualification as a RIC requires, among other things, that the Fund:

- (i) derive in each taxable year at least 90% of its gross income from: (a) dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain securities loans, and gains from the sales or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies, or other income (including but not limited to gain from options, futures and forward contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities or foreign currencies; and (b) net income derived from interests in certain publicly traded partnerships that are treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes and that derive less than 90% of their gross income from the items described in (a) above (each a "Qualified Publicly Traded Partnership"); and
- (ii) diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter of each taxable year: (a) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets is represented by (I) cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, the securities of other regulated investment companies and (II) other securities, with such other securities limited, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer and (b) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets is invested in the securities (other than U.S. government securities and the securities of other regulated investment companies) of (I) any one issuer, (II) any two or more issuers that the Fund controls and that are determined to be engaged in the same or similar trades or businesses or related trades or businesses or (III) any one or more Qualified Publicly Traded Partnerships.

As a RIC, a Fund will not be subject to federal income tax on its "net investment income" (i.e., its investment company taxable income, as that term is defined in the Code, determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid) and "net capital gain" (the excess of the Fund's net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), if any, that it distributes in each taxable year to its shareholders, provided that it distributes at least 90% of the sum of its investment company taxable income for such taxable year and its net tax-exempt interest income for such taxable year. However, a Fund will be subject to federal corporate income tax (currently at a maximum rate of 35%) on any undistributed income other than tax-exempt income from Municipal Obligations and to alternative minimum tax (currently at a maximum rate of 20% for corporations such as the Fund) on alternative minimum taxable income.

If a Fund were to fail to qualify as a regulated investment company accorded special tax treatment in any taxable year (and were to fail, or were not eligible, to take advantage of certain remedial provisions), the Fund would be subject to tax on its income at corporate rates, and all distributions from earnings and profits, including any distribution of net tax-exempt income and net long-term capital gains, would be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. In addition, the Fund could be required to recognize net unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest, and make substantial distributions before requalifying as a regulated investment company that is accorded special tax treatment.

If a Fund fails to distribute in a calendar year substantially all of its ordinary income for such year and substantially all of its net capital gains for the year ending October 31 (or later if the Fund is permitted so to elect and so elects), plus any retained amount from the prior year, the Fund will be subject to a 4% excise tax on the under-distributed amounts.

A dividend paid to shareholders by a Fund in January is generally deemed to have been paid by a Fund on December 31 of the preceding year, if the dividend was declared and payable to shareholders of record on a date in October, November or December of that preceding year. Each Fund intends generally to make distributions sufficient to avoid imposition of the 4% excise tax, although there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so.

Fund distributions. Distributions from a Fund (other than exempt-interest dividends, as discussed below) will be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income to the extent derived from the Fund's investment income and net short-term gains. Distributions of net capital gains (that is, the excess of net gains from capital assets held more than one year over net losses from capital assets held by a Fund for not more than one year) will be taxable to shareholders as such, regardless of how long a shareholder has held the Shares in a Fund. Distributions are taxable to shareholders even if they are paid from income or gains earned by a Fund before a shareholder's investment (and thus were included in the price the shareholder paid). Distributions from capital gains are generally made after applying any available capital loss carryovers. Distributions are taxable whether shareholders receive them in cash or reinvest them in additional shares through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Any gain resulting from the sale or exchange of Fund Shares generally will be taxable as capital gains. Long-term capital gain rates have been temporarily reduced—in general, to 15% with lower rates applying to taxpayers in the 10% and 15% rate brackets—through December 31, 2012. For taxable years beginning on or before December 31, 2012, distributions of investment income properly designated by a Fund as derived from "qualified dividend income" are taxed at the rates applicable to long-term capital gains. In order for some portion of the dividends received by a Fund shareholder to be "qualified dividend income," the Fund must meet holding period and other requirements with respect to some portion of the dividend-paying stocks in its portfolio and the shareholder must meet holding period and other requirements with respect to the Fund's Shares. Generally, dividends paid by REITs do not qualify for the lower tax rates that apply to certain other "qualified investment income." A dividend will not be treated as qualified dividend income (at either the Fund or shareholder level): (1) if the dividend is received with respect to any share of stock held for fewer than 61 days during the 120-day period beginning on the date which is 60 days before the date on which such share becomes ex-dividend with respect to such dividend (or, in the case of certain preferred stock, 91 days during the 180-day period beginning 90 days before such date), (2) to the extent that the recipient is under an obligation (whether pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property, (3) if the recipient elects to have the dividend income treated as investment income for purposes of the limitation on deductibility of investment interest, or (4) if the dividend is received from a foreign corporation that is (a) not eligible for the benefits of a comprehensive income tax treaty with the United States (with the exception of dividends paid on stock of such a foreign corporation readily tradable on an established securities market in the Unites States) or (b) treated as a passive foreign investment company.

In general, distributions of investment income designated by a Fund as derived from qualified dividend income will be treated as qualified dividend income by a shareholder taxed as an individual provided the shareholder meets the holding period and other requirements described above with respect to a Fund's Shares. If the aggregate qualified dividends received by a Fund during any taxable year are 95% or more of its gross income, then 100% of the Fund's dividends (other than properly designated capital gain dividends) will be eligible to be treated as qualified dividend income. For this purpose, the only gain included in the term "gross income" is the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss.

Dividends of net investment income received by corporate shareholders of a Fund will qualify for the 70% dividends received deduction generally available to corporations to the extent of the amount of qualifying dividends received by a Fund from domestic corporations for the taxable year. A dividend received by a Fund will not be treated as a qualifying dividend (1) if the stock on which the dividend is paid is considered to be "debt-financed" (generally, acquired with borrowed funds), (2) if it has been received with respect to any share of stock that a Fund has held for less than 46 days (91 days in the case of certain preferred stock) during the 90-day period beginning on the date which is 45 days before the date on which such share becomes ex-dividend with respect to such dividend (during the 180-day period beginning 90 days before such date in the case of certain preferred stock) or (3) to the extent that a Fund is under an obligation (pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property. Moreover, the dividends received deduction may be disallowed or reduced (1) if the corporate shareholder fails to satisfy the foregoing requirements with respect to its shares of a Fund or (2) by application of the Code.

Due to certain of a Fund's hedging and other investment activities, the net investment income calculated for accounting purposes and distributed to shareholders may in certain circumstances exceed or be less than a Fund's net tax exempt and taxable income. If a Fund distributes amounts in excess of the Fund's "earnings and profits" (which provide a measure of a Fund's dividend paying capacity for tax purposes), such excess distributions to shareholders will be treated as a return of capital to the extent of a shareholder's basis in his or her Shares, and thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of a capital asset. A return of capital is not taxable to a shareholder but has the effect of reducing the shareholder's basis in the relevant Shares, thus reducing any loss or increasing any gain on a subsequent taxable disposition by a shareholder of his or her Shares. Dividends and distributions on a Fund's Shares are generally subject to federal income tax as described herein to the extent they do not exceed the Fund's realized income and gains, even though such dividends and distributions may economically represent a return of a particular shareholder's investment. Such distributions are likely to occur in respect of shares purchased at a time when a Fund's NAV reflects gains that are either unrealized, or realized but not distributed.

Exempt-interest dividends. A Fund will be qualified to pay exempt-interest dividends to its shareholders only if, at the close of each quarter of the Fund's taxable year, at least 50% of the total value of the Fund's assets consists of obligations the interest on which is exempt from federal income tax. Distributions that the Fund properly designates as exempt-interest dividends are treated as interest excludable from shareholders' gross income for federal income tax purposes but may be taxable for federal AMT purposes and for state and local purposes (see below). If a Fund intends to pay only exempt-interest dividends, the Fund may be limited in its ability to engage in such taxable transactions as forward commitments, repurchase agreements, financial futures, and options contracts on financial futures, tax-exempt bond indices, and other assets. Part or all of the interest on indebtedness, if any, incurred or continued by a shareholder to purchase or carry Shares of a Fund paying exempt-interest dividends is not deductible. The portion of interest that is not deductible is equal to the total interest paid or accrued on the indebtedness, multiplied by the percentage of the Fund's total distributions (not including distributions from net long-term capital gains) paid to the shareholder that are exempt-interest dividends. Under rules used by the Internal Revenue Service to determine when borrowed funds are considered used for the purpose of purchasing or carrying particular assets, the purchase of Shares may be considered to have been made with borrowed funds even though such funds are not directly traceable to the purchase of Shares. In general, exempt-interest dividends, if any, attributable to interest received on certain private activity bonds and certain industrial development bonds will not be tax-exempt to any shareholders who are "substantial users" of the facilities financed by such bonds or who are "related persons" of such substantial users (within the meaning of Section 147(a) of the Code). Recipients of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits may have to take into account exempt-interest dividends from the Fund in determining the taxability of such benefits. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisor regarding the potential effect on them (if any) of any investment in the Fund. A Fund which is qualified to pay exempt-interest dividends will inform investors within 60 days of the Fund's fiscal year end of the percentage of its income distributions designated as tax-exempt. The percentage is applied uniformly to all distributions made during the year. The percentage of income designated as tax-exempt for any particular distribution may be substantially different from the percentage of a Fund's income that was tax-exempt during the period covered by the distribution. The exemption from federal income tax for exempt-interest dividends does not necessarily result in exemption for such dividends under the income or other tax laws of any state or local authority, except as otherwise provided herein (see below). You are advised to consult with your tax advisor about state and local tax matters.

Hedging transactions. Certain investment and hedging activities of a Fund, including transactions in options, futures contracts, straddles, forward contracts, foreign currencies, foreign securities, or other similar transactions, will be subject to special tax rules (including sale, mark-to-market, straddle, wash sale and short-sale rules). In a given case, these rules may accelerate income to the Fund, defer losses to the Fund, cause adjustments in the holding periods of the Fund's assets, convert long-term capital gains into short-term capital gains or convert short-term capital losses into long-term capital losses. These rules could therefore affect the amount, timing, and character of the Fund's income and distributions to shareholders. Income earned as a result of these transactions would, in general, not be eligible for the dividends received deduction or for treatment as exempt-interest dividends when distributed to shareholders. Each Fund will endeavor to make any available elections pertaining to such transactions in a manner believed to be in the best interests of the Fund.

Certain of a Fund's hedging activities (including its transactions, if any, in foreign currencies or foreign currency-denominated instruments) are likely to produce a difference between its book income and its taxable income. If a Fund's book income exceeds its taxable income the distribution (if any) of such excess will be treated as (i) a dividend to the extent of the Fund's remaining earnings and profits (including earnings and profits arising from tax-exempt income), (ii) thereafter as a return of capital to the extent of the recipient's basis in the shares, and (iii) thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of a capital asset. If a Fund's book income in less than its taxable income, the Fund could be required to make distributions exceeding book income to qualify as a regulated investment company that is accorded special tax treatment.

Foreign currency-denominated securities and related hedging transactions. A Fund's transactions in foreign currency-denominated debt securities, certain foreign currency options, futures contracts, and forward contracts may give rise to ordinary income or loss to the extent such income or loss results from fluctuations in the value of the foreign currency concerned.

Foreign Tax Credit. If more than 50% of a Fund's assets at year end consists of the stock or securities in foreign corporations, that Fund would qualify for and intends to make the election permitted under Section 853 of the Code so that shareholders will be able to claim a credit or deduction on their income tax returns for, and will be required to treat as part of the amount distributed to them, their pro rata portion of qualified taxes paid by the Fund to foreign countries (which taxes relate primarily to investment income). A shareholder's ability to claim such a foreign tax credit will be subject to certain limitations imposed by the Code, as a result of which shareholders may not get a full credit or deduction for the amount of foreign taxes so paid by the Fund. In particular, shareholders must hold their Fund shares (without protection from risk of loss) on the ex-dividend date and for at least 15 additional days during the 31-day period surrounding the ex-dividend date to be eligible to claim a foreign tax credit with respect to a given dividend. Shareholders who do not itemize on their federal income tax returns may claim a credit (but no deduction) for such foreign taxes.

Investment by a Fund in "passive foreign investment companies" could subject the Fund to a U.S. federal income tax or other charge on the proceeds from the sale of its investment in such a company; however, this tax can be avoided by making an election to mark such investments to market annually or to treat the passive foreign investment company as a "qualified electing Fund."

A "passive foreign investment company" is any foreign corporation: (i) 75 percent or more of the income of which for the taxable year is passive income, or (ii) the average percentage of the assets of which (generally by value, but by adjusted tax basis in certain cases) that produce or are held for the production of passive income is at least 50 percent. Generally, passive income for this purpose means dividends, interest (including income equivalent to interest), royalties, rents, annuities, the excess of gain over losses from certain property transactions and commodities transactions, and foreign currency gains. Passive income for this purpose does not include rents and royalties received by the foreign corporation from active business and certain income received from related persons. A Fund's investments in foreign securities may be subject to withholding taxes at the source on dividends or interest payments.

Sale or redemption of Shares. The sale, exchange or redemption of a Fund's Shares may give rise to a gain or loss. In general, any gain or loss realized upon a taxable disposition of Shares will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the Shares have been held for more than 12 months. Otherwise the gain or loss on the sale, exchange or redemption of a Fund's Shares will be treated as short-term capital gain or loss. However, if a shareholder sells Shares at a loss within six months of purchase, any loss will be disallowed for Federal income tax purposes to the extent of any exempt-interest dividends received on such Shares. In addition, any loss (not already disallowed as provided in the preceding sentence) realized upon a taxable disposition of Shares held for six months or less will be treated as long-term, rather than short-term, to the extent of any long-term capital gain distributions received by the shareholder with respect to the Shares. All or a portion of any loss realized upon a taxable disposition of a Fund's Shares will be disallowed if other Shares of the same Fund are purchased within 30 days before or after the disposition. In such a case, the basis of the newly purchased Shares will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss.

Backup Withholding. In general, a Fund is required to withhold and remit to the U.S. Treasury a percentage of the proceeds of Share sales, exchanges, or redemptions made by and taxable dividends and other distributions paid to any individual shareholder who fails to properly furnish the Fund with a correct taxpayer identification number (TIN), who has under-reported dividend or interest income, or who fails to certify to the Fund that he or she is a United States person and is not subject to such withholding. Pursuant to recently enacted tax legislation, the backup withholding tax rate is 28% for amounts paid through 2014. Unless Congress enacts tax legislation providing otherwise, this legislation could expire and the backup withholding rate will be 31% for amounts paid after December 31, 2014.

The Internal Revenue Service recently revised its regulations affecting the application to foreign investors of the back-up withholding and withholding tax rules described above. In some circumstances, the new rules increase the certification and filing requirements imposed on foreign investors in order to qualify for exemption from the back-up withholding tax rates and for reduced withholding tax rates under income tax treaties. Foreign investors in the Fund should consult their tax advisors with respect to the potential application of these new regulations.

Securities issued or purchased at a discount. The Funds' investment in securities issued at a discount and certain other obligations will (and investments in securities purchased at a discount may) require a Fund to accrue and distribute income not yet received. In order to generate sufficient cash to make the requisite distributions, a Fund may be required to sell securities in its portfolio that it otherwise would have continued to hold.

Shares purchased through tax-qualified plans. Special tax rules apply to investments though defined contribution plans and other taxqualified plans. Shareholders should consult their tax adviser to determine the suitability of shares of a Fund as an investment through such plans and the precise effect of an investment on their particular tax situation.

Unrelated Business Taxable Income. Under current law, a Fund generally serves to block unrelated business taxable income ("UBTI") from being realized by its tax-exempt shareholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a tax-exempt shareholder could realize UBTI by virtue of its investment in the Fund if either: (1) a Fund invests in real estate investment trusts ("REITs") that hold residual interests in real estate mortgage investment conduits ("REMICs"); or (2) shares in a Fund constitute debt-financed property in the hands of the tax-exempt shareholder within the meaning of Code Section 514(b). If a charitable remainder trust (as defined in Code Section 664) realizes any UBTI for a taxable year, it will pay an excise tax equal to the amount of that UBTI.

The foregoing is only a summary of some of the important federal income tax considerations generally affecting purchases of Shares of a Fund. No attempt is made to present a detailed explanation of the federal income tax treatment of each Fund or its shareholders, and this discussion is not intended as a substitute for careful tax planning. Accordingly, investors are urged to consult their tax advisors with specific reference to their own tax situation.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

Money Market Funds

The net investment income of each class of Shares of each Money Market Fund is determined as of 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) each Business Day. All of the net investment income so determined normally will be declared as a dividend daily to shareholders of record of each class as of the close of business and prior to the determination of NAV. However, if you purchase Shares by check, ACH or SIP, you will begin earning dividends on the next business day after your order has been received by the Trust. Unless the Business Day before a weekend or holiday is the last day of an accounting period, the dividend declared on that day will include an amount in respect of the Fund's income for the subsequent non-business day or days. No daily dividend will include any amount of net income in respect of a subsequent semiannual accounting period. Dividends declared during any month will be invested as of the close of business day of the month (or the next Business Day after the last calendar day of the month if the last calendar day of the same class of the Fund at the NAV per Share, normally \$1.00, determined as of the close of business on that day, unless payment of the dividend in cash has been requested.

Net income of a class of Shares of a Money Market Fund consists of all interest income accrued on portfolio assets less all expenses of the Fund and the class and amortized market premium. Amortized market discount is included in interest income. None of the Money Market Funds anticipates that it will normally realize any long-term capital gains with respect to its portfolio securities.

Normally each class of Shares of the Money Market Funds will have a positive net income at the time of each determination thereof. Net income may be negative if an unexpected liability must be accrued or a loss realized. If the net income of a class or classes of Shares of a Money Market Fund determined at any time is a negative amount, the NAV per Share of such class or classes will be reduced below \$1.00 unless one or more of the following steps, for which the Trustees have authority, are taken: (1) reduce the number of Shares in each shareholder's account of the applicable class or classes, (2) offset each shareholder's pro rata portion of negative net income against the shareholder's accrued dividend account or against future dividends with regard to the applicable class or classes, or (3) combine these methods in order to seek to obtain the NAV per Share of the applicable class or classes at \$1.00. The Trustees may endeavor to restore a Fund's NAV per Share to \$1.00 by not declaring dividends from net income on subsequent days until restoration, with the result that the NAV per Share will increase to the extent of positive net income which is not declared as a dividend.

Should a Money Market Fund incur or anticipate, with respect to its portfolio, any unusual or unexpected significant expense or loss which would affect disproportionately the Fund's income for a particular period, the Trustees would at that time consider whether to adhere to the dividend policy described above or to revise it in light of the then prevailing circumstances in order to ameliorate, to the extent possible, the

disproportionate effect of such expense or loss on then existing shareholders. Such expenses or losses may nevertheless result in a shareholder's receiving no dividends for the period during which the Shares are held and receiving upon redemption a price per Share lower than that which was paid.

Other Funds

Each of the Funds, other than the Money Market Funds, will declare and distribute dividends from net investment income of each class of Shares, if any, and will distribute its net realized capital gains, with respective to each class of Shares, if any, at least annually.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

From time to time the Trust may advertise the performance of one or more of the Funds. All data is based on past performance and is not intended to indicate future results. Performance of Institutional Shares, as compared to Class A Shares or Class C Shares, will normally be higher because Class A Shares and Class C Shares are subject to distribution (12b-1) fees.

Money Market Funds

Generally, the Money Market Funds will advertise 7-day yields and 7-day effective yields.

The yield for each class of Shares of a Money Market Fund is computed by determining the percentage net change, excluding capital changes and any income other than investment income, in the value of a hypothetical pre-existing account having a balance of one Share at the beginning of the period, subtracting a charge reflecting any deductions from shareholder accounts, and dividing the difference by the value of the account at the beginning of the base period to obtain the base period return, and then multiplying the base period return by 365/7 (or approximately 52 weeks).

The effective yield for each class of Shares of a Fund represents a compounding of the base period return by adding 1, raising the sum to a power equal to 365/7, and subtracting 1 from the result, according to the following formula:

Effective Yield = [(Base Period Return +1) 365/7] -1

Based on the 7-day period ended December 31, 2014 (the "base period"), the yield and effective yield of the Institutional Shares of each of the Money Market Funds were as follows:

Fund - Institutional Shares	Yield	Effective Yield
Money Market Fund	0.04%	0.04%
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund	0.03%	0.03%

Based on the 7-day period ended December 31, 2014 (the "base period"), the yield and effective yield of the Class A and Interfund Shares of the Money Market Funds listed below were as follows:

Fund-Class A Shares	Yield	Effective Yield
Money Market Fund	0.04%	0.04%
U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund	0.00%	0.00%
Money Market Interfund Shares	Yield	Effective Yield
Money Market Interfund Shares	%	%^{(1)}

⁽¹⁾ As of December 31, 2014, the Interfund Shares remain available for purchase; however the balance remains at \$0.

Other Funds

Generally, the Equity and Balanced Allocation Funds will advertise average annual total returns.

In accordance with SEC guidelines, the average annual total return for each class of Shares is calculated according to the following formula: where p = a hypothetical initial of \$1,000; n = number of years; and ERV = ending redeemable value of the hypothetical \$1,000 investment after the investment period.

$$P(1 + T)^n = ERV$$

In accordance with SEC guidelines, the yield for each class of Shares of an Equity Fund and Balanced Allocation Fund are computed by dividing the net investment income per Share earned during the period by the maximum offering price per Share on the last day of the period, according to the following formula:

$$a - b$$

Yield = 2[(- +1)⁶ - 1]
cd

Where a = dividends and interest earned during the period; b = expenses accrued for the period (net of reimbursements); c = the average daily number of shares outstanding during the period that were entitled to receive dividends; and d = the maximum offering price per share on the last day of the period.

In accordance with SEC guidelines, the tax-equivalent yield for each class of the Equity Funds is computed by dividing the portion of the yield that is tax-exempt by 1 minus a stated income tax rate and adding the quotient to that portion, if any, of the yield that is not tax-exempt.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Funds for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and the report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, are incorporated herein by reference to the Trust's Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, which has been previously sent to shareholders of each Fund pursuant to Section 30(d) of the 1940 Act and previously filed with the SEC. A copy of the Annual Report to Shareholders may be obtained without charge by contacting the Trust.

INVESTMENT RATINGS

A.M. BEST

LONG-TERM DEBT RATINGS

Investment Grade Aaa: Exceptional aa: Very Strong a: Strong bbb: Adequate

Non-Investment Grade

Bb: Speculativeb: Very Speculativeccc, cc, c: Extremely Speculatived: In Default

SHORT-TERM DEBT RATINGS

Investment Grade AMB-1+: Strongest

AMB-1: Outstanding AMB-2: Satisfactory AMB-3: Adequate

Non-Investment Grade

AMB-4: Speculative D: In Default

FITCH

LONG-TERM DEBT RATINGS

Investment grade AAA: the best quality companies, reliable and stable AA: quality companies, a bit higher risk than AAA A: economic situation can affect finance BBB: medium class companies, which are satisfactory at the moment

Non-investment grade

BB: more prone to changes in the economy
B: financial situation varies noticeably
CCC: currently vulnerable and dependent on favorable economic conditions to meet its commitments
CC: highly vulnerable, very speculative bonds
C: highly vulnerable, perhaps in bankruptcy or in arrears but still continuing to pay out on obligations
D: has defaulted on obligations and Fitch believes that it will generally default on most or all obligations
NR: not publicly rated

SHORT-TERM DEBT RATINGS

Fitch's short-term ratings indicate the potential level of default within a 12-month period.

F1+ : best quality grade, indicating exceptionally strong capacity of obligor to meet its financial commitment

F1: best quality grade, indicating strong capacity of obligor to meet its financial commitment

F2: good quality grade with satisfactory capacity of obligor to meet its financial commitment

F3: fair quality grade with adequate capacity of obligor to meet its financial commitment but near term adverse conditions could impact the obligor's commitments

B: of speculative nature and obligor has minimal capacity to meet its commitment and vulnerability to short term adverse changes in financial and economic conditions

C: possibility of default is high and the financial commitment of the obligor are dependent upon sustained, favorable business and economic conditions

D: the obligor is in default as it has failed on its financial commitments.

Fitch also uses intermediate +/- modifiers for each category between AA and CCC (e.g., AA+, AA, AA-, A+, A, A-, BBB+, BBB, BBB-, etc.).

MOODY'S

GLOBAL LONG-TERM RATING SCALE

Aaa: Obligations rated Aaa are judged to be of the highest quality, subject to the lowest level of credit risk.

Aa: Obligations rated Aa are judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk.

A: Obligations rated A are judged to be upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk.

Baa: Obligations rated Baa are judged to be medium-grade and subject to moderate credit risk and as such may possess certain speculative characteristics.

Ba: Obligations rated Ba are judged to be speculative and are subject to substantial credit risk.

B: Obligations rated B are considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk.

Caa: Obligations rated Caa are judged to be speculative of poor standing and are subject to very high credit risk.

Ca: Obligations rated Ca are highly speculative and are likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of principal and interest.

C: Obligations rated C are the lowest rated and are typically in default, with little prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

Moody's appends numerical modifiers 1, 2, and 3 to each generic rating classification from Aa through Caa. The modifier 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category; the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking; and the modifier 3 indicates a ranking in the lower end of that generic rating category. Additionally, a "(hyb)" indicator is appended to all ratings of hybrid securities issued by banks, insurers, finance companies, and securities firms.

Moody's differentiates structured finance ratings from fundamental ratings (i.e., ratings on nonfinancial corporate, financial institution, and public sector entities) on the global long-term scale by adding (sf) to all structured finance ratings. The (sf) indicator was introduced on August 11, 2010 and explained in a special comment entitled, "Moody's Structured Finance Rating Scale." The addition of (sf) to structured finance ratings should eliminate any presumption that such ratings and fundamental ratings at the same letter grade level will behave the same. The (sf) indicator for structured finance security ratings indicates that otherwise similarly rated structured finance and fundamental securities may have different risk characteristics.

GLOBAL SHORT-TERM RATING SCALE

P-1 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-1: have a superior ability to repay short-term debt obligations.

P-2 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-2: have a strong ability to repay short-term debt obligations.

P-3 Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-3: have an acceptable ability to repay short-term obligations.

NP Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Not Prime: do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.

US MUNICIPAL SHORT-TERM DEBT OBLIGATION RATINGS

MIG 1: This designation denotes superior credit quality. Excellent protection is afforded by established cash flows, highly reliable liquidity support, or demonstrated broad-based access to the market for refinancing.

MIG 2: This designation denotes strong credit quality. Margins of protection are ample, although not as large as in the preceding group.

MIG 3: This designation denotes acceptable credit quality. Liquidity and cash-flow protection may be narrow, and market access for refinancing is likely to be less well-established. SG This designation denotes speculative-grade credit quality. Debt instruments in this category may lack sufficient margins of protection.

STANDARD AND POORS

AAA: An obligation rated 'AAA' has the highest rating assigned by Standard & Poor's. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong.

AA: An obligation rated 'AA' differs from the highest-rated obligations only to a small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is very strong.

A: An obligation rated 'A' is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher-rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.

BBB: An obligation rated 'BBB' exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. **BB; B; CCC;CC; and C**

Obligations rated 'BB', 'B', 'CCC', 'CC', and 'C' are regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. 'BB' indicates the least degree of speculation and 'C' the highest. While such obligations will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these may be outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.

BB: An obligation rated 'BB' is less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

B: An obligation rated 'B' is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligations rated 'BB', but the obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

CCC: An obligation rated 'CCC' is currently vulnerable to nonpayment, and is dependent upon favorable business, financial, and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. In the event of adverse business, financial, or economic conditions, the obligor is not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. **CC** An obligation rated 'CC' is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment.

C: A 'C' rating is assigned to obligations that are currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment, obligations that have payment arrearages allowed by the terms of the documents, or obligations of an issuer that is the subject of a bankruptcy petition or similar action which have not experienced a payment default. Among others, the 'C' rating may be assigned to subordinated debt, preferred stock or other obligations on which cash payments have been suspended in accordance with the instrument's terms or when preferred stock is the subject of a distressed exchange offer, whereby some or all of the issue is either repurchased for an amount of cash or replaced by other instruments having a total value that is less than par.

D: An obligation rated 'D' is in payment default. The 'D' rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless Standard & Poor's believes that such payments will be made within five business days, irrespective of any grace period. The 'D' rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of similar action if payments on an obligation are jeopardized. An obligation's rating is lowered to 'D' upon completion of a distressed exchange offer, whereby some or all of the issue is either repurchased for an amount of cash or replaced by other instruments having a total value that is less than par. **NR**: This indicates that no rating has been requested, that there is insufficient information on which to base a rating, or that Standard & Poor's does not rate a particular obligation as a matter of policy.

* The ratings from 'AA' to 'CCC' may be modified by the addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.

ADDRESSES

The Huntington Funds

2960 N. Meridian Street Suite 300 Attn: Huntington Funds Officer Indianapolis, IN 46208

Distributor

Unified Financial Securities, Inc. 2960 N. Meridian Street Suite 300 Attn: Huntington Funds Officer Indianapolis, IN 46208

Investment Advisor

Huntington Asset Advisors, Inc. Huntington Plaza, 6th Floor 37 West Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215

Custodian

The Huntington National Bank 41 South High Street Columbus, OH 43287

Administrator, Fund Accountant, Transfer Agent and Dividend Disbursing Agent

Huntington Asset Services, Inc. 2960 N. Meridian Street Suite 300 Indianapolis, IN 46208

Sub-Custodian for Huntington Global Select Markets Fund, Huntington Situs Fund and Huntington Real Strategies Fund

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 40 Water Street Boston, MA 02109

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Ernst & Young LLP 1100 Huntington Center 41 South High Street Columbus, OH 43215